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In moving forward into the next
financial year and beyond, we will

work tirelessly to maintain our -
proven policy of ensuring healthy = |
expansion by meticulously (
examining opportunities to

diversify our business portfolio

and increase market share. 73
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RESULTS FOR THE YEAR / REEFHEE
RoadShow Holdings Limited (the “Company” or “RoadShow”) and its subsidiaries REE-_ZT—XR"F+-_A=+—HLFE"
(collectively “RoadShow Group” or the “Group”) recorded a loss after taxation BEEBIZERAR AR ( AR =% 3
of approximately HK$42.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2016, il ) REMBAR (57 KBS
compared with a loss after taxation of HK$46.0 million for the previous financial B ok [A&EE] ) SEHREEBELEE
year. For the year ended 31 Decen/baer 2016, the Group reported total operating 42,100,0007T * M E—B B E RIEE SRR TR
revenue of HK$414.7 million, repyesenting a decrease of approximately 3.5% from [E51E75%46,000,0007T c RELE =T —RF+
that of the previous year. Loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company ZRA=+—BIEFE - REBSESLERAE
was HK$45.3 million for the geafr ended 31 December 2016, compared with RH/815414,700,0007T * BEF R 4I3.5% ©
HK$47.9 million for 2015. BE-Z—Ft+t-A-+—BLFEHARQ

/ FIAR 5 e 6518 88 4 45,300,0007T + = E
The loss for the year was mainly attributable to the reduction in revenue as a result — AR A#E#47,900,0007T ©
of continued sluggish deman(d in the market, an exchange loss of approximately
HK$9.5 million due to the depreciation of the Renminbi (“RMB"), recognition REEHNEEF ERHNTISH KFHERSS
of an impairment loss on proEertg, plant and equipment of approximately WARD + AREEBEHEARE L EBLOE
HK$22.9 million, and a provisjon for onerous contracts for BUS-TV business of #9,500,0007T * FLYIE - BB Mk @R
approximately HK$14.5 milIiAn to cover the unavoidable costs of meeting the {EEBAEM22,900,0007T * A REREITHE

obligations under the related &icences and other contracts which are due to expire RZZE—EFNA=THEREBETER
on 30 June 2017, to the extent that such costs may exceed the expected economic ~ E A& #II8 T A E FPTE £ #1382 B AR Al

benefits to be received from those licences and contracts. LB SRR A A&

B AfMRE T EREBBESOBED
FINAL DIVIDEND \ 75¥14,500,0007% °
The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year SRER R &
ended 31 December 2016 (2015: HK$Nil).
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ES

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year under review, Hong Kong's advertising market was adversely
impacted by the economic uncertainty over the world markets and the local retail
segment. The Group's revenue from advertising dropped in the face of the difficult
conditions of the advertising market as well as increasingly keen competition. The
Group has taken measures to streamline its operations and reduce operating cost
so as to increase its cost efficiency.

The performance of the RoadShow Group would not distract from our
commitment to the integration of our core advertising platforms. The RoadShow
Group and its management have realigned their business strategy. The

ultimate aim is to maintain our successful policies of operating within our core
competencies and ensuring our internal resources continue to provide unrivalled
value-added services to Hong Kong's advertisers and agencies.

Having reviewed the Group's operations and having considered the terms included
in the tender invitation issued by The Kowloon Motor Bus Company (1933)
Limited (“KMB") for a new licence relating to the BUS-TV business, the Group has
decided not to submit a tender for this new licence which will succeed the current
licence when it expires on 30 June 2017. The decision will allow the Group to
reallocate its resources to other more profitable segments of the Group's business.
This is in the best interest of the Company and its shareholders.

On the other hand, we are pleased to announce that KMB has exercised its option
to extend the term of the licence agreement in respect of the BUS-BODY and IN-
BUS advertising business for another 36 months from 1 July 2017 to 30 June 2020
(both dates inclusive) with all other terms and conditions of the licence agreement
remaining unchanged.

PROSPECTS

Looking ahead, the global economy faces a number of challenges. Hong Kong's
advertising market and retail sector will continue to be impacted by the global
economic uncertainty. While we anticipate that adspend, especially on out-
of-home (OOH) advertising, will remain stagnant in 2017, we will strive hard to
maintain the competitiveness of our core operations and take specific steps aimed
at maximising cost efficiency, which include streamlining of operations and the
implementation of tighter cost controls. In moving forward into the next financial
year and beyond, we will work tirelessly to maintain our proven policy of ensuring
healthy expansion by meticulously examining opportunities to diversify our
business portfolio and increase market share whenever and wherever possible.
Along the way, RoadShow will also continue to do its utmost to achieve greater
value and improve results for both clients and our shareholders.
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COMMUNITY AND CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Long determined to be a good corporate citizen and give back to the communities
that sustain its business, RoadShow continues to be an enthusiastic supporter

of worthy causes. During the year under review, we continued to deliver on this
commitment by doing everything possible to help needy members of society by
enthusiastically supporting various deserving NGOs and charitable organisations.

APPRECIATION

During the year under review, Mr LOH Chan Stephen was appointed as Managing
Director and Executive Director of the Company with effect from 1 February 2017
and Mr Lawrence CHAN Kwan ceased to be Acting Chief Executive Officer while
continuing to serve as Chief Financial Officer with effect from the same day. The
Board warmly welcomes Mr LOH and thanks Mr CHAN for his contributions to the
Group during his tenure as Acting Chief Executive Officer.

Our very special thanks must go to the Audit Committee, chaired by Dr Eric LI Ka
Cheung and comprising Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI, Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan
Leung, Mr YUNG Wing Chung and Ms Winnie NG, for their meticulous hard work.

| would also like to take this opportunity to express my gratitude to my fellow
Directors for their valuable contributions towards cementing the Group's solid
foundation, to all staff for their dedication and hard work, and to all shareholders,
clients and suppliers for their continued support.

Dr John CHAN Cho Chak

Chairman

Hong Kong, 17 March 2017
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Advertisers
overwhelmingly positive
response to Theme Bus
underlines its sustained
attractiveness.

BUS-TV

In 2016, BUS-TV continued to produce a broad
spectrum of programming that provided general
infotainment, entertainment and environmental
news. During the year, RoadShow further
integrated BUS-TV with its other core online
platforms and social media.

BUS-BODY

Although notable for increasingly fierce
competition, 2016 marked another satisfactory
year for BUS-BODY. This channel continues to play
amajor role in enabling RoadShow to extend its
client base by attracting new partners, especially
from across the lucrative blue-chip sector.
Advertisers and their agencies' overwhelmingly
positive response to BUS-BODY's seamless
integration with IN-BUS via Theme Bus underlines
its sustained attractiveness. As a result, BUS-BODY
seems poised to increase its perceived value by
enabling advertisers to broaden their appeal well
into 2017 and beyond.

The Single Deck Super Whole Bus and the Double
Deck Super Whole Bus constitute another
pioneering RoadShow format that has been
acclaimed by top advertisers and agencies. Highly
innovative, this channel not only lets brands enjoy
a dominant presence at optimal cost but also

guarantees them an outstanding means of creating

year round top-of-mind awareness.

8 RoadShow Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016

BtER

RZZT—RF  BErEREERERNTEZN
fiE - MEREM - RESIRRIE © F

W EHBE - PEADTEREBE Tt
DER PR AR IR

BtES

BEHFEBAR - HELEGR_F—XRF
ﬁmﬁ SIEMRRE - HRBEBEEEEA
C BREBRARMIRH - FHRIRENE
Emﬁ 1% WMAEPE - BEEMARE
HRY [EEEL] (BELESHEELHERE
A=) BUA—BuFT - 5l T ELEHRS
NFATE - At - B HESEEERRH L
BE - BAIR T —FRARRGERET

[BEE2EES] R [2E82EES] BB
ﬁ%—ﬁ@%ﬂmﬁimﬁ AR ERNEER
MBI o WESEREGEAF - MEME
TﬂmﬁMmﬂﬁmﬂ$ ZHLBROEN

C BAMRE AR R A — NS R

C - EREZKAEBEEEE -

~



IN-BUS has become
one of the top choices
for advertisers striving
to strengthen links
between their 020
marketing initiatives.

IN-BUS

IN-BUS also maintained its encouraging
forward momentum throughout 2016.
Advertisers and agencies remain very
satisfied with the effectiveness and flexibility
that this media buy's various formats
deliver in optimising awareness for their
brands. The year under review has also
seen RoadShow further enhance IN-BUS's
creativity and interactivity via the leveraging
of various state-of-the-art technologies. As
aresult IN-BUS has become one of the top
choices for advertisers and agencies striving
to strengthen links between their Online to
Offline (020) marketing initiatives.

BUS SHELTERS

Setup in 2001 and operating in tandem
with JCDecaux Cityscape Limited,
RoadShow's bus shelter business also
posted favourable growth figures for 2016.
The channel’s sizeable market share and
status as probably Hong Kong's foremost
out-of-home (O0OH) advertising specialist
were also further strengthened, and its
revenue and profitability significantly
boosted.
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW
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BILLBOARDS

RoadShow has been granted sole and exclusive

rights to several high-profile outdoor advertising

spaces. In addition to the Aberdeen Tunnel and

Hip Kee Godown No.1 and No.2, locations also

include Cheong Wan Road at the Cross Harbour -I'l; iE

Tunnel TST's entrance.
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DIGITAL & SOCIAL MEDIA

The roadshow.hk portal is yet another example of how
firmly RoadShow has cemented its position as probably
one of Hong Kong's top integrated advertising platforms.
In 2016, RoadShow further expanded its social media
channels’ promotional capabilities by offering clients a
tailor-made video feed via the RoadShow Facebook Fan
Page. The Facebook videos have successfully attracted
netizens with high page views.
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INTEGRATED MARKETING SERVICES

RoadShow'’s optimally-balanced integration of essential
marketing services is a powerful tool that empowers ad
agencies and brand managers with the flexibility needed to
create genuinely ground-breaking marketing campaigns.

As aresult, demand for RoadShow’s expertise in this highly
specialised area remained consistently strong throughout the
twelve months under review.

In addition to leveraging RoadShow’s BUS-TV and BUS-BODY
platforms, its Integrated Marketing Services team capitalises
on world-class content production and event management
support. Extensions of coverage to include Billboards,
roadshow.hk and the RoadShow Facebook Fan Page, ensure
that RoadShow remains perfectly placed to benefit its clients
by bringing them a fully comprehensive spectrum of essential
services.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBRREE

Full Year Results (HK$'000)

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+t—HLEE

REXE (BB TR 2016 2015
Revenue A 407,511 411,946
EBITDA R&HA8 - BiIH - 8 M HATHI B F (26,858) (25,123)
Operating loss & & 518 (42,099) (41,137)
Net loss E518 558 (42,124) (46,029)
Basic loss per share (HK cents) & B¢ E A &8 (B1L) (4.54) (4.80)
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position Data (HK$'000)

SRR REE BT )

Cash and cash equivalents 38 & N IR & Z(EY) 397,954 369,755
Total assets & E4(H 618,697 687,354
Total liabilities £ & 4 %8 117,863 141,781
Total equity attributable to equity shareholders f% 5 & (H i 25 4258 491,614 537,889
Cash Flow Data (HK$'000)

REeREsyE (8% T )

Cash generated from operations 2R B 4L & /G E A IR & 47,673 9,187
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 69,515 (120,110)
ReRBLZEWEM/ CRd) F8E

Financial Ratios

Biigth %=

Current ratio 7 Eh bt & 5.04 449
EBITDA margin AR&ETFIE « FiI8 - 78 REHEATH BT %= (6.5%) (5.8%)
Net loss margin JF &8 = (10.2%) (10.7%)
Debt-to-equity ratio B fE& AL =& 0% 0%
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For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group reported total operating revenue
of HK$414.7 million, representing a decrease of approximately 3.5% from that of
the previous year. Loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company was
HK$45.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2016, compared with HK$47.9
million for 2015. The loss for the year was mainly attributable to the reduction

in revenue as a result of continued sluggish demand in the market, an exchange
loss of approximately HK$9.5 million due to the depreciation of the Renminbi
(“RMB"), recognition of an impairment loss on property, plant and equipment

of approximately HK$22.9 million, and a provision for onerous contracts for BUS-
TV business of approximately HK$14.5 million to cover the unavoidable costs of
meeting the obligations under the related licences and other contracts which

are due to expire on 30 June 2017, to the extent that such costs may exceed the
expected economic benefits to be received from those licences and contracts. The
Group continues to maintain a strong financial position with bank deposits and
cash of HK$398.0 million as at 31 December 2016 (2015: HK$369.8 million).

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group reported total operating
revenue of HK$414.7 million, of which HK$407.5 million was from media sales
services and HK$7.2 million was from other revenue, less other net loss. Revenue
generated from the media sales services was HK$407.5 million in 2016 compared
with HK$411.9 million in 2015, representing a 1.1% decrease mainly resulting from
the unfavorable demand in the market.

The Group's operating expenses decreased by HK$14.3 million, from HK$471.1
million in 2015 to HK$456.8 million in 2016 as a result of the decrease in royalty,
licence and management fees by approximately HK$18.2 million.
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A B 5 E51E 407585 9,500,000 7T © BEUIE - WS
NS BTERIREE B 40781 22,900,000 7T + A
MENBITER _E—+F A=+ HEH
HERFEREMAENBE THETMEENT
Al R R AN A] RE S RRIBTEHA AT I SR SRR K
AHREERSER S - AMRE T TR ERE
BA DB 14,500,000 T © AR EE A4S
EREENPBRR  RZZE—R"F+2A=
+— BRI TIFR IR E A 398,000,000 7T
(ZZ—H4F : /B 369,800,0007T) °
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EEESEEURAABREBHE 414,700,000 7T © &
FR & 407,500,000 TR B ES SHE ARTS - TS
#& 7,200,000 7T RIIZR B B AU A CRi < E /&8

SFEE) c R —NF - R ERSIELEN
W A A5 407,500,000 T+ ¥k —E—HEH
51 411,900,000 T A 1.1%  hEBEHRH

BH KRR

AEEMKEERR S —AFABE
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
gy E) ]

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2016 (2015: HK$Nil).

CASH FLOW

In 2016, the cash generated from the operations of the Group was HK$47.7 million
(2015: HK$9.2 million). Payment for capital expenditure in 2016 amounted to
HK$11.6 million (2015: HK$15.7 million). The consolidated cash flow statement of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 is set out on pages 106 to 107 of
this Annual Report.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

At 31 December 2016, the Group's bank deposits and cash amounted to HK$398.0
million (2015: HK$369.8 million), denominated in Hong Kong dollars, US dollars
and Renminbi. Apart from providing working capital to support its media sales, the
Group maintains a strong cash position to meet the potential needs for business
expansion and development.

At 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group did not have any bank borrowings. The
gearing ratio, representing the ratio of bank borrowings to the total share capital
and reserves of the Group was 0% at 31 December 2016 and 2015.

At 31 December 2016, the Group had stand-by banking facilities totalling HK$30.0
million (2015: HK$30.0 million).

At 31 December 2016, the Group had net current assets of HK$475.4 million (2015:

HK$494.2 million) and total assets of HK$618.7 million (2015: HK$687.4 million).

1 6 RoadShow Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016
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CHARGE ON ASSETS

At 31 December 2016, bank deposits of HK$78.3 million (2015: HK$79.7 million)
were pledged mainly to secure certain bank guarantees provided by the
subsidiaries of the Company to fellow subsidiaries regarding their due performance
and payment under certain licence agreements between the subsidiaries of the
Company and the fellow subsidiaries.

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE RATES AND
RELATED HEDGES

The Group’s monetary assets and transactions are principally denominated

in Hong Kong dollars, US dollars and Renminbi. During the year, the Company
incurred an exchange loss of approximately HK$9.5 million (2015: HK$9.8 million)
due to the depreciation in Renminbi against Hong Kong dollars. During the year,
there was no material fluctuation in the exchange rates of Hong Kong dollars

and US dollars. The Group did not engage in any derivatives activities and did not
commit to any financial instruments to hedge its financial position exposure in
2016. At 31 December 2016 and 2015, the unutilised amount of proceeds from the
Global Offering and the exercise of an over-allotment option by the underwriters
on 18 July 2001 were placed into bank deposits.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES AND CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital expenditures incurred by the Group during 2016 amounted to HK$11.6
million (2015: HK$15.7 million). The amount of capital expenditures incurred is
showninnotes 11 and 12 to the financial statements on pages 135 to 137 of this
Annual Report.

Capital commitments contracted for but not provided for in the financial
statements of the Group at 31 December 2016 amounted to HK$Nil (2015: HK$5.7
million).
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
gy E) ]

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities at 31 December 2016
and 2015.

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND POLICIES

The financial statements set out on pages 102 to 165 have been prepared in
accordance with the applicable disclosure requirements of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”), all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

EMPLOYEES AND EMOLUMENT POLICIES

At 31 December 2016, the Group had 123 full-time employees. The Group offers
a comprehensive and competitive remuneration and benefits package to all its
employees. In addition, it offers a performance bonus scheme to its senior staff
based on achievement of business objectives and a sales commission scheme to
its sales team based on achievement of advertising revenue targets. The Group
has adopted a provident fund scheme for its employees in Hong Kong as required
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.

1 8 RoadShow Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016
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For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group had the following continuing

connected transactions, details of which are set out below.

(i) The Group entered into the transaction with a connected party in 2014 as set
out below. The transaction constituted a continuing connected transaction
which is subject to reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The details
of the transaction and the proposed annual caps were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 31 October 2014 and the circular of
the Company dated 12 December 2014. The transaction and the proposed
annual caps were approved at the special general meeting by the independent
shareholders of the Company (the “Independent Shareholders”) on 31

December 2014.

BEZT—RFt+A=T—HILFE K&
BAETAREEERS - BEFBEEINT -

() ANEBR T —IUFHEEATET Nl
R BIBLTRAUFETHAE  %ZRXH
BRHERERS - AYETHR  AHRE
SRERAEIRTE o R 5 RERFE LRD
HEERARAR—E—mE+A=+—8
HBEHORAHEARRR_E—NF+=-A+
ZHTEERBER AR - R RERTFE
FRER=ZZT—EF+ZA=1+—BRk
RERIRE AN FIB IR (B
B ) B o

1) The Kowloon Motor Bus Company Licence fee payable by Bus Power Limited 125,754 133,000
(1933) Limited (“KMB")(Note 1) (“Bus Power”) (Note 2) to KMB in relation
EEL(—N==)8RA"A to the grant of an exclusive licence by KMB
(ThE]) (FEE1) to Bus Power to market, install, display and
maintain advertisements on or at such parts
of exterior and interior areas and spaces of the
KMB buses on which Bus Power may display

advertisements

Bus Power Limited ([ Bus Power ) (FftzF2) gL

@] Bus Power AR - 28 - BRMER
EERNEE &N R EFEAEP Bus Power AJ R
REEMMNE RN BR T ERERANE S

RS

Notes:

1. KMB s anindirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Transport International Holdings Limited

(“TIH™).
2. Bus Power is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Companu.

Kt -

1. WEASEEBIERAERAR ([HiE]) Kk
2 EWBRT -

2. Bus Power AR EIHMEZEZEHNEBAR -
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The Group entered into the transactions with the connected parties in 2008 as
set out below. The transactions constituted continuing connected transactions
which are subject to reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The details of
the transactions and the proposed annual caps were disclosed in the circular
of the Company dated 28 November 2008. The transactions and the proposed
annual caps were approved at the special general meeting by the Independent
Shareholders on 15 December 2008.

The following transactions have been extended for the period from 1 August
2012 to 30 June 2017. The details of the extended transactions and the
respective proposed annual caps were disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 3 July 2012 and the circular of the Company dated 30 July
2012. The transactions and the proposed annual caps in respect of the royalty
fees payable, shortfall receivable, the management fees payable and the sales
rebate payable are subject to the reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
The transactions and the respective proposed annual caps were approved at
the special general meeting by the Independent Shareholders on 15 August 2012.

RoadShow Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016
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2) KMB
ne

3) JCDecaux Cityscape Limited
(“JCDecaux Cityscape”) (Note 4)
EaREERAR ((EaRE])
(Ff3E4)

4) JCDecaux Cityscape
ERRE

5) JCDecaux Cityscape
Em R

Notes:

3.

Bus Focus is an indirect 60%-owned subsidiary of the Company and a direct
40%-owned associate of Immense Prestige Limited (“IPL"). IPL is a wholly-owned

Rouyalty fee payable by Bus Focus Limited (“Bus 19,727
Focus”) (Note 3) to KMB in connection with

the provision of media sales services for panels

installed at transit vehicle shelters owned by KMB

Bus Focus Limited ([Bus Focus |) (FisE3) st ANE
B M RE B E R E = IR R AR S E RIS FE M L
B frnEFZE

Management fee payable by Bus Focus to 22,354
JCDecaux Cityscape in connection with the

provision of media sales services for transit

vehicle shelters owned by KMB

Bus Focus SiANEHA M T EERMEE=RHLE
BHERBEAESRIAXNNEEE

Sales rebate payable by Bus Focus to JCDecaux 1,322
Cityscape in connection with the provision of

media sales services for transit vehicle shelters

owned by KMB

Bus Focus it A3 /LB R M BIE R MR EE =R GLR
BIHERBEAER RS EE DN

Shortfall of guaranteed rental receivable by Bus —
Focus in connection with the provision of media

sales services for transit vehicle shelters owned

by KMB

Bus Focus i /LR A Y =& S i I B8 AR A 6
HE RSB RER ST R

Hiet -

26,000

30,000

9,000

23,000

3. Bus Focus AZAQ 7] EHEA 60% 8
MiEB A7 » 175 Immense Prestige Limited

subsidiary of JCDecaux Cityscape Hong Kong Limited (“JCDecaux CHK”").
JCDecaux Cityscape is a wholly-owned subsidiary of JCDecaux CHK.

(MPL) B# 1A 40% HEmmE = 27 © IPL
/& JCDecaux Cityscape Hong Kong Limited
([JCDecaux CHK]) )= &M B AR

4, SR A JCDecaux CHK BB AT -
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(ii)

The Group entered into the transaction with the connected party in 2007 as
set out below. The transaction constituted a continuing connected transaction
which is subject to reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The details of
the transaction and the proposed annual caps were disclosed in the circular

of the Company dated 21 November 2007. The transaction and the proposed
annual caps were approved at the special general meeting by the Independent
Shareholders on 10 December 2007. The details of the annual caps in respect
of the licence fee and service charges payable by RoadShow Media Limited
(“RoadShow Media”) under the following transaction for the three years
ended 31 December 2010, 2011 and 2012 were disclosed in the circular of the
Company dated 17 September 2009 and the annual caps were approved at
the special general meeting by the Independent Shareholders on 9 October 2009.

The following transaction has been extended for the period from 1 August
2012 to 30 June 2017. The details of the extended transaction and the
proposed annual caps were disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 16 March 2012 and the circular of the Company dated 18 April 2012. The
transaction and the proposed annual caps in respect of the licence fee and
service charges payable by RoadShow Media under the following transaction
for the five years ending 31 December 2013, 2014, 2015, 2016 and 2017 are
subject to the reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The transaction
and the proposed annual caps were approved at the special general meeting
by the Independent Shareholders on 14 May 2012.

(i) AEER _TTLFEBEATET TARS -

REEMRASE A S - ZRPERIFEH

BR G BETHRR - D RIBMREAER

T o ZRHNEERFELRAFBEERRAFR
ZEEEFT A+ BTIERNBRAEKE
FRHREFFELREN_TTLF+ A

THRRRERAS BB E - B

HEZZTZF T —FR-F—=F+

— A=+—HB 1%/ RoadShow Media Limited
([RoadShow Medial) 5t 75132 S 85T E
KIRBENEE EROFBEERARAR-ZE
NENATERTIERRRAEE  ZE5FE L
BRERZZTNE+ANBRBRRERIAS L&
B R o

NTIRGHEREA—Z——F\A—BERE
“E—+tFRAZTH - BRXSMIEEREF
EERNFBERARRNRZZE——F=AF+~
BT B2  UERARRIR-T——FMmA+
NNBFERBER AT o RIS ETTRAISE ™ A
B URGREE-_T-=F . —T-NF. -
E-RF T ERE+FTA=F
— Bt R{EFE RoadShow Media 5t T51132 5 €
NEETERRSENRZEFE LR - BETH
W AERBUBRRIVEIRTE - ZRHREEF
EERER-Z——F1A+IARKRERERIAR
G B AR B o

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-Z-—R"E+ZA=+—-HLFE

Name of connected party Nature of transaction HK$’000 Cap amount
BEATRRE XHME BT T approved by
the Independent
Shareholders
BEIIIRR
HENSEE LR
HK$'000
BT T
6) KMB Licence fee, service charges and rental expenses 20,897 50,000
i) payable by RoadShow Media (Note 5) to KMB
in connection with the granting of an exclusive
licence to conduct BUS-TV Advertising on
KMB's transit vehicles fitted with the MMOB
broadcasting system
RoadShow Media (P& 5) FREBB R FraTHE1E
HARDZEBERERANNERESR L
TELTEREEEBERANEXNOETE
AR & RS
Note: Vo
5. RoadShow Media s an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Companuy. 5. RoadShow Media & 78 A 7] #) i £ 2 & K 8
NS
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Independent Non-Executive Directors have reviewed and confirmed that the
continuing connected transactions as set out in (i), (i) and (iii) above, which were
entered into by the Group, are:

in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable than terms
available to or from (as appropriate) independent third parties; and

in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as
awhole.

The Company's auditor was engaged to report on the Group's continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has
issued their unqualified letter containing the auditor’s findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed above in accordance
with Listing Rule 14A.56. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the
Company to The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Since the listing of RoadShow on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the
Group has utilised approximately HK$481.0 million for the development of, and the
purchase of equipment for use in, the BUS-TV and other advertising business and
for the acquisition of complementary businesses in Mainland China. The balance
of the proceeds, which has not been utilised, has been deposited with licensed
banks in Hong Kong.

WM IFITE RO IR LA () ~ (i) X (i) BAE
BFTEITHRERER S WIERALER SR

MAREE B E N —REBBETAIL

B REEEFIIRNEN R TEIE=
FXABLSE =EH R (RERERME) A
CS/CIAVARS2

MAMERE D LISRBATAE I
HARRRIRRAEEFIES -

AR EEEZEMBIEE ST ASEM
B EBEBEIEARIEZER) 55 3000 5% [E*
BIISERIE AT BRI B EIE |+ W&
BCEBRE) 2 740 58 [BRE S LHRA
Pt ERE R SR BT | - BhASEE
WHERER SIEHER - ZHECDIRE LT
FRIZE 14A56 KRB HE B K EE Xk
WIERER SN EERERNERBER K
1 o RRTE M ZAZEED KB AR 2 2 B8
BREFBRAR °

ABBNEBBMA X SER AR LA
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REE S SR B R R E 75 M E)
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEREREBEASBN

DIRECTORS EZ=
Dr John CHAN Cho Chak
FRAZEBE L AFHL

Chairman =&
GBS, JP, DBA (Hon), DSocSc (Hon), BA, DipMS, CCMI, FCILT, FHKIoD

Aged 73. Dr Chan has been a Non-Executive Director and the Chairman of the
Company since 15 January 2001. He is an Independent Non-Executive Director
and Deputy Chairman of Transport International Holdings Limited (“TIH"). He
previously served as Managing Director of TIH and as Managing Director and

later Senior Executive Director of The Kowloon Motor Bus Company (1933)
Limited (“KMB") and Long Win Bus Company Limited. He is also an Independent
Non-Executive Director of Hang Seng Bank Limited and Guangdong Investment
Limited. Dr Chan held many positions in the Hong Kong Civil Service from 1964 to
1978 and from 1980 to 1993, the key ones of which included Private Secretary to
the Governor, Deputy Secretary (General Duties), Director of Information Services,
Deputy Chief Secretary, Secretary for Trade and Industry and Secretary for
Education and Manpower. Dr Chan also served as Executive Director and General
Manager of Sun Hung Kai Finance Company Limited from 1978 to 1980. He was a
Director of Swire Properties Limited from April 2010 to March 2017 during which he
acted as an Independent Non-Executive Director from December 2011 to March
2017.He was Chairman of the Hong Kong Jockey Club from 2006 to 2010. Dr Chan
is Chairman of the Court of the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology,
a Director of the Community Chest and a Member of its Executive Committee,
Chairman and Non-Executive Director of Hong Kong News-Expo Limited and a
Director (Member of the Governing Body) of The Hong Kong Club Foundation
Limited.

Mr YUNG Wing Chung
g*/@\%i

Deputy Chairman &% j#

Aged 70. Mr Yung has been a Director of the Company since 20 November 2008.
He is a Corporate Advisor of Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited. He also serves as

a Director of YATA Limited, Hong Kong Business Aviation Centre Limited, River
Trade Terminal Co. Ltd., Hung Kai Finance Company Limited and Airport Freight
Forwarding Centre Company Limited. Mr Yung was a Non-Executive Director of
SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings Limited, a Non-Executive Director of
Wing Tai Properties Limited and an Alternate Director to Mr Raymond Kwok Ping
Luen of Transport International Holdings Limited and an Alternate Director to

Mr Raymond Kwok Ping Luen of Wing Tai Properties Limited. Prior to his joining
Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited in 1995, Mr Yung had many years of working
experience with a U.S. Bank in various managerial positions in Hong Kong and the
United States.
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tt=m -RELE T —F-A+HARE
EARFIFATERRER - IR EFBEEE
BAERAT ([E8 ) BULIEPTEFREIER -
hEEHBEFR UEERENEEL (A=
S)BERATR(ThE]) MEEELERAFES
ERBHRITES - i RREERTAERRAR
EBRERRRARBIIFMTES - RELHR—
NAROFE-NENFR-ANEFE-NN=
FRERREERT - BREEEELAWE
BIEHR - BATFEEER - BIMKA) - TEA
EHBERANGERSEE - RELR—EN
FE-NN\ZFREGERIRETBAR A AN
TERRBKE - MER T -ZFMAE-F
—tF=AREATHEBRARES K -F
—— T+ RAE-Z—F= APREREBELHF
WITES - BN BT RFE_T-TFHE
EEREFGER - RELRE BRI RN
ZEQTR BERRSEFLANTEESR
& EEVEEEEERARNIFERIFNTES
Iz The Hong Kong Club Foundation Limited &
= (BRERKE) -

t+m e AEEBZSENF+—AZ+HER
RARES - HAFBEMEZRBFRARNA
AIEER - thMEE—EBRAR - AEEAME
LA BRAT] - River Trade Terminal Co. Ltd. »
BEMBER NG RIS ZEER LERARRE
F o AEAECAHITREAEEBR AT
TEF  KFRMEBRATIMIENITES - il
BB R AR ZEREBREEENRITEER
KEHMEBRARE S DRI ENNRITES -
R—NANAFMAFBEMERRGRAER
AEEBR—RELRITILIESF  AFRTH
BERERNZIAER



Founder and Deputy Chairman &ll3 A & Bl = &
BA, MBA (Chicago), MPA (Harvard), FCIM,CMILT, MHKIoD

Aged 53. Ms Ng is the Founder of the Company and has been Director since its
inception. She is also a Director of Transport International Holdings Limited ("TIH"),
The Kowloon Motor Bus Company (1933) Limited ("KMB") and Long Win Bus
Company Limited. Ms Ng has received numerous awards and recognition. In 2016,
she won Nobel Laureate Series: Asian Chinese Leadership Award, and China Top
Ten Outstanding Women Entrepreneurs. In 2010, she was named a Woman of
Excellence and was also selected as one of 60 Meritorious Chinese Entrepreneurs
with Achievement and National Contribution. In previous years, she won the
Yazhou Zhoukan Young Chinese Entrepreneur Award, was named one of China’s
100 Outstanding Women Entrepreneurs, was Mason Fellow of Harvard University,
and was the Caring Heart Award recipient. She successfully positioned KMB as a
powerful out-of-home media sales tool by raising the profiles and sales of bus body
exterior and on street bus shelter advertising, and created the innovative multi-
media on board transit vehicles, unlocking the huge potential of the travelling
passengers, which operations model has been adopted by many companies in
Hong Kong, China, and over the world. Moreover, she spearheaded the spinoff of
the company as the media sales arm of TIH, on the main board of the HK stock
exchange (HK stock code 888), which was a business development breakthrough
in the public transportation industry. In doing so, she created a significant and
substantial value asset for TIH, which is independently listed and financially strong,
poised to create and realise more economic value and opportunity for the group.

Active in public service, Ms Ng serves on a number of public and community
boards. She is Chairman of Hospital Governing Committee of Prince of Wales
Hospital, Convenor of Course Vetting Committee of Employees Retraining
Board, Member of Town Planning Board, Advisor of Our Hong Kong Foundation,
Court Member of the Polytechnic University, Director of Vocational Training
Council, Member of Employees Retraining Board, Council Member of Better HK
Foundation, Public Relations Committee Member of Community Chest. She was
Member of Hong Kong Tourism Board, and Member of Hospital Authority from
2010to 2016. Ms Ng holds an MBA from University of Chicago and an MPA from
Harvard University. She is a Fellow of the Chartered Institute of Marketing.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EERSREBEAE/N

DIRECTORS =

Mr LOH Chan Stephen
BIRTE

Managing Director 2 5 424532
BSocSc, EMBA

Aged 61. Mr Loh has been a Director of the Company since 1 February 2017. He

is an Independent Non-Executive Director of Hong Kong Economic Journal. Prior
tojoining the Company, he was Chief Executive Officer of Digital Broadcasting
Corporation Hong Kong Limited during the period from September 2013 to
January 2017. He has more than 30 years of wide-ranging experience in print,
electronic and new media. Mr Loh was Chief Executive Officer of Hong Kong
Economic Journal from 2010 to 2013. He served as Executive Vice President (News
& Business Information Services) at PCCW Now TV from 2005 to 2010. At Now TV,
he built and launched the first 24-hour business news channel in Hong Kong and
another 24-hour news channel for Now TV platform. During the period from 1994
t0 1999, he was Chief Editor, Publisher and Group Chief Executive Officer of Apple
Daily. He was also News Controller of Cable TV from 1991 to 1994. In 1993, he set
up and ran the first 24-hour news channel in Hong Kong. Except for the above, Mr
Loh also held other senior positions in the media companies, including South China
Media Group and Television Broadcasts Limited. Mr Loh is a Member of Personal
Data (Privacy) Advisory Committee and was Deputy Chairman of Hong Kong News
Executives' Association during the period from January 2016 to January 2017. He
holds a bachelor of social science degree in Journalism and Communication and
an Executive MBA from The Chinese University of Hong Kong.
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Independent Non-Executive Director J&37 IF#TE =

Aged 69. Dr Tsui has been a Director of the Company since 1 April 2001. A
graduate of the University of Hong Kong, Dr Tsui obtained her Doctorate degree

in Professional Studies from Middlesex University, UK. She is the Chief Executive
Officer of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors. She is also Fellow of The Hong
Kong Institution of Engineers, The Hong Kong Institute of Directors, Hong Kong
Management Association and The British Computer Society, Honorary Fellow of
the Hong Kong Association for Computer Education and Chartered Information
Technology Professional. Dr Tsui is holder of Professional Diploma on Corporate
Governance and Directorship. A Justice of the Peace, Dr Tsui is a Member of the
Communications Authority. She was formerly a Wan Chai District Councillor,

a Councillor of Urban Council and Provisional Urban Council and a Member

of Broadcasting Authority. She is Founding Chairman of Hong Kong Chinese
Orchestra. She is an Independent Non-Executive Director of Polytec Asset Holdings
Limited (0208). She was selected as one of the Ten Outstanding Young Persons in
Hong Kong 1981 and awarded IT Achiever of the Year 1992, Member of the Most
Excellent Order of the British Empire in 1997, Bronze Bauhinia Star 2003 and the
Ken Goulding Award for the most outstanding professional doctorate of Middlesex
University 2007.

Independent Non-Executive Director J&37 JFTE =

BBS, MBE, JP, DProf, BA(Econ), FHKIoD, FHKMA, FBCS, CITP, FHKIE, HonFACE, PDipCD
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¥ . GBS, OBE, JP, LLD, DSocSc, HonDSocSc (EdUHK), BA, FCPA (Practising), Hon HKAT, FCA, FCPA (Aust.), FCIS, FHKIoD
i

Aged 63. Dr Li has been a Director of the Company since 16 September 2004. He is
the Senior Partner of Li, Tang, Chen & Co., Certified Public Accountants (Practising)
and an Independent Non-Executive Director of Transport International Holdings
Limited, The Kowloon Motor Bus Company (1933) Limited, Long Win Bus Company
Limited, Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited, SmarTone Telecommunications
Holdings Limited, Wong's International Holdings Limited, Hang Seng Bank Limited
and China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited (formerly known as China
Resources Enterprise, Limited). Dr Li was an Independent Non-Executive Director
of Bank of Communications Co., Ltd. Dr Li is a Member of the 12th National
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, a Member of
the Legislative Council of Hong Kong from 1991 to 2004 and Chairman of its Public
Accounts Committee from 1995 to 2004. He is also a past president of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

ANTER e FETE-TTNFAATBRA
RRREE - AR SRGAMEHEEER
A BESERD - BAERBEBIERERAR -
BEL(—N==)ARAR - EEELARA
A FEEMERRARAR - BIEBESHEE
BRATF - TREBEBBRAR - BERITE
PR A T R 22 R8T (A% ) BBR A R (A& AEEHE
BIXERAR) MBYIFPITES - TELTEE
ZMIBTTRODBRAFIE L IENITES - FiEL
RPBEARBGHEEZRE T _E2HEE®Z
B BRI FE2_TTOFHRLEE
B FERERR - NMNAFE_TTMFEH
FZERNIEEZESER « b AEEZETA
& o

B X K

20165 %k BB ZERAERAR



PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EERSREBEAB[N

DIRECTORS =

- REGRAFHL

Independent Non-Executive Director S8 7 JEH{TE =

BBS, JP, FHKloD
ml .. ‘

Aged 57. Professor Cheung has been a Director of the Company since 19 January
2009. He is the President and Chair Professor of Public Policy at the Education
University of Hong Kong (formerly known as the Hong Kong Institute of Education).
He also holds Advisory and Adjunct Professorships at Fudan University and
Shanghai Jiao Tong University respectively. He obtained a BSc from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong, PhD in Statistics from Universite de Paris VI, and PhD in
Finance from the University of Strathclyde.

He has served as a project coordinator for the Consumer Council in its examination
of the Hong Kong Banking sector. He was Chairman of Core Group on Corporate
Governance, Pacific Economic Cooperation Council and was responsible for drafting
the PECC's guidelines on good corporate governance practice for Asia-Pacific
economies. He has provided consultancy services to the Asian Development Bank,
United Nations ESCAP, Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong, Financial
Services Bureau, Stock Exchange of Hong Kong and SG Securities (HK) Ltd.

Professor Cheung is Chairman of the Social Innovation and Entrepreneurship
Development Fund Task Force, Nursing and Midwifery Sub-Group of the

Steering Committee on Strategic Review on Healthcare Manpower Planning and
Professional Development and the Supervisory Committee of the Asian Bond
Fund (ABF) Hong Kong Bond Index Fund of the Hong Kong Monetary Authority.
He serves on the Commission on Poverty, Exchange Fund Advisory Committee
(EFAC), Products Advisory Committee of Securities and Futures Commission (SFC)
and Steering Committee on Strategic Review on Healthcare Manpower Planning
and Professional Development. He is also a board member of the Hong Kong
Sports Institute Limited. He was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star in 2009, and was
appointed as Justice of the Peace in 2007 by the HKSAR Government.

Professor Cheung was Chairman of the Hong Kong Committee for Pacific Economic
Cooperation (HKCPEC) from 2012 to 2016, Consultation Panel of the West Kowloon
Cultural District Authority from 2009 to 2013 and Advisory Committee on Enhancing
Self-Reliance Through District Partnership Programme (ESR) from 2006 to 2012;
and Member of Minimum Wage Commission from 2011 to 2013, Commission on
Strategic Development from 2007 to 2012, Independent Police Complaints Council
(IPCC) from 2009 to 2012, Operations Review Committee and Witness Protection
Review Board of Independent Commission Against Corruption (ICAC) from 2008

to 2013. He also served as an Ex-officio Member and a Non-official Member of
Social Enterprise Advisory Committee from 2010 to 2012 and from 2012 to 2013
respectively. Professor Cheung was a Part-time Member of Advisory Board of the
Central Policy Unit of the HKSAR Government.
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Dr John YEUNG Hin Chung
teREPIE T AEAL

Independent Non-Executive Director S8 7 JEH{TE =

. SBS, OBE, JP, FHKIoD

Aged 70. Dr Yeung has been a Director of the Company since 31 December 2012.
He has been the Managing Director of The Cross Harbour (Holdings) Limited
(“Cross Harbour”) (Stock Code: 0032) since 1 August 2001 and he also holds
directorships in certain other members of the Cross Harbour group. He is also

an Independent Non-Executive Director of Cordoba Homes Limited and was

an Independent Non-Executive Director of Armada Holdings Limited. Dr Yeung
holds a doctoral degree in Management. Prior to joining Cross Harbour, he had
held various key management positions in the Government of Hong Kong, where
he last served as the Deputy Director of Immigration; and in the private sector,
where he last worked as the Chief Executive of the Shun Hing Group. Dr Yeung
isa Member of the CUHK Advisory Group on Undergraduate Studies in Business
and the HKU SPACE Foundation Steering Committee. He is an Honorary Institute
Fellow of CUHK Business School, Asia-Pacific Institute of Business and a member
of the Board of Governors of the Hong Kong Philharmonic Society.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EERSREBEAE/N

DIRECTORS =

Mr MAK Chun Keung
ZRIBITE

Non-Executive Director JEE1TE =

Aged 76. Mr Mak has been a Director of the Company since 23 May 2001. He
joined The Kowloon Motor Bus Company (1933) Limited (“KMB”) in 1994,
appointed Commercial Director in 2001 and retired in February 2006. He was
Director of KMB's first two joint ventures to operate public bus services in People’s
Republic of China. Mr Mak has over twenty years of experience in international
banking and finance, and has held senior executive positions in foreign and local
banking institutions throughout his career.

Mr John Anthony MILLER
mER Lt

Non-Executive Director JEIfTEF

SBS, OBE, MPA (Harvard), BA (London), FHKIoD

Aged 66. Mr Miller has been a Director of the Company since 20 March 2008.

He retired from the Civil Service in February 2007 as Permanent Representative
of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of China to the World Trade
Organization in Geneva. Key positions held over a career spanning 35 years prior
to Mr Miller's retirement include Permanent Secretary for Financial Services and
the Treasury 2002-2004, Director of Housing and Chief Executive of the Housing
Authority 1996-2002, Director-General of Trade 1993-1996, Director of Marine
1991-1993, Information Coordinator in the Chief Secretary'’s Office 1989-1991 and
Private Secretary to the Governor 1979-1982. Mr Miller is a Non-Executive Director
of Transport International Holdings Limited, The Kowloon Motor Bus Company
(1933) Limited and SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings Limited. Mr Miller
was a Non-Executive Director of SUNeVision Holdings Limited for the period from
1 December 2011 to 31 December 2013 and Chairman of Hong Kong Business
Aviation Centre Limited, a partly-owned subsidiary of Sun Hung Kai Properties
Limited until May 2016. Mr Miller holds an MPA degree from Harvard University
and a BA degree from London University.
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-,

¥

= Non-Executive Director JEE1TE =

ﬂh BA, Ph.D.

Aged 48. Mr Fung has been a Director of the Company since 8 July 2014. He

has been an Executive Director of Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited (“SHKP”), a
Deputy Chairman of SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings Limited, a Vice
Chairman of SUNeVision Holdings Limited, a Non-Executive Director of Transport
International Holdings Limited and a Director of certain subsidiaries of SHKP. He

is also a Director of The Kowloon Motor Bus Company (1933) Limited and Long
Win Bus Company Limited. He is a Member of the Executive Committee of SHKP
and the Chief Executive Officer of the SHKP Group’s non-property related portfolio
investments. Mr Fung obtained an undergraduate degree (Modern History) from
Oxford University and holds a doctoral degree in History and East Asian Languages
from Harvard University. He was a recipient of a Guggenheim Fellowship in 1996.
Mr Fung was a Teaching Fellow at Harvard University from 1993 to 1994 and a
visiting Assistant Professor of History at Brown University from 1996 to 1997.

Mr Fung joined McKinsey & Company (“McKinsey”), a global management
consulting company, in 1997. During his time in McKinsey, he primarily served
clients in China and Hong Kong, and also served institutions in Europe and
Southeast Asia. Mr Fung was the co-leader of the infrastructure practice for
McKinsey. He was the Managing Partner of McKinsey Hong Kong from 2004 to
2010. In 2011, he became a Director of McKinsey globally, being the first Hong
Kong Chinese to become a Director in McKinsey's history. He was also the head of
recruiting for the Asiaregion in McKinseuy.

Mr Fung is a member of the General Committee of the Hong Kong General
Chamber of Commerce. He is the President of the Hong Kong Society for the
Protection of Children, an Honorary Treasurer of The Hong Kong Federation of
Youth Groups and a Council Member of The Hong Kong Management Association.
He is also a Council Member of Sir Edward Youde Memorial Fund and a member of
the Board of the Asian Youth Orchestra.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EERSREBEAE/N

DIRECTORS &=
Mr LEE Luen Fai

Non-Executive Director 3E#1{TE =
BA

Aged 63. Mr Lee has been a Director of the Company since 18 June 2015. He is the
Director of Public Affairs of Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited (“SHKP"). He joined
SHKP in May 2005. He is a veteran of the broadcasting industry, with more than 20
years of experience in the field. He joined Radio Television Hong Kong (RTHK) in
the 70's and has hosted a number of popular programmes including “Talkabout”
and “City Forum”. Mr Lee has also been the Head of Public Affairs for Radio
Television Hong Kong's (RTHK) radio division. In 1993, he was promoted as the
Head of Public and Current Affairs of the television division overseeing all public
and current affairs programmes. He became Controller of Educational Television
in 1996 and was responsible for all educational TV and school programmes. Mr Lee
holds a bachelor of arts degree in Chinese History from University of East Asia (now
known as University of Macau).

Mr Lee has an extensive record of public and community service and is currently
a Member of the Standing Commission on Civil Service Salaries and Conditions of
Service, Hong Kong Advisory Council on AIDS and Election Committee (Transport
Sub-sector). He is also a Non-official Member of Family Council and an Associate
Member of Central Policy Unit of the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region.
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Name

e

Dr John CHAN Cho Chak
PRADEE L ATt
GBS, JP

Ms Winnie NG
(E=liskeen

Mr YUNG Wing Chung
BoKBITE

Mr LOH Chan Stephen
BRI

Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI
REIEL AL
BBS, MBE, JP

Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung
PREFLRTHL
GBS, OBE, JP

Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan Leung
KRR ATt
BBS, JP

Dr John YEUNG Hin Chung
HERE Rt
SBS, OBE, JP

Mr MAK Chun Keung
BRI

Mr John Anthony MILLER
HEMEREE
SBS, OBE

Mr Allen FUNG Yuk Lun
BEBT A

Mr LEE Luen Fai

Name

g

Mr LOH Chan Stephen
BREE

Mr Lawrence CHAN Kwan
BRE9 &

Mr Thomas LO Sui Sing
B S A

Mr Simon SIU Kar Chun
BRIRIEAE

Position held in the Group
RAEBEERNBAL

Chairman
e

Deputy Chairman
EIE

Deputy Chairman
B

Managing Director
ERAKIR

Independent Non-Executive Director
BIUFFMTES

Independent Non-Executive Director
BUENITES

Independent Non-Executive Director
BUIEMITES

Independent Non-Executive Director
BIYFFMTES

Non-Executive Director

FNTESR

Non-Executive Director
IEMITES

Non-Executive Director
EITES

Non-Executive Director
EITES

Position held in the Group
RASBEEENRA

Managing Director
EEgrE

Chief Financial Officer
Elra)

Chief Operating Officer
EIERH

Chief Sales Officer
HEHER

Date of appointment
EEa=

15 January 2001
—ZZ—%—A+AhA

15 January 2001
—ZEZ—%—A+AhA

20 November 2008
—EEN\F+—A=1+H

1 February 2017
—F—+tF-_HA—H

1 April 2001
—ET-FmMA—H

16 September 2004
—TZEMEAA+TRE

19 January 2009
—ZTTENF—-A+IE

31 December 2012
—ZT——F+=-A=+—H

23 May 2001
—TE—FRA-+=H

20 March 2008
—ZETEN\F=A=1+H

8 July 2014
—T-HFEEANH

18 June 2015
—T—RFSATNR

Year joined the Group
MARER 2 F45

February 2017
—E—+F_H

September 2014
—E-MFEAA

September 2008
T N\FNA

October 2010
—ZT—-TF+A
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SUSTAINABLE
FUTURE

We will keep up with our work to
give back to the society, and
supporting charitable organisations
to help those in need.

Jo Yool
erntorumeniol)
AWATeNLN Y.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE - HERERHRE

ABOUT THIS REPORT

Scope of this Report

This is the first annual Environmental, Social and Governance Report of RoadShow
Holdings Limited (“RoadShow” or the “Company”), describing the environmental,
social and governance performance and initiatives of our head office and three
major wholly-owned subsidiaries in Hong Kong, namely, RoadShow Media
Limited, Bus Power Limited and Leader Force Limited. Our Hong Kong operations
represent the majority of RoadShow's investments, and our most significant
environmental and social impacts and influence are from our media sales, design
and management services, and advertising production. For more details of our
businesses, please refer to the Operational Review on pages 8 to 11 of this Annual
Report.

This report highlights our environmental, social and governance issues and
performance, covering the period from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2016,
unless otherwise stated. This report should be read in conjunction with the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 58 to 80 of this Annual Report.

Reporting Standards

This report is prepared in accordance with the updated Environmental, Social and
Governance (ESG) Reporting Guide set out in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“HKEx ESG
Reporting Guide”), as outlined in the Consultation Conclusions — Review of the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide issued in December 2015.

The Company has complied with the “comply or explain” provisions set out in the
HKEx ESG Reporting Guide for the year ended 31 December 2016.

The HKEx ESG Guide Content Index that refers to the relevant information
contained in this report is set out in the Appendix to this report on pages 51 to 57.

Feedback to this Report

If you have any feedback and suggestions about this report, please contact us at:
cosec@roadshow.com.hk.
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ESG MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

Stakeholder Engagement

To further understand our stakeholders’ concerns and expectations, and to
focus this report on the most relevant ESG aspects of our operations, apart from
communicating with a specific group via the regular communication channels,
we engaged an independent consultant to conduct a materiality assessment.
During the assessment, 98 internal and external stakeholders, including

employees, customers, shareholders, business partners, industry associations,

non-governmental organisations (NGOs) and local communities, were invited to
evaluate arange of ESG issues in relation to our operations through questionnaire
survey and interviews. The selection of stakeholders was based on the relevance
to and understanding of our operations. This enables us to understand what our
stakeholders consider material and discuss our future plan with them to strive for

continuous improvement in our operations and performance.

Materiality Assessment

List of material issues:

Rk - 4 EREREEMRML

BFOERE
RTE-SEBRFNENEINNE UL
AHREBERERMNEFBRERATINIR
BoHeakEaER  REBRTRARREHRE
ERIE AR - RPN R B AR ET
ERMRHE - EFHE BT EG T 98 ANWED
RoNEFiInE (BIREER - BF - IR - £
B TXHE - FFBUNAB NIRRT B
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FNRE @ REREE © i EHNAER
SR B AP EY ZE 755 10 B 22 Ko S R API O R A OB
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EEZHRE

ESG Aspects Issues
R -HERERER £z
Operating practices Protection of consumer data and privacy « Protection of intellectual property rights
B REHBEEER RALE IR ERE
Product/Service quality + Supply chain management
i/ RisE 8 HrEEEE
Customer service « Anti-corruption practices
25 AR REFHER
Employment and labour practices Labour standard + Occupational health and safety
EREBIER T 2R B EREZ S
Workforce and turnover « Development and training
BERESRKLLE R RE

Community
a4

Community investments
HERE

Environmental
B

Waste management and reduction initiatives = Energy consumption and efficiency

REEYEIE MoK E L BRI
Material use and efficiency
RHE P R M5 A e

initiatives
RERBRER F R EETE

The above serves as a general overview of the ESG issues which are material

to RoadShow's operations. Based on the responses from the stakeholders,

Community and Operating Practices were considered material.

In this report, we have identified 16 material issues. The disclosure of our
management and performance on these ESG issues will be reported in the relevant

sections of this report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE -t EREREE

MESSAGE FROM THE CHAIRMAN

| am delighted to present our first Environmental, Social and Governance Report.

Our core objective aims at sustaining our business development and growth
through value creation for our people, clients, consumers, community, supply
chain and the environment across our corporate culture as a whole. At the same
time, we are committed to creating value for stakeholders by offering advertising
sales platforms and sales expertise. We help our clients market their products

and services to reach the masses through our effective advertising medium while
delivering high-quality programmes and infotainment for bus passengers every day.

The ongoing corporate development of RoadShow is a process that must take
into account the views of our stakeholders. During the year, we conducted a
stakeholder engagement exercise with internal and external stakeholders, to
gain a fuller understanding of their perceptions and expectations on our ESG
performance. Their feedback is reflected in this report which helps us formulate
future strategic directions for enhancing our sustainability performance.

Our employees are the most valuable asset of the Group and the primary force in
driving our business growth on a sustainable basis. We take care of our employees
by maintaining a safe and healthy working environment. We will continue

to enhance our workplace health and safety, and offer opportunities for our
employees to grow.

Along the way, we aim not only at providing a better return to our clients and
shareholders but also raising environmental and social awareness among the
general public by utilising our business edge, such as producing and broadcasting
corporate social responsibility programmes and initiatives.

Looking ahead, we will work tirelessly to give back to the communities that sustain
our business. We will continue doing everything possible to support our partnering
NGOs and charitable organisations in order to help the needy and make Hong
Kong a better place for all.

Dr John CHAN Cho Chak

Chairman

Hong Kong, 17 March 2017
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ABOUT THE GROUP

Our Business

RoadShow is publicly listed in Hong Kong with a history of 16 years. Headquartered
in Hong Kong, the Group is principally engaged in the provision of media sales,
design services and advertising production for Multi-media On-Board (“BUS-TV"),
transit vehicle exteriors (“BUS-BODY”) and interiors (“IN-BUS"), online portal,
mobile apps, shelters and outdoor signage advertising business. We also offer
integrated marketing services covering these advertising platforms.

ESG Strategy and Policy

Our Group is committed to a high standard of corporate social responsibility
(CSR). We focus on minimising the impact of our operations on the environment
and promoting environmental awareness among employees and the public.

We believe that RoadShow can play a positive role in the development of the
local community through our community investment. At RoadShow, we treat all
employees with fairness and respect, and facilitate their career development.

The following ESG policies guide the Group’s business and operational decisions,
and deliver our commitments:

» meeting all applicable legal and regulatory requirements on CSR matters
= pursuing good CSR practices in our operations
« minimising the Group’s potential impact on the environment

« promoting environmental awareness among employees and the public and
minimising its carbon footprints through efficient use of resources
and employing green office initiatives

« providing a safe and healthy working environment to employees

« supporting our partnering NGOs and charitable organisations to help the
needy

= engaging our stakeholders and taking into account their interests to achieve
sustainable business growth

ESG Prospects

RoadShow as a group will continue to improve its CSR performance and actively
pursue environmental sustainability. In particular, we will adopt new and innovative
measures in handling material issues concerned by our stakeholders, including
waste reduction and intellectual property rights protection.

We will keep up with our work to give back to the society, and continue supporting
our partnering NGOs and charitable organisations to help those in need. Moreover,
we understand the importance of communication in our approach towards
sustainability. We will keep leveraging our business edge to promote social and
environmental awareness.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE - 4 EREREE

ESG HIGHLIGHTS IN 2016

Environmental Initiatives and Awards

Organised the ECO Star Awards 2016

Launched an environmental protection programme called “Critical 18 years”
In-house green office practices — World Green Organisation (WGO)’s United ¢
Nations Sustainable Development Goals — Green Office Awards Labelling Scheme
Participated in WGOQ's Less Waste, Let's Do it? and Green Heroes 2016
Participated in World Wide Fund (WWF)'s Earth Hour 2016

Participated in Greeners Action’s Lai See Reuse and Recycling Programme

Social Initiatives and Awards

Our Industrial Participations

40

it

Cooperated with The Salvation Army to organise a campaign called “The
Circle of Goodness” and organised “The Circle of Goodness” Volunteer
Activities, including:

—  Fun Dayfor the Elderly

—  DIY Workshop with Mentally Handicapped Persons
—  Family Day for Grass-roots Families

—  Fitness Training Fun Day with the Elderly

—  Big Bowl Feast for the Elderly

Supported Suicide Prevention Services’ Actions For Love 2016

Received Family-Friendly Employers Awards and Special Mention Award
in 2015/16 Family-Friendly Employers Award Scheme

Affiliated Member of the Association of Accredited Advertising Agencies
of Hong Kong (HK4As) .

Participated as major sponsor of HK4As Kam Fan Awards to recognise the
best advertising works in the market .

Membership in Sub-Committee on Promotion & Publicity of Volunteer
Service for Volunteer Movement in the Social Welfare Department — Mr o
Thomas LO (Chief Operating Officer)

Membership in Promotion and Fundraising Committee for Agency for
Volunteer Service—Mr Larry YIP (Senior Vice President (Marketing & Projects))
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OUR CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Governance Structure

Our Group recognises the importance of good corporate governance practices in
directing and guiding our Group using professional and ethical business practices.
Our capable Board of Directors (the “Board”), effective risk management and
internal controls, and dedication to accountability and transparency with our
shareholders are core elements of our governance principles. We aim at achieving
sustainable business development by taking into account the interests of our
stakeholders while ensuring that our business is conducted in compliance with all
applicable legal and regulatory requirements.

Our Board is responsible for the success and sustainable development of the
Group. The Board provides direction and gives approval on matters concerning the
Company’s business strategies, policies and plans, while the day-to-day business
operations are delegated to the Managing Director and senior management.

In order to oversee various aspects of the Company’s affairs, the Board has
established five Board Committees, namely, the Executive Committee, the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Risk Committee. For details of the Board and the Board Committees, please refer
to the Corporate Governance Report on pages 58 to 80 of this Annual Report.

Code of Conduct

We set high standards of professionalism and ethicality for our Directors and
employees in order to maintain our position as a top-performing media company
in Hong Kong. Our Code of Conduct provides guidance on responsibility towards
the Group's shareholders, customers and the community. It sets out the rules
and policies on conflicts of interest, procurement and tendering procedures,
confidentiality of information, bribery and corrupt practices, and equality of
employment opportunity.

All Directors and employees are required to abide by our professional standards
and comply with our Code of Conduct. Any member in breach of the Code of
Conduct is subject to disciplinary action.

Anti-corruption Measures

We are committed to providing a fair and efficient business and working
environment for all of our employees. It is the Company’s policy to prohibit
bribery and corrupt practices. RoadShow complies with the Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance and will act without delay if legal case arises. Our Code of Conduct
describes all types of anti-corruption practices, such as bribery and money
laundering, in detail so as to avoid any misunderstanding by our employees

and prepare them to react accordingly. It also recognises employee’s right and
responsibility to report any related cases. During the year, there were no incidents
of corruption reported within the Group.
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OUR EMPLOYEES

People are our most valuable asset. Our dedicated employees are the keys to
success. RoadShow ensures that our employees are well taken care of through
adopting policies that aim at developing their skills to maximum potential,
maintaining their health and safety, upholding our equal opportunities principle,
and maintaining a safe working environment for all.

People

We are an employer that provides equal employment opportunities. Employment,
recruitment, training, terms of employment, benefits, promotions are offered
regardless of the individual's race, sex, marital status, pregnancy, disability

or family status. Our non-discrimination commitment is demonstrated by

our Equal Employment Opportunity Policy to ensure employees are treated
equally and fairly under all circumstances. Our policy is fully compliant with the
Sex Discrimination Ordinance, Disability Discrimination Ordinance and Family
Status Discrimination Ordinance. Complaints or cases of discrimination can be
directly reported to the Head of Human Resources & Administration. A thorough
investigation will be run, with appropriate follow-up actions to department head/
immediate supervisor and the staff involved.

We also have a firm belief in providing a harassment-free working environment. As
such, we have adopted the Elimination of Sexual Harassment Policy in accordance
with the Sex Discrimination Ordinance.

Our emphasis on integrity is reflected in a firm commitment to uphold the
Prevention of Bribery Ordinance, which specifies that neither employees nor
Directors shall accept any advantages without the permission of the Company.

As a top player of the media industry, we devote ourselves to protecting the
privacy of all staff, including their personal data, and treat all information in the
strictest confidence.

With our clear policy and dedicated efforts, no cases of child or forced labour has
been recorded in our operations.
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At the end of 2016, the total headcount measured in full-time equivalent was 123.
The breakdowns of the employee number are shown in the table below:

Total number of workforce by gender
BRURE S NEEEH

As of 31 December 2016
R-F-—AF+-A=+-A

@

65

Q!!, <30
£A58

Keeping Our People Healthy and Safe
Occupational health and safety

We are committed to ensuring our staff's health and safety, as they are integral

to our smooth operation. As part of our commitment, we provide a good and safe
working environment for our staff, and comply with all occupational health and
safety laws in Hong Kong that are relevant to us. In 2016, there were no records of
work-related incidents causing fatalities or injuries, nor lost days due to work injury
or occupational diseases.

Sexuval Harassment

Our staff are well-protected from all forms of sexual harassment with our policy. As
stated under the Sex Discrimination Ordinance with which we are compliant, sexual
harassment at work is unlawful and prohibited and have the right to complain or
report any cases of workplace sexual harassment. Complaints or reports will be
directed to the Head of Human Resources & Administration and will be followed
by a thorough investigation and appropriate action. All cases will be treated in the
strictest confidence, and the complainant will not be victimised or penalised. This
demonstrates our motivation in providing a safe and favourable work environment
forall.

REZF—RFR - 2B BERARR
123% » BB ABHBAAR TRIR :

Total number of workforce by age group
RERAERNE S NEEAH

As of 31 December 2016
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Keeping Our People Happy
Compensation and Benefits

Further to our commitment to staff's well-being, we ensure that they get sufficient
leave as suggested by Hong Kong labour laws. They are entitled to one rest day
every seven days, as required by the local laws. They also enjoy more holidays
than those that are statutorily listed (i.e. 12 days).

In addition, we have special arrangements that enable our staff to leave work early
on special occasions, such as Mid-Autumn Festival, Christmas Eve and Chinese
New Year's Eve, allowing them to spend more time with their families and loved
ones. Our newly married staff are also entitled to enjoy ten calendar days of leave.

By organising staff-friendly activities, we aim at promoting staff relationships and
effective communication to foster a good working environment. Encouraged by
the very promising results of previous events, we intend to continue holding such
activities in the future.

Remuneration

We have a systematic process to ensure staff are paid in a timely and regular
manner. Our pay structures aim at rewarding staff's abilities and performance. Our
staff members are also eligible for the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (MPF),
allowing them to make their own investment choices that would directly benefit
them after retirement (after turning 65 or retiring after the age of 60).

Keeping Our People Educated and Trained
Development and Training

We are committed to developing our staff and enhancing their skills and
knowledge so that they contribute fully to our growth and success. We provide
development opportunities and programmes which are challenging and
participative in nature to hone our staff's professional and personal skills. During
the year, a seminar on the Competition Ordinance was held to update our staff
members on the latest changes to the Ordinance.

In 2016, all staff received a total of 260 hours of training through attending both
internal and external training courses.
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OUR COMMUNITY

RoadShow believes it is important to proactively contribute to our local
communities and maximise the effectiveness of our activities. We organised
various activities throughout the year to reach out to as many groups of people as
possible. As part of our inclusion and diversity principle, the nature of our activities
differs one from the next, demonstrating our flexibility in organising such events,
and our enthusiasm in learning more about the different and complex needs of our
society.

Giving back to Our Local Community

Our active participation in positive community-wide activities demonstrates our
commitment to being a socially responsible corporate citizen. We always try our
best to properly address the community’s needs through our events. In addition,
we encourage our clients and their staff to be responsible citizens through
organising a myriad of CSR initiatives, spreading our vision down the value chain.
Some of the events organised or sponsored this year are as follows:
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Name of the events Date Help offered
SEE AR =p=t EAFRX
“Volunteer Work for Elderly Conference” and 22 March 2016 We supported by offering post-event coverage of

“Volunteer Work, Golden Years Seminar” —E—RFE=A=+=H

[FRATZRETIEMIT] BMmE R [FETIE

the event'’s press conference.

BIEEBARERE TEDNCERTE - K

—RemEem g XFF e

20th anniversary charity performance 21 May 2016 We supported by offering post-event coverage of
for Suicide Prevention Services — Charity —E—RFRA=T—H the event'’s press conference.

Children’s Cantonese Opera Fragrance River BMEEDAERERE TEDNLERBEE - LXK
[ERAGTHE - ZEREEEIAET XFF e

20 AFESREL

HK Givers Day January 2016 The event was organised by the Outstanding Givers
BAARTH —E—RF—A Association to encourage the general public to

volunteer by serving the needy. We supported the
event by covering the event's press conference.
TEEN R ARt R B - B ESEIARA LTSN

H R - REBRALRE - RIAHRE TIEEHN
AERTE - URXF -

In 2016, we took part in a series of “The Circle of Goodness” volunteering activities
such as Fun Day for the Elderly, DIY Workshop with Mentally Handicapped
Persons, Family Day for the Grass-roots Families, Fitness Training Fun Day with the
Elderly, Big Bowl Feast for the Elderly and more organised by The Salvation Army.
Our participation contributed over 130 service hours.
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OUR ENVIRONMENT

RoadShow understands the implications of climate change for the entire world
and our indirect impact on the environment through the services we provide to
customers. We include principles of sustainable development in all aspects of our
operations to reduce our impact on the planet as much as possible. Looking ahead,
we are moving towards the direction of environmental sustainability in all aspects
of our operations.

Natural Resources

RoadShow is committed to raising the public awareness of environmental
conservation, while reducing our own footprint through various means. We are
continuously looking for innovative ways to showcase the consequences of
climate change, while keeping some of our more successful initiatives. We were
deemed by the WGO as one of the pioneers in raising environmental awareness
in the media industry. On top of that, we are constantly looking for ways to
implement more sustainable practices in our offices to further reduce our overall
environmental impact.

Advertising Sticker and Paper Usage 2016

—E-AFRERERERAE

116,049 kg/2 R

Sticker for BUS-BODY, IN-BUS and Billboards
BtHES  BrHEERESREE

Emissions

We are acutely aware of the need to reduce our production of
greenhouse gases. This prompts us to employ green office initiatives
and use our resources efficiently. We will proactively explore different
wauys in reducing carbon emissions in the future. The conversion of
the amount of greenhouse gas emissions from the use of electricity is
around 119 tonnes.

Remark:

! GHG emissions data is presented in carbon dioxide equivalent and was based on the
carbon emission factor for electricity purchased references information released by
CLPin 2015.
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Recycling Our Waste

In order to minimise the amount of waste produced, RoadShow actively recycles
paper, fluorescent light tubes, toner cartridges and electronic waste. The amount
of recycled waste in 2016 was estimated as below:

EPEE L)
RIEMELBRMBERERE - BHBER
ElARSR - E MNRREFEED - RZ
TRNFRRHEEYDEEGTO

Recycled

2K

Paper waste recycled FrEIK EE ZE AR R 1,056 kg/ AT
Fluorescent light tube waste recycled EEN A= 48 pcs/
Toner cartridge waste recycled B EEZE N & 127 pcs/1#
Electronic waste recycled el EFEEEY 19 computers/ & B Ji§
7 printers/ & #T EN#%

15 monitors/ {855

Conserving Our Energy and Water

We devote ourselves to energy conservation as is well-demonstrated by our use
of more energy-efficient LED lights and our active participation in WWF Earth
Hour 2016. Electricity consumption accounts for most of our energy use. We will
continuously look for ways to improve our performance in energy efficiency.

REREERRKER
BIPIRHRERLR - MiEHENE S IEER
TERMEOEETR - 2IEERAE RN
LED B REHGSEHM RERES S HIER—/\F
2016 - HMEAZZHEREE N - HMIHE
BESKIRE AR R RIEN X o

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type HERESMNEER REZERES 2016

Total electricity consumption (MWh) RIEE=E CKELE)

220.61

Our motivation in environmental sustainability has driven us to continuously
improve water efficiency and reduce water consumption.

Water consumption in total and intensity BEKEREE

BAEEESREAFEER AL ERER
THOKERRES - AP FEK °

2016

Total water consumption (cubic metre) BFEKE (LA K)

240.98
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Environmental Commitments

As part of our commitments, we regularly support events organised by
environmental or social NGOs. Our support aims at enhancing awareness and
allowing our employees to participate in these events.

o ECOStar Awards 2016

We are proud to organise the ECO Star Awards for the 5 successive year. The
aim of these awards is to garner public support for environmental protection
and more sustainable development. The Awards recognise and reward
individuals who are making vital contributions to this end.

o WGO-Less Waste, Let's Do it?

We participated in WGO's “Less Waste, Let's Do it?” programme, raising
environmental awareness among corporate sponsors, arousing public concern
about waste reduction, and building a green society together.

o  WWF —Earth Hour 2016

We are also active supporters in numerous meaningful local green events.

In particular, we sponsored the WWF — Earth Hour airtime for promoting

this internationally popular event, and showed post-event coverage of the
occasion in our full-fleet buses for seven days. Additionally, the lights of our
billboards at Hip Kee Godown No. 2, Cheong Wan Road, and Aberdeen Tunnel
were switched off to show our support for the worthy cause.

« Greeners Action —Lai See Reuse and Recycling Programme 2016

We supported the programme organised by Greeners Action by sponsoring
them with an advertisement placement on our BUS-TV platform.

o WGO - Green Office Awards

Apart from societal initiatives, we also play our part in environmental
conservation within the RoadShow offices. Various green office practices and
initiatives have been employed to raise awareness among our staff, and hence
reduce our overall footprint. Our environmental efforts were honoured by the
WGO's United Nations Sustainable Development Goals — Green Office Awards.

In addition to supporting events organised by environmental or social NGOs, our
Group launched an environmental protection programme called “Critical 18 years”
on our BUS-TV platform. The programme is intended to alert Hongkongers to the
likely impact of global warming-related phenomena such as heatwaves, global
famines, super typhoons and rain and snow storms between now and 2033.
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OUR PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

Responsible Procurement

We aim at keeping strict procurement practices so as to ensure the utmost
quality of our supply chain and reduce any supply chain management risks. In
2016, we engaged a total of 395 suppliers solely from Hong Kong. By purchasing
the products and services that we need locally, our Group reduces the carbon
emissions associated with transport and shipping.

Our Group has established long-term and good relationship with the suppliers
which ensures steady supply so as to provide high quality products and services
to customers.

Supply Chain Management
Quality Assurance

Delivering top-quality service to customers is our number one priority. To improve
our customers’ satisfaction, we actively collect customer feedback and complaints.
Complaints received would be investigated within 24 hours, followed by taking
appropriate actions so as to continuously offer top-quality entertainment and
comfort to our passengers.

Supply Chain Management

Effective supply chain management can help to increase our operational efficiency
and minimise ESG risk. Maintaining an effective and compliant supply chain is

part of our daily operations. We have a Billboard Services Procurement Procedure
and Policy in communicating the standards we uphold to our suppliers and staff.

In addition, our Contractor Performance Evaluation Guideline is published to
constantly review services of our contractors.
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Product/Service Quality
Customer privacy

We strive to build confidence in our customers, particularly through privacy and
personal data protection. For our e-commerce app, Shop2gather, personal data of
our online members are well-protected by our staff, as we constantly remind our
people of the importance of information security. RoadShow also complies with
the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance and the guidelines issued by the Office of
the Privacy Commissioner for Personal Data to ensure our members’ privacy are
safeguarded.

Customer Service

RoadShow is not complacent. We are constantly seeking new ways to enhance
our clients' satisfaction of our products and services. We have commissioned
survey specialists, Nielsen, to assess the effectiveness of our BUS-BODY and BUS-
TV campaigns for our clients since 2010, and more than 120 campaigns have been
surveyed. The information is vital for us in understanding whether our services and
products are adequate and effective. In 2016, there were no records of complaints
received or recalled products due to safety and health reasons.

On the other hand, we respect and value intellectual property rights. We prevent
the use of pirate software and infringement of copyrights.
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HKEx ESG Reporting Guide
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Aspect Al: Emissions

[EE A1 : BER

General Disclosure
—RRHER

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions

discharges into water and land, and generation

of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

BRRERIOREREEFEM MK R LA

5 BEREBEEERVHNELSY

(@) B &

(b) BFHEETABEATENEEEERE
BlEy &R

About the Group: ESG Strategy and Policy;
Our Environment: Emissions; Conserving
Our Energy and Water, Recycling Our
Waste

BRAEE R (g RERRAE MR
BMIHIRE - HE ¢ (REREIR RKEIR -
Bl REZE )

KPIAL.1
RASEARAUEIR A1.1

The types of emissions and respective
emissions data.

HERERE AR R R AR

Our Environment: Emissions

FPIRIREL « BRI

KPIAL.2
RASRARAIETR A1.2

Greenhouse gas emissions in total and,
where appropriate, intensity.

BERBENER (WER) BE -

Our Environment: Emissions

FPIRIREE « BRI

KPIAL3
RASRARAIETR A1.3

Total hazardous waste produced and,
where appropriate, intensity.

FELRZEEDEER (WER) BE -

Our Environment: Recycling Our Waste
HPIRE - EWEEEY)

KPIAL1.4
RASRAAAIETR A1.4

Total non-hazardous waste produced and,
where appropriate, intensity.

FELEZEEDEER (WER) BE -

Our Environment: Recycling Our Waste
HFIIRE - W EREY

KPIA1.5
RASEAAARIETR A1.5

Description of measures to mitigate
emissions and results achieved.

HUREBE BB R HE R P AS AR ©

Our Environment: Environmental
Commitments

BPIERE « BIREGE

KPIA1.6
RASEARARIETR A1.6

Description of how hazardous and non-
hazardous wastes are handled, reduction
initiatives and results achieved.
HEREERESTEENN L  REEE
EMEIERTEKR -

Our Environment: Recycling Our Waste
HMEVRIE - BUREEY
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Aspect A2: Use of Resources
BHE A2 : BREA

General Disclosure

Policies on the efficient use of resources,

About the Group: ESG Strategy and Policy;

— R " including energy, water and other raw Our Environment: Recycling Our Waste;
materials. Conserving Our Energy and Water
BREAER (BEERR - KREMEME) FRAEE IRIE g REARE REBUR
HIBR © HMOVRE - CIWREERY) - RERLR KK
=
KPIA2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption Our Environment: Conserving Our Energy

ABHERIERR A2.1

by type in total and intensity.
RPRIEI S ERE R SRR R

and Water
BMIRIRE - RERERIKEIR

KPIA2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity. Our Environment: Conserving Our Energy
RRSHERIEIR A2.2 HEKE R o and Water

HMIHIRE « (REREIR KA IR
KPIA2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives ~ Our Environment: Conserving Our Energy

PRERIERE A2.3

and results achieved.
H il B8R A e 5T 8 RIS AR ©

and Water; Environmental Commitments
BMHIRIE - (RELRRKER ¢ RIRAEGE

KPIA2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in Our Environment: Conserving Our Energy
FAIRERUEIZE A2.4 sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water and Water

efficiency initiatives and results achieved. HPIIRIE ¢ R RRKE R

i sRERE A KR _E R AERIRRE - AR

FIK et 8 R TR RR -
KPIA2.5 Total packaging material used for finished Our Environment: Natural Resources

PRERIERE A2.5

products and, if applicable, with reference to
per unit produced.
SRDFABEMENAER (WEA) B4
EBALE -

BPWERE - RRER

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

M A3 : IRIEMARAER

General Disclosure

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant

About the Group: ESG Strategy and Policy;

— R EE impact on the environment and natural Our Environment: Natural Resources;
resources. Recycling Our Waste; Environmental
_ S . Commitments
BUE T AERIE RAR B RE EAT 2R N
B - : " BNAEE : B HEREARERE
& BMEIRE « RABR  BUREEY)
IRIRAGE
KPIA3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities Our Environment: Natural Resources;
RS IEIR A3 onthe environmentand natural resourcesandthe  Recycling Our Waste; Environmental

actions taken to manage them.
HEB R EIRERRABERNEALE R
ERNERAETENTE -

Commitments
BMIRIRE « RAER  BIREEEY) : IR
REGE
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Aspect B1: Employment
[EE B1 : {Ef%

General Disclosure
— R

Information on:
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and

regulations that have a significant impact
on theissuer

relating to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours,
rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits and welfare

BT R - BIERE - TERS K

R FEHE 2t RERUREAFE

KAgFH

(a) BER : &

(b) BFHBEITABE
k=g

FENERER IR

Our Employees: Keeping Our People
Happy

Our Corporate Governance: Code of
Conduct

HHES « AR
BFIMERER - BT EA

KPIB1.1
RASEAR RIS B1.1

Total workforce by gender, employment
type, age group and geographical region.
RIER - BIEAREY - FEAER KR E D HE
B4egr -

Our Employees: People
ZMEEE - BT

KPIB1.2
HREMIERE B1.2

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group
and geographical region.

RIER - FieAlR MR SRR AL X

Our Employees: People
HFEESR : BT
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Aspect B2: Health and Safety
[EMHE B2 : @FREZE

General Disclosure
— R

Information on:
(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working

environment and protecting employees from

occupational hazards.

BRRM T2 TIERE RREE S R

=

(@) B5R + &

(b) BFEETABEALENH@ERZLR
BlE &R}

Our Employees: Keeping Our People
Healthy and Safe

BMWEE - RFBETRERZE

KPIB2.1
RASRAE AR B2.1

Number and rate of work-related fatalities.
A T EBE ML M ABUREL % -

Our Employees: Keeping Our People
Healthy and Safe

BMWEE - REBRTRERZE

KPIB2.2
RASRARAIETR B2.2

Lost days due to work injury.
ETERATERE -

Our Employees: Keeping Our People
Healthy and Safe

HMES - RFETRERLE

KPIB2.3
RASRARAIETR B2.3

Description of occupational health and
safety measures adopted; how they are
implemented and monitored.

R PTER AN B SR FR B 2 246 1 - WA S B
HITRERTE -

Our Employees: Keeping Our People
Healthy and Safe

BMWEE - REBRTRERLE

Aspect B3: Development and Training
[EH B3 : R KiEl

General Disclosure

Policies onimproving employees’ knowledge

Our Employees: Keeping Our People

— " and skills for discharging duties at work. Educated and Trained
Description of training activities. RPIWES : 1246815 Rz
HRARTHE 8 B 1T TVEIE A AN E S B AR AR
R o fRIIF RS o

KPIB3.1 The percentage of employees trained by Our Employees: Keeping Our People

RASEAR RIS B3.1

gender and employee category.
ZERIREEHEANEIDHZIEET AL ©

Educated and Trained
BMWOEE - REES RIE

KPIB3.2
RASARARIETR B3.2

The average training hours completed per

employee by gender and employee category.

BIERIRERFAES - SEREATAEIN
TR -

Our Employees: Keeping Our People
Educated and Trained

BPIES « RIGEE RIE
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Aspect B4: Labour Standards
BT B4 : BT %A

General Disclosure
— R

Information on:
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and

regulations that have a significant impact

on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labour.

B IEE T kg HITH) ¢

(@) BE &

(b) BTHETABEAXENHBEEZRA
BlEyE R}

Our Employees: People
HfeES - BT

KPIB4.1 Description of measures to review Our Employees: People
RASRIEIEIE B4 employment practices to avoid child and KFWIES BT
forced labour.
He g AT RSB (] B FE A R 52 2 T Se5R I 85
To
KPIB4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such Our Employees: People
RASERIEIR B4.2 practices when discovered. HFWIES : BT

i e 335 B B LR B R B R 1B L AT R ELAY

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
B B5 : {fEEEE

General Disclosure
— R E

Policies on managing environmental and
social risks of the supply chain.

EEHEENRER S RARBR

Our Products and Services: Responsible
Procurement; Supply Chain Management
BMOMERRRT : LBEEN EHE
HrEEER

KPIB5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Our Products and Services: Responsible
RASERUEIR BS.1 MBS L EEEE - Procurement

BMERERE - LABEENF B
KPIB5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging Our Products and Services: Supply Chain
FAREBUEIZ B5.2 suppliers, number of suppliers where the Management

practices are being implemented, how they
are implemented and monitored.
AR R ERIED] - AERTERE
IR S E - R ARIEDIRRITRER
% -

BMNERRRY : HEEEE
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Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

[EMH B6 : EmAE

General Disclosure
— R

Information on:
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and

regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters relating to
products and services provided and methods
of redress.

ERMREERMRENERELZS

B ZERABEEE A RER AR

(@) BUER : &

(b) BFEBEITABEATENEBEAERE
BlEyE Rt -

Our Products and Services:

Supply Chain Management; Product/
Service Quality; Customer Service

HPIRVE B ART -
HERER B/ REEER  TPRS

KPIB6.1
R B MHE1R B6. 1

Percentage of total products sold or shipped
subject to recalls for safety and health
reasons.

EEREERERERT AR EEFIZAM
ACWE B DL °

Our Products and Services:
Customer Service

BPIWERNRY - EPRE

KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related Our Products and Services:
RASERIIEIR B6.2 complaints received and how they are dealt ~ Customer Service

with. HPOER KRR « 2P RS

BEERAR B T BRI AHER 21 B A S 77 0%
KPIB6.3 Description of practices relating to observing ~ Our Products and Services:
RASREIETT B6.3 and protecting intellectual property rights. Customer Service

ol R N ARE AR E R A ARV B Em &R : &P R
KPIB6.4 Description of quality assurance processand ~ Our Products and Services: Quality
RS EIETE B6.4 recall procedures. Assurance

H U S i iR IR S mm B AR T e BMMERKRRTY - BERTE
KPIB6.5 Description of consumer data protectionand ~ Our Products and Services:
RASREIETT B6.5 privacy policies, how they are implemented Customer Privacy

and monitored.
FEAUH & & B RMRE RALBBUR - LA RAERE
1TREER L ©

BPIMER LRSS - FELE
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Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
[EmE B7 : RE)S

General Disclosure Information on: Our Corporate Governance:
—RRIREE (a) the policies; and Anti-corruption Measures
(b) compliance with relevant laws and HMERER | RESHETE
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering.
BRI - 3R - BEFRERER
(@) BUK : &
(b) BFHBETAREAZENHBEEZLS
BlEy &R
KPIB7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding Our Corporate Governance:

RABRE RIS BT 1

corrupt practices brought against the issuer
or its employees during the reporting period
and the outcomes of the cases.
RERBREETASEREEREVEFERN
B FARMHEE RFAER ©

Anti-corruption Measures
B EEER : RESHEE

KPIB7.2
RASRARARIETR BT .2

Description of preventive measures and
whistle-blowing procedures, how they are
implemented and monitored.

R B EEHE i R AR - A RARRARIT R &S
8BIE °

Our Corporate Governance:
Anti-corruption Measures

BPNEEER - RESHEE

Aspect B8: Community Investment
[EMHE B8 : HERE

General Disclosure

Policies on community engagement to

Our Community: Giving Back to Our Local

—RRINEE understand the needs of the communities Community

where the issuer operates and to ensure HFE - EETE

its activities take into consideration the

communities’ interests.

BRI R EIR T R EMEAL R B 206

REEBES®E Bt EFZSAIBEE -
KPIB8.1 Focus areas of contribution. Our Community: Giving Back to Our Local
FABEESIETR B8.1 SR EEEE o Community

PR - st R

KPIB8.2 Resources contributed to the focus area. Our Community: Giving Back to Our Local
RASREIEIE B8.2 EEE G E SR AR Community

HHIHE - mEEtR

016%8 EamEgRasRA7m 57



\

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

The Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) have
placed strong emphasis on maintaining high standards of corporate governance
and believe that good corporate governance provides a solid and sound
framework to assist the Board of Directors (the “Board”) in fulfilling its duties and
responsibilities to the Group and its shareholders. The Board also believes that
good corporate governance practices are important to protect the interests of our
shareholders and to build the investors’ confidence.

In March 2005, the Board adopted the “RoadShow Code on Corporate
Governance” (the “RoadShow Code”) and the Company has implemented the
RoadShow Code since then. The RoadShow Code was updated from time to time in
accordance with the amendments to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

Compliance with the Corporate Governance Code

The Company has complied with all the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules throughout the
year ended 31 December 2016.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Overall Accountability

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are individually and collectively
accountable to the shareholders for the success and sustainable development of
the Company. The Board provides direction and approval in relation to matters
concerning the Company'’s business strategies, policies and plans whilst the day-
to-day business operations are delegated to the Managing Director and the senior
management. The Board is accountable to the shareholders and in discharging

its corporate accountability, every Director is required to pursue excellence in the
interests of the shareholders and fulfill his or her fiduciary duties by applying the
required level of skills, care and diligence to a standard in accordance with the
statutory requirements.

Board Composition

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Board has twelve Directors, comprising
one Executive Director, four Independent Non-Executive Directors (“INEDs”) and
seven Non-Executive Directors (“NEDs”). The INEDs constitute one-third of the
Board. These INEDs bring a wide range of business and financial experience to
the Board, which contributes to the effective direction of the Group. One of these
INEDs possesses appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise. The Company has received from each INED a
written confirmation of his or her independence pursuant to the independence
guidelines set outin Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers that all INEDs are
independent.
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Board Structure

ESERE

Board of Directors
EFg

INEDs + NEDs
BEIFITES

ZHBTES

MD
BREBRKE

Executive Committee Audit Committee Remuneration Committee | Nomination Committee Risk Committee
TRERE ERERY FHER® REERY RBRERE

NEDs MD INEDs NEDs INEDs NED
BFH + BEE BB + B BB + B
TE= ks TES TES TES TES

On 16 December 2016, Mr LOH Chan Stephen was appointed as the Managing
Director (“MD"), an Executive Director and a member of the Executive Committee
of the Company with effect from 1 February 2017. Upon the appointment of Mr.
LOH as the Managing Director, Mr Lawrence CHAN Kwan ceased to be Acting
Chief Executive Officer while continuing to serve as Chief Financial Officer of the
Company with effect from the same dauy.

Profiles of all Directors are set out on pages 24 to 32 of this Annual Report.

An updated list of Directors identifying their roles and functions is maintained on
the websites of the Company and Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited
(“"HKEX").

Board Diversity Policy

The Group adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) in
August 2013. The Company recognised and embraced the benefits of having
adiverse Board to the quality of its performance. The Board Diversity Policy
aimed to set out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. In designing the
Board’s composition, Board diversity has been considered based on a range of
perspectives including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard to the benefits of
diversity on the Board.

INEDs NED INED NEDs
BEIFH + B BEIHFH + B
TES TES TES TES
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Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The ultimate
decision will be based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will
bring to the Board.

The Nomination Committee will review and monitor the implementation of the
Board Diversity Policy from time to time to ensure its effectiveness.

Board Responsibilities and Delegation

The Board is responsible for promoting the success of the Group by directing and
supervising its affairs in a responsible and effective manner. Each Director has a
duty to act in good faith and in the best interests of the Company. The types of
decisions that are taken by the Board include those relating to:

« the strategic plans and objectives of the Company;

« the monitoring and controlling of the Group's operating and financial
performance;

« overseeing the management of relationships with stakeholders, including
shareholders, customers, Government, suppliers, employees and the
community;

« ensuring the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company's accounting, internal
audit and financial reporting functions;

« the corporate governance functions; and

« overseeing the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems.

Day-to-day management of the business of the Company is delegated to the
Managing Director and the senior management who are required to report back to
the Board.

All Directors have given sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the Company
during the year.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal action
against the Directors and officers.
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Chairman and Managing Director

In order to reinforce independence, accountability and responsibility, the role of
the Chairman is separate from that of the Managing Director. As at the date of this
Annual Report, the Chairman and the Managing Director are Dr John CHAN Cho
Chak and Mr LOH Chan Stephen respectively, neither of whom has any financial,
business, family or other relationship with each other.

The Chairman is responsible for providing leadership for the Board and ensuring
that the Board works effectively and performs its responsibilities in the best
interest of the Company. In addition, as the Chairman of the Board, he is also
responsible for ensuring that all Directors are properly briefed on all issues arising
at Board meetings and receive adequate, accurate and reliable informationin a
timely manner.

The Managing Director is responsible for implementing and reporting to the Board
on the Company’s strategy and overseeing the realisation by the Company of the
objectives set by the Board. In addition, the Managing Director is also responsible
for providing leadership for the management and running the day-to-day
operations of the Companuy.

Board Meetings

The Board met regularly throughout the year to discuss the overall strategy as
well as the operational and financial performance of the Group. All Directors are
keptinformed on a timely basis of major changes that may affect the Group's
businesses, including relevant rules and regulations. Written procedures are also
in place for Directors to seek independent professional advice in performing their
Directors’ duties at the Company’s expense. No request was made by any Director
for such independent professional advice in 2016.

During the year, the Chairman of the Company has held a meeting with the NEDs
(including the INEDs) without the presence of the Executive Director.

Appointment of Directors

The Company follows formal procedures for the appointment of new Directors.
Appointments are first considered by the Nomination Committee. The nomination
is then submitted to the Board for decision with reference to the criteria that
include professional knowledge and industrial experience, personal ethics,
integrity and personal skills, and the time commitments of the candidates. Any
Director so appointed by the Board shall hold office only until the next following
annual general meeting after his or her appointment and shall then be eligible for
re-election at that meeting.

AlINEDs are appointed for a term of not more than three years. All Directors are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the Company’s annual general
meeting at least once every three years.
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Directors’ Induction and Training

Each newly appointed Director is provided with necessary induction and
information to ensure that he or she has a proper understanding of the Company's
operations and businesses as well as his or her responsibilities under the relevant
statutes, laws, rules and regulations.

Directors’ training is an ongoing process. During the year, Directors are provided
with monthly updates on the Company’s performance, position and prospects

to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties. In
addition, all Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company
updates Directors on the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements from time to time, to ensure compliance and
enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices.

According to the records provided by the Directors, a summary of trainings
received by the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2016 is as follows:

EER S
BENZAEFORREHUBENRERARE
o BRESARR BN EEREBIARENE
BER OED - RAIRRPITHEEFEER
BT HE

E=EenEET - FR - EERIENER
ARBRR - RARFROEARHER - &
EXgBRRERRERUETMMOBE - 1t
Oh - ARARBEEBEE2EFETERR
AR M ERHEMB LI - KRR ETHRE
MEFAMLMARRALEMEREERENR
MBE BREFETEEEATMR - LRI
S RFEEE AT ROER

REESFREHNLE  EFREE_FT—RF
ToA=T—HALFECEZNEIIRENT:

Type of trainings
EFEE

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

BYFHITES:
Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI #2R# 18+ AB
Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung Z=R#E 4 AB
Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan Leung 3Rk{= R #% A B
Dr John YEUNG Hin Chung 3@+ AB
Non-Executive Directors:
FHITES :
Dr John CHAN Cho Chak (Chairman) FRiRi2t8+ (/) AB
Ms Winnie NG (Deputy Chairman) BZE§&Z L (FIZ£ /) Al
Mr YUNG Wing Chung (Deputy Chairman) Bk 8 %L (BIE/E) Fol8
Mr MAK Chun Keung Z5#R38 %6 4 A B
Mr John Anthony MILLER & 2325t 4 AB
Mr Allen FUNG Yuk Lun /5 F 5t 4 AB
A B

Mr LEE Luen Fai Z&638 4 4

Notes:

A: Reading materials and updates on various topics, including corporate governance matters
and directors’ duties and responsibilities

B: Attending seminars and/or conferences and/or forums and/or briefings
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Company Secretary

The Company Secretary, Ms Christine MAK Lai Hung, supports the Chairman, the
Board and the Board Committees by ensuring good information flow and that
Board policy and procedures are followed. She advises the Board on governance
matters and facilitates the induction and professional development of Directors.
The Company Secretary is an employee of the Company and is appointed

by the Board. Although the Company Secretary reports to the Chairman and
Managing Director, all Directors may call upon her for advice and assistance at
any time in respect of their duties and the effective operation of the Board and
Board Committees. The Company Secretary also plays an essential role in the
relationship between the Company and its shareholders, including assisting the
Board in discharging its obligations to shareholders pursuant to the Listing Rules.

During 2016, the Company Secretary had over 15 hours of professional training to
update her skills and knowledge.

BOARD COMMITTEES

In order to oversee various aspects of the Company’s affairs, the Board has
established various Board Committees. The majority of the members of the Board
Committees are either INEDs or NEDs.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee was established on 12 September 2001. The Committee
currently comprises three NEDs and an Executive Director. On 16 December 2016,
Mr LOH Chan Stephen was appointed as a member of the Executive Committee
with effect from 1 February 2017. As at the date of this Annual Report, the
members of the Executive Committee are Mr John Anthony MILLER (chairman),
Dr John CHAN Cho Chak (deputy chairman), Mr Allen FUNG Yuk Lun and Mr LOH
Chan Stephen.

The Executive Committee meets regularly throughout the year and on an ad hoc
basis if necessary to review business operations, financial operations and ad hoc
projects of the Group. These projects include major acquisitions, investments and
their funding requirements.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 11 April 2001. The Committee currently
comprises three INEDs and two NEDs. The Managing Director is required to attend
each Audit Committee meeting as requested by the members of the Committee.
After each meeting, the Audit Committee reports to the Board on significant
issues. As at the date of this Annual Report, the members of the Audit Committee
are Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung (chairman), Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI, Professor Stephen
CHEUNG Yan Leung, Ms Winnie NG and Mr YUNG Wing Chung.
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The Audit Committee is to assist the Board in fulfilling its responsibilities relating to
accounting and reporting practices, to improve the credibility and objectivity of the
Company's financial and other reports, and to strengthen the system of internal
control and compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

The terms of reference of the Committee are available on the websites of the
Company and HKEXx.

During 2016, the Audit Committee held three meetings. The Audit Committee
reviewed the following documents and matters at the meetings:

« the Company's Directors’ Report, Independent Auditor's Report and Financial
Statements for the year ended 31 December 2015 and 2015 Annual Report,
with a recommendation to the Board for approval;

« the Company's Interim Financial Report for the six months ended 30 June
2016 and 2016 Interim Report, with a recommendation to the Board for
approval;

« the Company’s accounting policies and its compliance with the prevailing
accounting standards of Hong Kong;

» theaudit plan of the External Auditors for the year ended 31 December 2016,
including the extent of coordination between the Audit Committee and the
External Auditors;

s theresults of the external audits;

« thefees payable to the External Auditors of the interim review for the six
months ended 30 June 2016 and of the audit for the year ended 31 December
2016, and terms of engagement of the External Auditors for approval by the
Board;

» theresults of the 2016 internal audits performed by an outsourced
independent professional firm (the “Internal Auditors”);

» the proposed internal audit plan for the financial year 2017 of the Internal
Auditors including the extent of co-ordination between the Audit Committee
and the Internal Auditors;

« management confirmation on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control
system; and

» the compliance by the Company with all applicable laws, regulations,
standards and best practice guidelines.

The Audit Committee also met in separate private session with the External
Auditors at least once during the year.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 23 March 2004. The
Committee currently comprises two INEDs and a NED. As at the date of this Annual
Report, the members of the Remuneration Committee are Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI
(chairman), Mr YUNG Wing Chung and Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan Leung.

The Remuneration Committee is intended to define and articulate a compensation
philosophy or strategy consistent with the strategic objectives of the Company.
To achieve this objective, the Remuneration Committee formulates policies on
and reviews the remuneration of the Directors and senior management of the
Companuy.

The Remuneration Committee has adopted the model that it will review the
proposals made by the management on the remuneration packages of the
Executive Director and senior management, and make recommendations to the
Board. The Board will have final authority to approve the recommendations made
by the Remuneration Committee.

The terms of reference of the Committee are available on websites of the
Company and HKEXx.

The principal elements of the Company’s remuneration policy for Directors and
senior management are:

» noindividual should determine his or her own remuneration package;

« remuneration packages should be on a par with companies with whom the
Company competes for human resources;

« the Company should aim at designing remuneration packages that attract
and retain executives needed to run the Group successfully and motivate
executives to pursue appropriate growth strategies whilst it should avoid
paying an excessive amount for such purposes;

« remuneration packages should reflect the performance and responsibility
of anindividual, as well as the complexity of work; and

« remuneration packages should be structured in such a way that they
provide incentives to Directors and senior management to improve their
individual performance.

In 2016, the Remuneration Committee:

« reviewed the remuneration packages of senior management;

= reviewed the Directors’ fees proposal and made recommendation to the
Board; and

« reviewed the proposed remuneration package to be offered to the new
Managing Director and made recommendation to the Board.
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Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 8 March 2006. The
Committee currently comprises two INEDs and a NED. As at the date of this
Annual Report, the members of the Nomination Committee are Professor Stephen
CHEUNG Yan Leung (chairman), Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUl and Mr YUNG Wing
Chung.

The principal functions of the Nomination Committee include:

= reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board on a regular basis and making
recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed changes;

« identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board members, and
selecting or making recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships;

« assessing the independence of INEDs; and

« making recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the Chairman and the Managing Director.

The terms of reference of the Committee are available on the websites of the
Company and HKEXx.

In 2016, the Nomination Committee:

= reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board and the Board
diversity;

» reviewed and assessed the independence of INEDs;

« made recommendations to the Board about the retirement and re-
appointment of Directors by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company; and

« assessed an individual suitably qualified to become the Managing Director,
and made recommendation to the Board on individual nominated for
directorship.

Risk Committee

The Company established the Risk Committee on 27 November 2015. The
Committee currently comprises an INED and two NEDs. As at the date of this
Annual Report, the members of the Risk Committee are Professor Stephen
CHEUNG Yan Leung (chairman), Mr John Anthony MILLER and Mr Allen FUNG Yuk
Lun.
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The principal functions of the Risk Committee include:

« advising the Board on the Group’s risk appetite statement(s), risk principles
and other risk-related issues including corporate actions and proposed
strategic transactions such as mergers, acquisitions and disposals;

« overseeing the risk management framework to identify and deal with
financial, operational, legal, regulatory, technology, business and strategic
risks faced by the Group and amend and supplement this from time to
time;

« approving the Group’s risk policies and risk tolerances;

= considering emerging risks relating to the Group's business and strategies

to ensure that appropriate arrangements are in place to control and
mitigate the risks effectively;

« reviewing risk reports and breaches of risk tolerances and policies; and

= reviewing and assessing the effectiveness of the Group's risk control/
mitigation tools including the enterprise risk management programme,
the risk management systems, the internal audit function relating to risk
management and the Group’s contingency plans.

The terms of reference of the Committee are available on the websites of the
Company and HKEXx.

In 2016, the Risk Committee:

« reviewed the Group's 2016 Enterprise-wide Risk Management (“ERM")
project status update and 2016 control assessment results performed by
an external consultant (“the External Consultant”);

« reviewed the Group’s 2016 ERM assessment report which contains the
results of the Group’s 2016 ERM assessment, the risk register and the top
risk profile of the Group;

= reviewed and approved the Group’s Risk Management Manual; and

« endorsed management confirmation on the effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management system.
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Directors’ Attendance at Meetings EENERHERBR
The Directors’ attendance records at the following meetings in 2016 are set out EEN T RNFEHFEA TS0
below: T
Executive Audit Remuneration  Nomination Risk 2016 Annual
Committee Committee Committee Committee  Committee General
Board meetings meetings meeting meeting meeting Meeting
Name of Directors meetings THZEE® HHRZEEE yiNzeg REZEE [ERZEEE —E-RE
EENE X8R 23 i =t i 2% BRRAEFAE
Independent Non-Executive Directors:
BYFHITES :
Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI N/A N/A
SPIESTE 6/6 T 2/3 1/1 1/1 T 1/1
Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung 5/6 N/A 3/3 N/A N/A N/A 1N
FREEL NERA TNEA TNEMA TNEA
Professor Stephen N/A
CHEUNG Yan Leung 5/6 S 3/3 1/1 1/1 1/1 1/1
RC R
Dr John YEUNG Hin Chung 6/6 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 11
THRARIEL NERA NER TNEA NER TNEA
Non-Executive Directors:
FHITES :
Dr John CHAN Cho Chak
(cth;)irrr;]van) o 6/6 10/10 m%fa? 7&%%\ mgf%\ - ig/ﬁg 11
BRADEIE L (F/F)
Ms Winnie NG
N/A N/A N/A N/A
(Deputy Chairman) 6/6 e 3/3 . o . 1/1
P o [\ r'j [ [ N |“J
Rttt (B/E ) TEH TiEHA TEA TiER
Mr Yung Wing Chung
(Deputy Chairman) 5/6 @%Q 33 11 11 Eg;g\ 0/1
BKBEE (BIEE)
Mr MAK Chun Keung 5/6 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 11
BRE oA TEA NEA NEA NEA TEA
Mr John Anthony MILLER N/A N/A N/A
e 6/6 10/10 g Rig g 1/1 1/1
Mr Allen FUNG Yuk Lun N/A N/A N/A
BEBS 5/6 0710 xam EF i v v
Mr LEE Luen Fai 6/6 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 1n
TEWEL L TEMA NERA TNEA NERA TNE A
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the Group's financial
statements for each financial year or period that give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flows for that year or
period. In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2016, the Directors have:

« selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently;
» made judgments and estimates that are prudent and reasonable; and
« prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the Group’s financial
statements. This responsibility extends to annual and interim reports, “price-
sensitive” or “inside information” announcements and other financial disclosures
required under the Listing Rules, as well as reports to regulators and information
required to be disclosed pursuant to statutory requirements. The responsibility of
the External Auditors for the audit of the financial statements of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2016 is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report
on pages 92 to 101 of this Annual Report.

Auditors’ Remuneration

In line with the sound practice that the independence of External Auditors

should not be impaired by other non-audit assignments, the Group ensures that
assignments other than statutory audits undertaken by External Auditors should
not have an adverse impact on their independence. The External Auditors are also
required to review their relationship with the Group and furnish confirmation to
the Audit Committee confirming their independent status.

During 2016, the External Auditors (including any entity under common control,
ownership or management with the External Auditors or any entity that a
reasonable and informed third party having knowledge of all relevant information
would reasonably conclude as part of the audit firm nationally or internationally)
provided the following audit and non-audit services to the Group. Details are set
out below:
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2016 2015

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Audit 1% 2,420,000 2,330,000
Non-audit services (Note) JEEZ AR (MisE) 528,000 570,000

Note:
Non-audit services for both years mainly consisted of the reviews of the Group's interim
financial reports and the performance of certain agreed-upon procedures.
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An independence confirmation has been obtained from the External Auditors
confirming that for the year ended 31 December 2016 and thereafter to the date
of this Annual Report, the External Auditors are independent of the Group in
accordance with the independence requirements of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board should oversee the Group's internal control and risk management
systems on an on-going basis, as well as ensure that a review of the effectiveness
of these systems has been conducted annually. Management is primarily
responsible for the design, implementation and monitoring of the internal control
and risk management systems. Such systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Risk Management

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Group's strategic
objectives and ensuring that the Group has established and maintained an
appropriate and effective risk management system. The Risk Committee
established on 27 November 2015 is delegated by the Board with responsibilities
to oversee the Group's overall risk management framework and to advise the
Board on the Group's risk-related matters.

With the assistance of the External Consultant, the Company compiled a Risk
Management Manual, which sets out the Group's risk management policy, risk
management framework and risk management process, for the purpose of
enhancing the risk management of the Group. The Risk Management Manual was
approved by the Risk Committee and the Board.

Risk Management Framework

The Group's risk management framework is based on a “Three Lines of Defence”
model with a systematic approach and clearly defined roles and responsibilities of
relevant parties.
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1stLine of Defence

E—EBhE
Risk ownership Departments/Business Units/Staff Members BEFY,EBEN BT
ER5EE

identifying existing controls relating to the risks
in their areas and evaluating the adequacy of
the control;

designing risk responses (i.e. actions to improve
or optimise controls or mitigate risks identified
during the risk assessment process) for risks
without adequate control to mitigate risks to
the target tolerance level;

implementing the risk responses for which they
are responsible for;

reviewing and monitoring the effectiveness of
risk responses for which they are responsible for
and update the Risk Management Task Force
at least semi-annually on the status of their risk
responses implementation.
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2" Line of Defence

EEhR
Risk management Risk Management Task Force [ B 222 2 S
R EE

providing support to the Senior Management
during the process of design, implementation
and monitoring of the risk management and
internal control systems, and ensuring that it is
consistently applied across the Group;

maintaining and updating the risk register;

providing the risk owners with the methodology
for conducting the risk and control monitoring
activities, providing direction and training on
how to complete the risk response plans and
other risk reports; and

overseeing activities performed by risk owners,
obtaining and reviewing work prepared by the
risk owners.
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2" Line of Defence (Continued)

EERR (8)

Risk reporting Senior Management SHREEAR
[ B B 3R o (| A A 7 20 ~ w
« monitoring risk management process and o ERMEMEIRIE A RNk R AR RE R 7T
developing relevant responses to risks; ES
o certifying that they operate an effective system  © MERERFETHRHEREELRS WO ETT
of risk management and have undertaken an B AR R A B SRR
exercise to |dent|fg.and assess significant risks . HEREESESERSIERTRE R
faced by the Group; S
Ve R Coniee NSRS g - Y F AR ARILS
gement process; SERERE DA -
» reviewing the risk register and reporting the
effectiveness of risk management to the Risk
Committee and the Board annually.
Risk oversight Risk Committee RBRZEES
E B EE SR

overseeing the Group’s overall risk management
framework and to advise the Board on the
Group's risk-related matters;

approving the Group's risk policies and risk
tolerances;

reviewing risk reports and breaches of risk
tolerances and policies; and

reviewing and assessing the effectiveness of the
Group's risk control/mitigation tools including
the enterprise risk management programme,
the risk management systems, the internal
audit function relating to risk management and
the Group's contingency plans annually.

o ERAKEEBRREMRERER  THAEER
PEFEERESSREER

o FBHAKENERBERBRBREDE

o ERERBEALRBRRBRETRENBENE
BER &

o AT R AR AN SR R BT, R T AR
X BRECXREBERE  RRERRS -
B E R A A EZI G LA B E
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3 Line of Defence

E=BhE

Independent Internal Audit Function A EREL TN BE
assurance N

ﬁ;;%% « outsourced to the External Consultant; o HMNHITHNISRER

carrying out the audit plan, assessing and
analysing if the controls stated in the risk
register is sufficient and effective; and

supporting the Board through the Risk
Committee in reviewing the effectiveness and
efficiency of the Group’s risk management
system.

L]

EITERE FHE RO TR M8
TEBRAREY &
FBEREZEREERESERIAEERRE
B E R U ARRE ©
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Risk Management Process REREEREF

The 5-Step risk management process is adopted under the Group's risk AEENEREBIERDEMNA L AR EIEE
management framework, as illustrated below: F » SHBREAR -

Upward 01

Reporting Risk

and Monitoring Identification
o EAREH K J B 78k B

m 2R

02
Risk
Assessment
and

Risk
Responses

| B i 3 Prioritisation

[ B TRk &
BESIEIX
Risk Owner JE S
04 Appointment

ZERBEEA 03

74 RoadShow Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016



Step 1

Risk Identification
£—5

[ Bk Bl

Departments, business units and staff members
identify the risks which will be categorised into
external risks, strategic risks and preventable
risks.

BAFT - EBEMRETHEMER - FHERR
HE &y ASNERE R - B EL e R AT g o

Step 2

Risk Assessment and
Prioritisation

-~

B BT E R BE IR E

Departments, business units and staff members
assess and score the risks identified along with
theirimpact on the business and the likelihood
of their occurrence, and prioritise the risks ina
logical manner.

BHFT - RBEM N E TRHMEE BRI
AREE IS E IV ENEZ Yokt e oRl = A d)
R - BASFREN T AR RER
IEFF

Step 3
Risk Owner Appointment

F=H

Risk owners will be appointed to all identified
risks. The risk owners are responsible for
ensuring that an analysis over the causes and
consequences of the risk is conducted and an

AAACBIRRZERBREEA - EREE
ANBERERDITERORIRE L& R - W
rEAERREHTRAEEIARER -

ZERBRAEA appropriate risk response is in place to manage
the main causes and consequences.
Step 4 Risk owners design risk response plansbasedon BB E ARIERKRIED (JMEF - KBS R AR
Risk Responses the nature of the risks (external, strategic and ) UNERAALER e LR ELRE
04 preventable) and overall impact and likelihood AT Ak [ 201 B pE s 22 o
Ll that may result from the risk occurring. HY R BE TR AT IR 3R
| Bz P
Step 5 Senior management monitors the risk BAREREABERRRERRET - WRRAKRE
Upward Reporting and management process and report to the Risk EeNBE=eER -
Monitoring Committee and the Board.
E ik
) A% B 3R % BE 5%

20165 %k BB ZERAERAR
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ERM Assessment

During 2016, the Company conducted an ERM assessment based on the Group's
risk management framework to assess the risks relevant to the business of the
Group through the External Consultant.

The ERM assessment report was compiled to cover: (i) the top inherent risks of the
Groupy; (i) the control assessment results; and (iii) the new controls recommended
to manage the risks. The ERM assessment report, as endorsed by the Risk
Committee, was presented to the Board for review in December 2016.

Internal Control

The Board assesses the effectiveness of the internal control system through the
Audit Committee. The Board and the Audit Committee have decided to outsource
the review of the internal control system to the Internal Auditors and the Board has
delegated to the management the design, implementation and monitoring of the
internal control system as well as the review of relevant financial, operational and
compliance controls procedures.

Control Environment

The review of the internal control system by the Internal Auditors has made
reference to the “COSQ” framework (the internal control framework developed by
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission).

The expectations of the Company regarding duty and integrity are clearly stated
inthe Company's Code of Conduct and Staff Handbook, as well as the policies and
procedures manuals, which set out the rules and policies, for the Directors and
employees to follow. These cover all aspects of administrative and operational
activities, including relationships with customers, suppliers, competitors and fellow
staff. The internal control system covers every activity and transaction of the
Group in RoadShow. The system is based on clear stewardship responsibilities,
authorities and accountability. Our employees are an important part of our internal
system and the Group expects them to contribute to that system. In addition

to setting our guidelines, principles and values, the Group recognises that an
environment where employees feel free to bring problems to management is also
necessary to make our internal control system successful.

76 RoadShow Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016

1 E b B AT

MRZF—RF  ARRIEBIMNEEEIRIEAE
B R EIRESRETT T RERRE IR
PARHE AN SR B R 5 AERE R

RECERBREET GRS  EFRE () K
EBRSRRERE ¢ (i) BiEEER 0 & (i)
EHANEERBRMOFTERER - KRKBEE
ERANDERBREEFIEREEN T
FH+_AEREFTCEHN -

PIEBE
EFRRERR B eTHENEEIERMRAMNK
Mo EEENRBEZEZBEETRE RN AAZEED
SMIRBBEIE RO TIF > MEFECK
REEER  HTRERABEERS &
A BRERNT  RERARNIESIESF o

EEEERIR

MNEBIZEIEN 2 AR [ COSO ] HE4E (Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission FTiE KA EBESIEHELR) i a0 A

ERESFE R AT

ARBNEBTEANRETFM - ARMKE
= MEEKENBER KIZFFM (ST RR
AIMBGR) NIRRT AH A M (EMEHE -
ZEHERETHR RSB S EHE -
BRERF  HER BFEFREING
1% - AR AR ERMBNZREELS
K5 o REMTIABRIPAMERE - 12
N B RER - XEBEOEB RN RS
B2 - MAREERRERR/ZFSIEH
B - BREIETHES - RRIREES - AEEF
B AEERH—(EAmREEERKME
RIRE - TMRREEABEERRK I LT
ES e



Control Processes

Since 2004, the management and employees, assisted by the Internal Auditors
with particular professional experience in assessing risks and control procedures,
have evaluated the Company’s control environment, conducted risk assessments
of businesses and processes, and documented those processes that are critical to
the Group's performance.

Qualified personnel throughout the Group maintain and monitor the system of
controls on an ongoing basis and the Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer
have to report any significant changes, deficiencies and material weaknesses in,
and fraud related to, internal controls to the Audit Committee and the Internal
Auditors.

Control Effectiveness

In accordance with the internal audit plan designed by the Internal Auditors and
agreed by the Audit Committee, the Internal Auditors review the Company’s
internal control system every year in such a way that the review of all the major
components of the internal control system are completed within a period of three
years. The Internal Auditors provide recommendations to management to improve
internal controls after each review for management and Audit Committee’s
consideration.

No significant areas of concern that might affect the Company’s shareholders
were identified.

The Board, through the Risk Committee and the Audit Committee with the
assistance of the External Consultant and the Internal Auditors respectively,

has reviewed the effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal
control systems for the year ended 31 December 2016. The Board has received
a confirmation from management on the effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal control systems and is satisfied that such systems are
effective and adequate for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Business Ethics
Code of Conduct

The Group's Code of Conduct for Directors and Employees (the “Code of Conduct”)
has long been established to ensure that both Directors and employees are kept
abreast of and fulfill a set of defined ethical obligations and appropriate behaviours
when conducting businesses and/or performing their duties. The Code of Conduct
also provides guidance on responsibility to the Group’s shareholders, customers
and the community. Any member in breach of the Code of Conduct is subject to
disciplinary action. The Code of Conduct is updated from time to time, taking into
account changes in the relevant legislation and the business environment.

A set of Code of Conduct can be accessed through the Company's intranet and the
Company's website.
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Price-sensitive and/or Inside Information

With respect to procedures and internal controls for handling and dissemination of
price-sensitive and/or inside information, the Company

« isaware of its obligations under the Listing Rules and Part XIVA of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance that information that is expected to
be price sensitive or inside information should be disclosed as soon as
reasonably practicable;

« conducts its affairs with close regard to the “Guidelines on Disclosure of
Inside Information” issued by the Securities and Futures Commission in
2012;

» hasincluded in the Code of Conduct a strict prohibition on the
unauthorised use of confidential or inside information; and

« hasestablished and implemented procedures for responding to external
enquiries about the Group's affairs. Senior staff of the Group are identified
and authorised to act as the Company’s spokespersons and respond to
enquiries in allocated areas of issues.

With a view to identifying, handling and disseminating inside information in
compliance with the Securities and Futures Ordinance, procedures including pre-
clearance on dealing in Company's securities by designated Director, notification
of black-out period and securities dealing restrictions to relevant Directors

and employees, identification of project by code name and dissemination

of information to stated purpose and on a need-to-know basis have been
implemented by the Group to guard against possible mishandling of inside
information within the Group.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted its own Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
(the “Securities Code”) on terms no less exacting than the required standard of
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of the Listed Issuers set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. In response to a specific enquiry by the
Company, all Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Securities
Code throughout the year 2016.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company considers effective communication with shareholders is essential
to enable them to have a clear assessment of the Group's performance as well as
accountability of the Board. Major means of communication with shareholders of
the Company are as follows:

Information Disclosure on Corporate Website

The Company endeavours to disclose all material information about the Group
to allinterested parties on a timely basis. The Company maintains a corporate
website (www.roadshow.com.hk) where important corporate information and
other relevant financial and non-financial information such as annual reports and
interim reports, notices and announcements, circulars and other information are
available for review by shareholders and other stakeholders.

General Meetings with Shareholders

The Company's annual general meetings and special general meetings provide a
useful platform for direct communication between the Board and shareholders.
Separate resolutions are proposed on each substantially separate issue at the
general meetings.

In accordance with the Listing Rules, the Company would arrange for the notice
to shareholders to be sent in the case of annual general meetings at least 20 clear
business days before the meeting and to be sent at least 10 clear business days
before in the case of all other meetings. Under the Bye-laws of the Companuy, all
shareholders have 21 clear days’ notice of the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”)
and Special General Meeting (“SGM”) for the passing of a special resolution,

and 14 clear days’ notice of all other general meetings at which the Directors

and Committee chairmen or members are available to answer their questions. A
representative (usually the engagement partner) of the External Auditors also
attends the AGM and will take questions from shareholders relating their audit of
the Company’s financial statements.

The 2016 AGM was held on 25 May 2016. The poll results of the 2016 AGM were
published on the websites of the Company and HKEx. The 2017 AGM has been
scheduled to be held on Tuesday, 16 May 2017.

Voting by Poll

Resolutions put to vote at the general meetings of the Company (other than on
procedural and administrative matters) are taken by poll. The results of any voting
by poll are announced and published as soon as possible, but in any event no later
than 30 minutes before the earlier of the commencement of the morning trading
session or any pre-opening session on the business day following the meeting, on
the websites of the Company and HKEX.
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Shareholders’ Rights

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the shareholders of the Company
as required to be disclosed pursuant to the mandatory disclosure requirement
under Paragraph O of the Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 of
the Listing Rules:

Convening of special general meeting on requisition by shareholders

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company, shareholders holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall
at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board of the Company to
convene a SGM for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition.
The request must be in written form with the purpose of the meeting stated
therein, duly signed by the shareholders concerned and deposited at our Hong
Kong principal office for the attention of the Company Secretary. Upon receipt of
the confirmation by the Company’s Share Registrars that the request is valid, the
Company Secretary will arrange to convene a SGM by serving sufficient notice in
accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws and the statutory requirements to all
the registered shareholders.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at general meetings by
shareholders

Shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights of
those shareholders having the right to vote at the general meetings may submit

a written request to move a resolution at general meetings. The procedures for
putting forward proposals at general meetings (including nominating a person for
election as a Director) are set out in the Company’s Shareholders’ Communication
Policy, which is available on the website of the Company.

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the Board

Enquires may be put to the Board by contacting either the Company Secretary
through (852) 2746 5200 or e-mail at cosec@roadshow.com.hk or directly by

questions at an AGM or SGM. Questions on the procedure for convening or putting

forward proposals at an AGM or a SGM may also be put to the Company Secretary
at the same means.

Constitutional Documents

There were no changes made to the constitutional documents of the Company in
2016. An updated version of the Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws of the
Company is available on the websites of the Company and HKEXx.
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The directors of RoadShow Holdings Limited (the “Company”) (the
“Directors”) submit herewith their annual report together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Principal place of business

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda and has its registered
office at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.
The principal place of business of the Company has been changed
from 9 Po Lun Street, Lai Chi Kok, Kowloon, Hong Kong to Flat D,
2/F, HK Spinners Industrial Building, Phase 5, 760-762 Cheung Sha
Wan Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong with effect from 29 March 2016.

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the
Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”)
are principally engaged in the provision of media sales and design
services and production of advertisements for Multi-media On-board
(“MMOB” or “BUS-TV"), transit vehicle exteriors (“BUS-BODY") and
interiors (“IN-BUS"), online portal, mobile apps, shelters and outdoor
signages advertising businesses. The Group is also engaged in the
provision of integrated marketing services covering these advertising
platforms.

The principal activities and other particulars of the Company’s
subsidiaries are set out in note 14 to the financial statements. The
analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations of the
operations of the Group during the financial year are set out in note 2
to the financial statements.

Recommended dividend

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: HK$Nil).

Business review

A review of the business of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2016, a discussion on the Group's future business development and
the description of the risks and uncertainties that the Group may
be facing are set out in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 2 to 5
and Operational Review on pages 8 to 11 of this Annual Report. This
discussion forms part of this Directors’ Report.
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The risk management objectives and policies of the Group are set out
on pages 70 to 77 of this Annual Report.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year using financial
key performance indicators is set out in Financial Highlights on page
14 and Financial Review on pages 15 to 23 of this Annual Report.

Environmental policies and performance

The Group respects the environment and is committed to building
awareness of environmental conservation and minimising its carbon
footprints through efficient use of resources, employing green
office initiatives and promoting environmental awareness among
employees and the public. The Group understands the implications of
climate change for the entire world and is committed to minimising
the potential impact of its operations on the environment.

In 2016, the Group organised the “ECO Star Awards 2016” for the
fifth successive year. The primary objective of these awards is to
encourage public support for the development of more sustainable
environmental protection. In addition, the Group launched a
programme called “Critical 18 years” with an aim to alert Hongkongers
to the likely impact of global warming-related phenomena between
now and 2033. The Group also supported various meaningful local
green events in town such as “Earth Hour 2016” of World Wide Fund
and “Lai See Reuse and Recycling Program 2016” of Greeners Action.

In relation to the efficient use of resources, the Group has introduced
various measures including, improving the office environment to help
conserve energy, using energy saving lighting to reduce electricity
consumption and the need for air-conditioning, encouraging double-
sided printing, less colour printing and paperless practices to reduce

"ow

carbon footprints. The concept of “Reduce”, “Reuse” and “Recycle”
are heavily promoted. Employees are also encouraged to treasure

food and minimise waste and noise.

During the year under review saw the Group's continuous
commitment to greener office operations honoured by the World
Green Organisation’s United Nations Sustainable Development Goals
Green Office Award.

For details of the Group’s environmental policy and performance
during the year, please refer to the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report on pages 36 to 57 of this Annual Report.
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Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

On the Group’s business and operation levels, before using any
information, programme, music video or photo which is not owned
or taken by the Group, the Group shall identify the copyright owner,
ascertain the ownership of the relevant copyright work and obtain
consent from the copyright owner. In addition, if any advertisement
placed by the advertiser which may have legal issue or issue about
compliance with the applicable laws, rules or regulations, such
advertisement shall be pre-vetted by the Group in accordance
with the advertising guidelines of the Group before acceptance
of publication. As to the online members of Shop2gather.com
(the “Members”), the Group keeps reminding the employees of
and emphasising the importance of safeguarding the security of
the personal data. When collecting and processing such data, the
Group complies with the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance and
the guidelines issued by the Office of the Privacy Commissioner for
Personal Data, with a view to protecting the privacy of the Members.

In relation to human resources, the Group is committed to complying
with the requirements of the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance,
and ordinances relating to disability, sex, family status and race
discrimination, as well as the Employment Ordinance, the Minimum
Wage Ordinance and ordinances relating to occupational safety of
employees of the Group, so as to safeguard the interests and well-
being of its employees.

On the corporate level, the Group complies with the requirements
under the Companies Ordinance, the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”) and the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”") for,
among other things, the disclosure of information and corporate
governance, and the Group has adopted its own Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.
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Relationship with employees, customers and suppliers

The Group believes that employees are the valuable assets of
the Group. With a view to retaining talents, the Group offers a
comprehensive and competitive remuneration and benefits
packages to all its employees. On-the-job training and development
opportunities are provided to employees to enhance their career
progression. The Group also encourages work-life balance by
organising charitable, corporate social responsibility (“CSR”) and
staff-friendly activities for employees, which are vital to promote staff
relationship and communication.

The key customers of the Group include the advertisers and the
advertising agents (collectively, the “Advertisers”). Delivering top-
quality services to the Advertisers is our top priority. To ensure
customers’ satisfaction, the Group actively collects feedback from the
Advertisers and deals with complaints within 24 hours. Most of the
Advertisers have established long-term business relationship with the
Group which ensures steady advertising income of the Group.

The largest supplier of the Group is The Kowloon Motor Bus Company
(1933) Limited (“KMB”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
Transport International Holdings Limited (“TIH"), the ultimate holding
company of the Company. The Group has maintained long-term
and close business relationship with KMB over the years. The other
key suppliers of the Group include advertising production or outdoor
media companies. The Group has also established long-term and
good relationship with these suppliers which ensures steady supply
so as to provide high quality products and services to customers.

Share capital

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 23 to
the financial statements. There were no movements during the year.
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Directors

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this
report were:

Dr John CHAN Cho Chak” GBs, Jp Chairman
Ms Winnie NG* Deputy Chairman
Mr YUNG Wing Chung® Deputy Chairman

Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI* BBS, MBE, JP

Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung* GBS, OBE, JP

Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan Leung*
BBS, JP

Dr John YEUNG Hin Chung* sBs, OBE, JP

Mr LOH Chan Stephen' Managing Director
(with effect from
1 February 2017)

Mr MAK Chun Keung®

Mr John Anthony MILLER” sBs, 0BE

Mr Allen FUNG Yuk Lun®

Mr LEE Luen Fai®

! Executive Director

# Non-Executive Director

* Independent Non-Executive Director

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-Law 86(2), Mr LOH Chan
Stephen, who was appointed as a Director with effect from 1 February
2017, will hold office only until the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting and being eligible, has offered himself for re-election.

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-Law 87 and the Corporate
Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, Dr
John CHAN Cho Chak, Ms Winnie NG and Mr YUNG Wing Chung will
retire from the Board of Directors (the “Board”) by rotation at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, have offered
themselves for re-election.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one
year without payment of compensation, other than normal statutory
obligations.
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Directors’ interests and short positions in shares,
underlying shares and debentures

The Directors who held office at 31 December 2016 had the following
interests in the shares of the Company, its holding companies,
subsidiaries and other associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) at that date as recorded in the register of
directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short positions required
to be kept under section 352 of the SFO:

EERROD -HBEAROREEIENERR
RB

ERB(BHERBEGRA)EI2EREATFEN
EETRERTHRABEZE AR ZRMATLE -
RZE—AF+_A=+—HEENEZTN%A
RARE - EERAR - M8 A &) & EMAEE

B (E&RB(EHFRBEHOINEXVEL) &R0+ %
BUATHE -

Interests in issued shares REBITROPHESR
Total % of total
Personal Family Corporate Other number of issued
interests interests interests interests  shares held shares
1E2E0
R CBITRH
BAER Rk R NEER Hithe s RADBE Aok
The Company: Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each
AQATF  BREEBS0.1THEER
Ms Winnie NG (Note 1) thfgEtgzz (A1) 1,000,000 — — 123,743 1,123,743 0.1%
Transport International Holdings Limited (“TIH") (Note 2): Ordinary shares of HK$1.0 each
HEERERERAR(TERED (W22) BREEBELOTHZER
Dr John CHAN Cho Chak BRAEEL 2,000 — — — 2,000 0.0%
Ms Winnie NG (Note 3) (LA (77 3) 181,416 — — 21,971,095 22,152,511 5.4%
Mr LEE Luen Fai (Note 4) RGBS (i 4) — 30,000 — — 30,000 0.0%
Notes: Wi -

1. Ms Winnie NG has interest in 123,743 shares of the Company as a
beneficiary of certain private trusts which beneficially held the shares.

2. TIHis the ultimate holding company of the Company.

3. Ms Winnie NG has interest in 21,971,095 shares of TIH as a beneficiary of

certain private trusts which beneficially held the shares.

4. Mr LEE Luen Fai has interest in 30,000 shares of TIH which represented
the interests held by his spouse.
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Apart from the foregoing, none of the Directors or any of their
spouses or children under eighteen years of age has interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or other
associated corporations, as recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers.

Confirmation of independence

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
Executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the Independent
Non-Executive Directors to be independent.

Substantial shareholders’ and other persons’ interests
and short positions in shares, underlying shares and
debentures

At 31 December 2016, the interests or short positions of the persons
(not being Directors and chief executives of the Company) in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and required to be entered into
the register maintained by the Company pursuant to section 336 of
the SFO were as follows:
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TERRREMATRARSG - AERGO K
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Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each
BREESRE .1 TNEBER

Registered Corporate Total number of % of total

shareholders interests shares held issued shares

1E 2B AT

Name =L BRRE AEERE FIEERMEH BHOBEDE
Sun Hung Kai Properties EEMEERARAF

Limited (“SHKP") (Note 2) ([ 3migEthE |) (Hfat2) — 741,080,210 741,080,210 74.30%

TIH (Note 1) EHBHT1) — 728,127,410 728,127,410 73.01%

KMB Resources Limited KMB Resources Limited 728,127,410 — 728,127,410 73.01%
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Notes:

1. KMB Resources Limited owned 728,127,410 shares of the Company.
KMB Resources Limited was a wholly-owned subsidiary of TIH, which was
accordingly deemed to be interested in the same number of shares of the
Company held by KMB Resources Limited under the SFO.

2. As SHKP was interested in more than one-third of the issued share
capital of TIH, it was deemed to be interested in 728,127,410 shares of
the Company held through TIH for the purpose of Part XV of the SFO.
In addition, SHKP was deemed to be interested in a total of 12,952,800
shares of the Company held by certain of its wholly-owned subsidiaries
for the purpose of Part XV of the SFO.

Apart from the foregoing, no other interests or short positions
required to be recorded in the register kept under section 336 of the
SFO have been notified to the Company.

Sufficiency of public float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
Annual Report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public
float under the Listing Rules.

Indemnity of directors

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the Directors is
currently in force and was in force throughout this year.

Directors’ interests in transactions, arrangements or
contracts

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which
the Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director had a material
interest, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.
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Major customers and suppliers

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases
attributable to the major customers and suppliers respectively during
the financial year is as follows:

IREFREER

RABBRFEER  AEEXTEXP RHERED 5
EHEHHEERBEERDT

Percentage of the Group's total

AR EEAKBE S
Sales Purchases
HE BE
The largest customer RARF 8%
Five largest customers in aggregate AREFART 21%
The largest supplier BRAMER 42%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate AAREEEEET 63%

During the year, KMB, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of TIH, is
the largest supplier of the Group. Three Directors who held office at 31
December 2016 (31 December 2015: three) had interest in the issued
shares of TIH.

Purchase, sale or redemption of the Company’s listed
securities

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

Pre-emptive rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-
Laws and the laws of Bermuda.

Directors and senior management profiles

Profiles of the Directors and senior management of the Company are
set out on pages 24 to 33 of this Annual Report.

Five year financial summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on pages 166 to 167 of this
Annual Report.
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Retirement schemes

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme under
the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
and participates in employee pension schemes organised by the
local governments of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
under the regulations of the PRC. All these retirement schemes
are defined contribution plans and their particulars are set out in
note 26 to the financial statements.

Auditors

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.
A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the
Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting.

By Order of the Board

Dr John CHAN Cho Chak
Chairman

Hong Kong, 17 March 2017
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KPMG

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
RoadShow Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of RoadShow
Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”)
set out on pages 102 to 165, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2016 and of its consolidated financial performance and
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”)
together with any ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the consolidated financial statements in Bermuda, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our

opinion.
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Assessing impairment of property, plant and equipment and
provisions for onerous contracts in relation to licences and other
contracts

Refer to notes 11 and 21 to the consolidated financial statements and the
accounting policies on pages 115, 116 and 1.20.

How the matter was addressed

in our audit

Our audit procedures to assess
impairment of property, plant and
equipment and provisions for onerous
contracts in relation to licences and
other contracts included the following:

The Key Audit Matter

The Group has entered into a number of
licences and other contracts in order to
be able to conduct its media advertising
business. In this regard, the Group has
committed to pay licence fees ata
pre-determined percentage of the net

advertising rental received, subject to « enquiring of management about

ERETEE

BREBAFESRERMNERAG  R/YHX
MG AV BREANEITRREENTH - EL=F
BERERMEABRGAMBHRRLLAEERE
ETREN - BT SEHELFREREBNE
"o

TEME - BERRBRREUAREBEEFER
HtaNNEBERENRE

B AEREANTIIR2IK R EIISE - &
116 B RFE 120 @5 HE °

BEEEE EMRBHBEEEERE
Bk
EXECRRLZERTE RMOTEDE - BE K&
REMAEL  LUETHE HORENREBSTE
BESES -t B REMEONEIEANE
SEEAHEMEEES ENENEFRBE TS
e FEnNBELETas |
LB EE - AT

FRIENKERESHEN « AEHEESH E5E

a guaranteed minimum amount for
licences, and contractual fees for other
contracts. The carrying value of property,
plant and equipment that was primarily
used in the Group's media advertising
business amounted to HK$36.5 million as
at 31 December 2016, before taking into
account impairment losses.

Given the increasingly keen price

and market competition in the media
advertising sector and having considered
the terms included in the tender
invitation issued by the licensor for a new
licence relating to the Multi-media On-
board business, the Group has decided
not to submit a tender for this new
licence which will succeed the current
licence when it expires on 30 June 2017.
As such, management considered that
the carrying amount of the related
property, plant and equipment may not
be fully recoverable through future cash
flows to be generated from operations

the Group's decision not to submit a
tender for the new licence in respect
of the Multi-media On-board business,
which will succeed the current licence
when it expires on 30 June 2017,

and reviewing related minutes of
Management and Board meetings;

evaluating management's
identification of CGUs and the
allocation of property, plant and
equipment to each CGU, with
reference to the requirements of the
prevailing accounting standards;
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Key audit matters (continued)

Assessing impairment of property, plant and equipment and
provisions for onerous contracts in relation to licences and other

contracts (continued)
The Key Audit Matter (continued)

or from their disposal upon expiry of

the related licences and, therefore,
recognised impairment of the property,
plantand equipment as at 31 December
2016 to reduce the carrying values

of these assets to their estimated
recoverable amounts, which was
determined by preparing a discounted
cash flow analysis for the identified cash
generating unit (“CGU") to which the
relevant assets had been allocated and
comparing the net present value with the
carrying value of the CGU.

Management also assessed that the
unavoidable costs of meeting the
obligations under related licences
and other contracts may exceed the
economic benefits expected to be
received therefrom and, therefore,
considered that these licences

and other contracts were onerous
contracts. A provision was made for
onerous contracts as at 31 December
2016 which was measured as the
difference between the unavoidable
costs of meeting the obligations under
the licences and other contracts and
the economic benefits expected to be
received therefrom.

How the matter was addressed
in our audit (confinued)
+ assessing the methodology adopted

by management in the preparation
of the discounted cash flow forecast,
with reference to the requirements of
the prevailing accounting standards;

comparing the most significant inputs
used in the discounted cash flow
forecast, including future revenue
and the future gross margins with
historical performance and available
industry reports, taking into account
recent developments in the media
advertising sector, management's
decision not to submit a tender for
the new licence and the financial
budget approved by the directors and
assessing the scrap value of property,
plant and equipment with reference
to the terms and conditions in the
licences;

comparing the revenue and operating
costs included in the discounted

cash flow forecast prepared by
management in the prior year with
the current year's actual performance
to assess the historical accuracy of the
prior year's forecast and evaluating
management's explanations for any
significant variations identified;
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Key audit matters (continued)

Assessing impairment of property, plant and equipment and
provisions for onerous contracts in relation to licences and other
contracts (continued)
The Key Audit Matter (continued) How the matter was addressed
in our audit (continued)

We identified assessing impairment + obtaining from management

BRESTSEHE

AEME BERBRENHEAREBEFER
Htt G WNERENBRE(H)

MEEFEEE) RAREREEERS
HNFEE(E)

BRAKFEDE  BER « REEETEBGHTR

of property, plant and equipment

and assessing provisions for onerous
contracts inrelation to licences and
other contracts as a key audit matter
because determining the level of
impairment and provisions for onerous
contracts involves a significant
degree of management judgement,

in particular in forecasting future cash
flows that can be generated from the
property, plant and equipment and in
estimating the economic benefits of
the licences and other contracts, both
of which are inherently uncertain and
could be subject to management bias.

sensitivity analyses of both revenue
and the gross margins adopted in
the discounted cash flow forecast
and assessing the impact of changes
in these key assumptions on the
conclusion reached in management's
impairment assessment and
whether there was any indicator of
management bias;

obtaining from management the
calculation of the provisions for
onerous contracts, assessing whether
only unavoidable costs of meeting the
contractual obligations of the licences
and other contracts were included
therein and considering the estimated
expected economic benefits with
reference to the historical economic
benefits which the Group had

derived from such licences and other
contracts; and

considering the disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements in
respect of the impairment assessment
of the property, plant and equipment,
including the key assumptions and
changes in such assumptions, and the
provisions for onerous contracts, with
reference to the requirements of the
prevailing accounting standards.
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P

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

ROADSHOW HOLDINGS LIMITED
FEABERERARARRNBLZHMEE

Key audit matters (continued)

Recoverability of accounts receivable

Refer to note 17 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on

pages 113to 115,
The Key Audit Matter

At 31 December 2016, the Group’s
accounts receivable, after making
allowances for doubtful debts of
HK$6.3 million, amounted to HK$101.2
million, of which HK$49.0 million was
past due. The balance of accounts
receivable represented 20.2% of the
Group’s net assets at the end of the
reporting period.

The Group enters into sales
transactions with customers across

a number of different sectors. These
customers have different credit
profiles and the timing of settlement
of accounts receivable can be
influenced by sector norms and the
economic environment in which

the customers operate. The Group’s
allowances for doubtful debts are
based on management's estimate

of the expected credit losses to be
incurred, which is estimated by taking
into account the credit history of the
Group's customers and current market
and customer-specific conditions.

At the end of each reporting period

a considerable level of management
judgement is therefore required

to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment
and, if such evidence is determined
to exist, the amount required to write
down accounts receivable to their
recoverable amounts.

96

How the matter was addressed

in our audit

Our audit procedures to assess the
recoverability of accounts receivable
included the following:

+ understanding and evaluating
the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of key
internal controls relating to the
Group's credit control process;

+ assessing whether items in the
ageing analysis of accounts
receivable were included in the
appropriate ageing category by
comparison with the relevant sales
invoices on a sample basis;

+ evaluating the recorded allowances
for doubtful debts by comparing
cash receipts after the end of the
reporting period against accounts
receivable balances at the end
of the reporting period, on a
sample basis, taking into account
credit terms given to the relevant
customers;

+ assessing the basis of
management'’s conclusions about
the recoverability of the significant
or long overdue balances with
reference to recent history of
settlement, defaults or disputes and
their assessment of the delinquent
trade debtors’ financial condition
and estimated date of settlement;
and
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Key audit matters (continued)

Recoverability of accounts receivable (continued)

The Key Audit Matter (continued) How the matter was addressed

in our audit (confinued)

« assessing the historical accuracy of
the assumptions and estimates made
by management for the allowances
for doubtful debts by examining, on a
sample basis, the utilisation or release
of previously recorded allowances for
doubtful debts during the current year
and write-offs of accounts receivable
during the current year which were
not provided for at the end of the
preceding financial year.

We identified the recoverability of
accounts receivable as a key audit
matter because of the significance

of any potential reduction in the
recoverable amount of accounts
receivable to the Group's results

for the year and because the
determination of allowances for
doubtful debts is inherently subjective
and requires significant management
judgement which increases the risk of
error or potential management bias.

Information other than the consolidated financial
statements and auditor’s report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

ROADSHOW HOLDINGS LIMITED
FHEABERERATARRNOE L L BAERS

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

98
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the
audit. We also:

« ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of
internal control.

«  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

«  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

ROADSHOW HOLDINGS LIMITED
FHEABERERATARRNOE L L BAERS

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continued)

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

« Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continued)

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Felix Kwo Hang LEE.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

17 March 2017
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P

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

REBER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE-Z-AFT-A=1t-HLFEREEHE)

2016 2015

Note $'000 $'000

B3 Fr Fr
Revenue WA 2&3 407,511 411,946
Other revenue E g A 4(a) 17,125 23,793
Other net loss H B8 F R 4(b) (9,940) (5,818)
Total operating revenue KB A BFE 414,696 429,921
Operating expenses KEBER
Royalty, licence and management fees HAE  BFHEBERERES (206,153) (224,382)
Cost of production RIMERL A (74,611) (78,165)
Staff expenditure BIYH (66,010) (77,806)
Depreciation and amortisation e R H (15,241) (16,014)
Cost of inventories sold BEEFERA 15 (9,844) (11,996)
Repairs and maintenance s RIRE (5,926) (6,143)
Impairment loss on accounts receivable FE U BR FURE BT R 17(b) (2,422) (13,137)
Impairment loss on intangible assets ERAEREERE 12 (217) (2,895)
Write-down of inventories FE MR 15 (4,101) (296)
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment WE - WENREREESE 11 (22,910) —
Provision for onerous contracts EBE LB E 21 (14,455) =
Other operating expenses HiZEER (34,905) (40,224)
Total operating expenses KEBRETE (456,795) (471,058)
Loss before taxation BB Al 5 1R 5 (42,099) (41,137)
Income tax FriSHt 6(a) (25) (4,892)
Loss for the year REEFE (42,124) (46,029)
Attributable to: FE{EIR :
Equity shareholders of the Company VNS )i 35 5) (45,260) (47,913)
Non-controlling interests IR i A 3,136 1,884
Loss for the year TEERE (42,124) (46,029)
Loss per share (in Hong Kong cents) SIREE (BWL) 10
Basic BN (4.54) (4.80)
Diluted i N/A B A N/A 7 A

FI08BEEFI5BEMMTIBE AT EHRERH — I
e REBEMNARABRERBENFBE NN

Company attributable to the year are set out in note 9. 9o

The notes on pages 108 to 165 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the

1 02 RoadShow Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

REBEBERHMZEKER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE-Z-AFT-A=1t-HLFEREEHE)

2016 2015
$'000 $'000
Fr Fr
Loss for the year REFEE (42,124) (46,029)
Other comprehensive income for the year AEEHMEEEKE
(after tax and reclassification adjustments): (BB R EF D EAER) :
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to HEnEFoBEEER
profit or loss: HYIER ¢
Available-for-sale debt securities: A EEEES
Changes in fair value recognised in the fair FRR AR BERRE
value reserve during the year, net of tax ERAN AR EEED -
MR R — (29)
Exchange differences on translation of the HME B ABIFHINETE BT

financial statements of operations outside RIFRHOLE N =58 -

Hong Kong, net of tax HBRFiIER (1,015) (920)
Total comprehensive income for the year REEZHMKRZEAZE (43,139) (46,978)
Attributable to: AR -

Equity shareholders of the Company E/NS i (46,275) (48,862)
Non-controlling interests Sl g 3,136 1,884
Total comprehensive income for the year rEEXERRER (43,139) (46,978)

The notes on pages 108 to 165 form part of these financial

statements.

{/'\ °
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P

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
mREMHRRR

At 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
REZZB—RE+TZA=+—H(RBEHE)

2016 2015
Note $’000 $'000
M5E T Tt
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BEKREE 11 13,629 32,125
Intangible assets EmRAE 12 — 189
Non-current prepauments and deposits IERmBTENHRERIES 13 1,523 14,502
Deferred tax assets FEERIEE B 22(b) 10,393 4,775
25,545 51,591
Current assets REEE
Inventories T8 15 — 6,716
Amount due from ultimate holding company FE U B 4R AR AR N B FRIE 16(a) — 5,004
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries G e EPNGIE 16(b) 5,203 3,119
Accounts receivable FEUZAR K 17 101,154 148,643
Other receivables and deposits Hib B IR R R IR & 10,098 19,377
Current tax recoverable FE U A B TE 22(a) 400 3,458
Pledged bank deposits BEFRITER 18 78,343 79,691
Bank deposits and cash RITEREES 19 397,954 369,755
593,152 635,763
Current liabilities REBEE
Accounts payable FETBREX 20 1,977 5,071
Amount due to ultimate holding company FEA AR IZERR A B FIE 16(a) 3 —
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries FEAT [R) 2 Bt B 2 B IE 16(b) 1,065 13,239
Other payables and accruals Hib R R EER 99,165 119,412
Provision for onerous contracts EiE A KR E 21 14,455 —
Current tax payable FEA AR EAR IE 22(a) 1,060 3,842
117,725 141,564
Net current assets RBEEZRE 475,427 494,199
Total assets less current liabilities EEREBERRBERE 500,972 545,790
Non-current liabilities FRBERF
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIEAE 22(b) 138 217
NET ASSETS EEFE 500,834 545,573
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARFES
Share capital BN 23(b) 99,737 99,737
Reserves FiEs 391,877 438,152
Total equity attributable to equity shareholders RDFRREGERS
of the Company #azE 491,614 537,889
Non-controlling interests FEIERR RS 9,220 7,684
TOTAL EQUITY BT 500,834 545,573

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directorson 17 RKEZFEe@WN T —+F=F++HH ETFERET

March 2017. % o

Dr John CHAN Cho Chak LOH Chan Stephen
PRABEE T+ B

Chairman Managing Director
E: EFmgE

The notes on pages 108 to 165 form part of these financial 2 108B 2 F 1658 WM T B ARFA B H KN — I
statements. % o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REERREBR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-Z-—AET-AZ+-BLFE(RBEHE)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ARARREE
Retained
profits/
(ac-
Fair value cumulated Non-
Share  General Contributed ~ Other  reserve Exchange  losses) controlling Total

capital  reserve  suplus  reserve  AAEE  reserve RERER/  Total interests  equity

RE -REE BARR EthE i JERE (ZEE) @it FERER BRER

Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $1000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
ik n n T I I n T r rn n

Balance at 1 January 2015 RZF-55-A-ANEH 99,737 602 531569 (605) 29 14,266 20444 666,042 10600 676,642
Changes i equity for 2015: “R-RENERED:

(Loss)/profitfor the year REE(BR)/BR — — = = = —  (49m3)  (7913) 1884 (46029)

Other comprehensive income Hi2EhE — - - — (29 (920) — (949) — (949)
Total comprehensive income Elesct - - - - (29) (920 (47913) (48862) 1884  (46,978)
Dividend approvedin respect of BELEREHENRE

the previous year 9(b) - - - - - — (1) (79297) - (1999
Dividend paid to non-controlling BRFHERERHRE

interests — - - - — — — — (48000  (4800)
Balance at 31 December 2015 RZE-ZE+-A=1-AR

and 1 January 2016 —g-RE-f-ANES 973 602 SS9 (605)  — 1336 (106760) 5788 7684 545573
Changes in equity for 2016: “E-NENERED:

(Loss)/profit for the year REE(BB) /BT - - - - - — (452600 (45260) 3136 (42,124)

Other comprehensive income H2EkE - - - - - (101) - (1009) - (401)
Total comprehensive income 2ElEEE - - - - — (1015 (45200) (46275) 3136 (43139)
Dividend paid to non-controlling BRIFHERESHRE

interests - - - - - - - —  (L600)  (1,00)
Balance at 31 December 2016 R=B-~E+ZA=1-H

i3 99,737 602 531,569 (605) — 12331 (152,020) 491,614 9,220 500,834

The notes on pages 108 to 165 form part of these financial 55108 B & 25 165 B &) Iff i1 B AN 81 7% i = &9 — =6
statements. 7 o
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P

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HEZZ-AFT-A=+-RLFEREBYEHE)

2016 2015
Note $'000 $’000
B3 Fr Fr
Operating activities KT
Loss before taxation K7L AT 18 (42,099) (41,137)
Adjustments for: T
Depreciation and amortisation P& Ry 15,241 16,014
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant and HEYE BB &EE
equipment B () 432 (4,000)
Impairment loss on accounts receivable FEU R BB E & 1B 2,422 13,137
Write-down of inventories TFEMOR 4,101 296
Impairment loss on intangible assets A R E AR 217 2,895
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment M - BERREREER 22,910 —
Interest income FLEMA (4,918) (4,998)
Provision for onerous contracts EBE R E 14,455 —
Foreign exchange loss [E 5518 11,585 11,666
Operating profit/(loss) before changes in working EEESEHAINKE
capital BA(&#8) 24,346 (6,127)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FE®D (3Em) 2,615 (5,292)
Decrease in amount due from ultimate holding FE W S AR PR A B RIR
company, net A F 5,007 —
(Increase)/decrease in amounts due from fellow e EPNGIE
subsidiaries (1), mA (2,084) 7,490
Decrease/(increase) in accounts receivable FEMBR TR A (350) 45,067 (15,370)
Decrease/(increase) in other receivables and HEREE R IZE R,
deposits (3%A0) 13,670 (5,217)
(Decrease)/increase in accounts payable FERBRZR OB ), /5N (3,094) 2,158
(Decrease)/increase in amounts due to fellow NG e EPNGIE
subsidiaries CRiA) /30 (12,174) 6,937
(Decrease)/increase in other payables and accruals H b EMBRR N ERTE A
CriA) /1 (20,245) 17,034
Cash generated from operations RELETHNRSE 53,108 1,613
Tax paid BEAIHIE
— Hong Kong Profits Tax (paid)/refunded — (Bff)/BREEH
IS (4,885) 8,176
— The People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) income — BAFREARLRME
tax paid (TBE DB (550) (602)
Net cash generated from operating activities RELETBHNRSE
HEE 47,673 9,187
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2016 2015
Note $'000 $’000
B3 Fr Fr
Investing activities REEH
Payment for the purchase of property, plant and AV - BE RE&E
equipment (e (11,488) (14,320)
Payment for the purchase of intangible assets BABFEENK (90) (1,418)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and HEWE « BE&K&E
equipment B FT1S kI8 10 4,000
Repayment of other financial assets Hih St EEBN — 40,668
Interest received B U FE 4,909 7,767
Decrease/(increase) in bank deposits with original REHARBB=EAH
maturities over three months RITIEFORA (380) 28,753 (63,612)
Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank deposits EEARITERRL
(3%0) 1,348 (18,291)
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing RE(AR)RETE
activities WIS FE 23,442 (45,206)
Financing activities BEER
Dividend paid BARE — (79,291)
Dividend paid to non-controlling shareholders AT IR R B AR S (1,600) (4,800)
Net cash used in financing activities ARBEZBNESTFE (1,600) (84,091)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash BeRB&ZSEYHEM
equivalents OR2) 38 69,515 (120,110)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—A—HWEER
HELEY 138,571 262,146
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EXSHNEE (3,465) (3,465)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December R+=—A=+—H®W
HERBEEEY 19 204,621 138,571

The notes on pages 108 to 165 form part of these financial

statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR R R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRSBETN  GRBETE)

1. Significant accounting policies

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the Listing Rules”).
Significant accounting policies adopted by the Group are
disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group. Note 1(c) provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2016 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis.
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

()

(continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Judgements and estimates made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the
financial statements are discussed in note 29.

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to HKFRSs
that are first effective for the current accounting period of
the Group. None of these developments have had a material
effect on how the Group's results and financial position
for the current or prior periods have been prepared or
presented.

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B AR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRSBETN  GRBETE)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. When assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are
considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to
the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and
in respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in
respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination, the Group
can elect to measure any non-controlling interests either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of
the Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of
the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as an
allocation of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between non-controlling interests and
the equity shareholders of the Company.
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(d)

(e)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)
Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no
gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of
an investment in an associate or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 1(i)).

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see note

1(1)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or
loss on the date of retirement or disposal.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B AR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRSBETN  GRBETE)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(e)

()

(g)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Audio and visual equipment 5-7 years

Billboards Over the remaining

lease term
Furniture and fixtures 7 years
Hardware and software 5 years

Leasehold improvements Over the remaining

lease term

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any,
are reviewed annually.

Programming library
Cost of programmes produced in-house is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Intangible assets and amortisation

(i) Expenditure on development activities is capitalised if
the product or process is technically and commercially
feasible and the Group has sufficient resources and the
intention to complete the development. Capitalised
development costs are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation (where the estimated useful life is finite)
and impairment losses (see note 1(i)).

(i) Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives

is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over

the assets’ estimated useful lives. Website and mobile

apps development costs capitalised are amortised over

their estimated useful lives of five years from the date

they are available for use. Both the period and method

of amortisation are reviewed annually.
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued

(h) Accounts receivable and other receivables

()

Accounts receivable and other receivables are initially
recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts (see note 1(i)), except where
the receivables are interest-free loans made to related
parties without any fixed repayment terms or the effect
of discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the
receivables are stated at cost less allowance for impairment
of doubtful debts (see note 1(i)).

Impairment of assets

(i) Impairment of receivables
Current and non-current receivables that are stated
at cost or amortised cost are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. Objective evidence
of impairment includes observable data that comes to
the attention of the Group about one or more of the
following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and

— a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below its
cost.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B AR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRSBETN  GRBETE)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(i) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of receivables (continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is

determined and recognised as follows:

For trade and other receivables and other financial
assets carried at amortised cost, the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these assets), where the effect of
discounting is material. This assessment is made
collectively where these financial assets share
similar risk characteristics, such as similar past due
status, and have not been individually assessed
as impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets
which are assessed for impairment collectively are
based on historical loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics similar to the collective

group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be linked objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised, the impairment
loss is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal of
an impairment loss shall not result in the assets’
carrying amount exceeding that which would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued

(i) Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Impairment of receivables (continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade debtors and bills
receivable included within accounts receivable, whose
recovery is considered doubtful but not remote. In
this case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts
are recorded using an allowance account. When the
Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against trade
debtors and bills receivable directly and any amounts
held in the allowance account relating to that debt are
reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account are reversed against
the allowance account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in profit or

loss.

(i) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to identify
indications that property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets and investments in subsidiaries in
the Company’s statement of financial position may be
impaired or an impairment loss previously recognised

no longer exists or may have decreased.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable

amount is estimated.

— Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely independent
of those from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-

generating unit).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B AR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRSBETN  GRBETE)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(i) Impairment of assets (continued)
(ii) Impairment of other assets (continued)
— Recognition of impairment losses
An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of the assets in the unit
(or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable) or value in use (if determinable).

— Reversals of impairment losses
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to prepare
an interim financial report in compliance with HKAS
34, Interim financial reporting, in respect of the first six
months of the financial year. At the end of the interim
period, the Group applies the same impairment testing,
recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at the end
of the financial year (see notes 1(i) (i) and (ii)).

1 1 6 RoadShow Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016

1. FESTEHEMR)

(i) EEREE)
(i) Rt EERE (&)
— JREEERER
FEEE(AEHMBARSLEESR
)M BREER R E A 4 e 8
B AR BEANERRESE -
RS LEEEMERNREEE
SRR DB (KBERHER)
NEEME@E HEEREE
eRLEBRNEBENAAEE
WMHERAN (A E)KERE
B(INAERE) B RIBE -

— RIEEEAREE
fie ¥ DA BB E mJ 4R [ 2R 0 (i AT 2
HHRANEE  BBERBER
SO -

BB 5 18 #O 188 (0] 2R (2 (R 10 fis 1 F
Y EERABEBREMETHNEE
FRIEN{E - 5 (B &5 18 /Y 388 [ 7 10
RELMEEZAEBRRER

(iii) B 81 7% 3 & R el {8

ﬁﬁtﬁﬁ%*$%lﬁpxéﬁ

SPERIDE MR/ P Y HFIHRE R
%Wﬁi?%ﬁﬂﬂ%¢%%%ﬁ
E NP HBRLERE  AEEER
FA 8370 B B T A R R 0 SRR 1R
A mREBEEE(RMELG)G) R
(ii)) °



1. Significant accounting policies (continued

0

(k)

0

Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in-first-out costing method
and comprises all costs of purchase and other costs incurred
in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all
losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as
a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Accounts payable and other payables

Accounts payable and other payables are initially recognised
at fair value and subsequently stated at amortised cost
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B AR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRSBETN  GRBETE)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(m) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future
taxable profits that may support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of existing
taxable temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse either in the same
period as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising from the
deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The same
criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and
credits, that is, those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or
periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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1. FEEFEE®E)
(m) FrE% (&)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued

(m) Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are those temporary differences arising from
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not
part of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in
the case of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing
of the reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised.
Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against
deferred tax liabilities, if the Group or the Company has the
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the following additional conditions
are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Group or the Company intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B AR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRSBETN  GRBETE)

1. FESTEHEMR)

(m) Income tax [continued) (m) FREH (&)
— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they — RMELERBEENEEMS @ 251
EMBEVARR -—REEARAT
Hp—EHBOREHER :

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or — RA—EERNELS &
— different taxable entities, which, in each future — TRANERRERE MZSEER
period in which significant amounts of deferred tax HEEEHAREELEREBEAE

FERERRERBEEN ALK
B8 & EARKBARA - I FEE
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis or EGRARNEBRIBEEWEEAH
realise and settle simultaneously. MIEBE IEEREENRE
BEALE -

liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets

(n) BERGARERE
MERAEENARAAAEBEZHE
P A TE Bk HE E 2 75 T AT BE TR AN AR B N 2
NBITEEME - WaEH T e BRIz e

it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be A SEfRETR - RIZE$T 0L R BE e IR PR S B

required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate ENBERERER WEEHEKRREE

(n) Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group or the Company has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event,

can be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.

Provision for an onerous contract is recognised when the
unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the
contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be
received. The unavoidable costs under a contract reflect the
least net cost of exiting from the contract, which is the lower
of the cost of fulfilling the contract and any compensation or
penalties arising from failure to fulfil the contract.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(o) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration

received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the

economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue

and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is

recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i)

(i)

(iii

=

Income from multi-media sales, bus interior and exterior
advertising, and advertising on transit vehicle shelters,
online portal, mobile apps and outdoor signages is
recognised when the related advertisements are
telecast or commercials appear before the public.
Revenue is stated net of agency commission and rebate
and is recognised by reference to the stage of telecast
of the related advertisements at the end of the reporting
period.

Fee income from media sales management and
administrative services, production of advertisements,
and advertising agency services is recognised when the
related services are rendered.

Revenue from sale of merchandise is recognised
when the merchandise is delivered at the customers’
premises which is taken to be the point in time when
the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
merchandise have been transferred to the customers.
Revenue is stated net of trade discounts.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

Dividend income from unlisted investments is
recognised when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment is established.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B AR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRSBETN  GRBETE)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(p)

(q)

Leased assets and operating leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based
on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form
of a lease.

Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the Group are classified as operating
leases.

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to
profit or loss in equal instalments over the accounting
periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern
of benefits to be derived from the leased assets. Lease
incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease payments made.

Employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present values.
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(r) Translation of foreign currencies

The functional currency of the Company and subsidiaries
which operate in Hong Kong is Hong Kong dollar while that
for subsidiaries which operate in Mainland China is Renminbi.
The presentation currency of the Company is Hong Kong
dollar.

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair
value was measured.

The results of operations outside Hong Kong are translated
into Hong Kong dollar at the exchange rates approximating
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Statement of financial position items are
translated into Hong Kong dollar at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of an operation outside Hong Kong, the
cumulative amount of the exchange differences recognised
in equity which relate to that operation is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B AR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRSBETN  GRBETE)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(s) Related parties
(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control orjoint control over the Group;
(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group's parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a Group of which the other entity is a
member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(iv) One entityis a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(s) Related parties (continued)

(t)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: [continued)

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which itis a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if
they share a majority of these criteria.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B AR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRSBETN  GRBETE)

Segment reporting

The Group manages its business by geographical areas. In a
manner consistent with the way in which information is reported
internally to the Group’s most senior executive management
for the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment, the Group has identified the following two reportable
segments.
Hong Kong: Provision of media sales, design and
management services and production of
advertisements

Mainland China: Provision of media sales services and
production of advertisements

There are no sales between the reportable segments.

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s most senior
executive management monitors the results attributable to each
reportable segment on the following bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments
with reference to sales generated by those segments and the
expenses incurred by those segments or which otherwise arise
from the depreciation or amortisation of assets attributable to
those segments.

Segment assets and liabilities include all current and non-current
assets and liabilities, respectively, which are directly managed by
the segments.
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2. Segment reporting (continued) 2. oE|EE)

HE-_ZT—RX

F
EE - AEE

Information regarding the Group's reportable segments for the

KZZE—hF+_A=+—H
years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 is set out below. EWmMNEOERFINNAT o

(a) 2EBI BB - BIHBR -BEERE

(a) Reportable segment revenues, profit or loss, assets and

liabilities: &
Hong Kong Mainland China Total
&% KB #Et
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T Fr T T T Fr
Revenue from external DERISEI S o]
customers A 407,511 411,946 — — 407,511 411,946
Other revenue and other net HA A R EA
loss i %5 12,093 22,795 193 174 12,286 22,969
Reportable segment revenue EHHHWA 419,604 434,741 193 174 419,797 434,915
Reportable segment (loss)/ ERAW(EHR)/
profit B (13,651) (13,405) 53 (1) (13,598) (13,406)
Depreciation and amortisation AEEMER
for the year b (13,018) (14,038) — — (13,018) (14,038)
Impairment loss on accounts FEMRBRFORE
receivable EE (2,422)  (13,137) — = (2,422)  (13,137)
Impairment loss on intangible ‘R AERE
assets & (217) (2,895) — = (217) (2,895)
Write-down of inventories FEMR (4,101) (296) — — (4,101) (296)
Impairment loss on property, ME « BERRE
plant and equipment AR (22,910) — — —  (22,910) =
Provision for onerous EEEH
contracts B (14,455) — — —  (14,455) —
Reportable segment assets ERIBEE 460,803 519,978 153,233 160,659 614,036 680,637
Additions to non-current FRIERED
segment assets during the DEEE
year HIRNE 11,578 15,738 — — 11,578 15,738
Reportable segment 28D
liabilities 8& 117,334 141,332 529 449 117,863 141,781
weFH  mmppasan 127
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B AR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRSBETN  GRBETE)

2. Segment reporting (continued)

(b) The Group's reportable segment liabilities are equal
to consolidated total liabilities. Reconciliations of
reportable segment revenue, profit or loss and assets

are as follows:

2. PEHEHE)
(b) AEENERIBEBHENRGEEREE
o 2RO/ BUA > BARNEFEREEY
BRI :

2016 2015
$'000 $'000
Fx Fr
Revenue 'ON
Reportable segment revenue WD WA 419,797 A3 N5
Unallocated other revenue and other net loss R B E AU A R E A 518 558 (5,101) (4,994)
Consolidated total operating revenue IREEERALEEE 414,696 429,921
2016 2015
$'000 $'000
Fr Fr
Profit or loss BERREER
Reportable segment loss 2R IPEE (13,598) (13,400)
Unallocated other revenue and other net loss RO EE AU A R H A 518 % 58 (5,101) (4,994)
Unallocated head office and corporate ROBRI B R
expenses g (23,400) (22,737)
Consolidated loss before taxation L EBRTBIAIE R (42,099) (41,137)
2016 2015
$'000 $’000
Fr Fr
Assets EE
Reportable segment assets EWHHEE 614,036 680,637
Unallocated head office and corporate assets AOMREMERRDEEE 4,661 6,717
Consolidated total assets REBERE 618,697 687,354

3. Revenue

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of media sales
and design services and production of advertisements for Multi-
media On-board (“MMOB” or “BUS-TV"), transit vehicle exteriors
and interiors, online portal, mobile apps, shelters and outdoor
signages advertising businesses. The Group is also engaged in
the provision of integrated marketing services covering these

advertising platforms.

Revenue represents income from media sales, design and

3. A

AEBETEREARDZRB(IRBZHKE]
HELER]) BEEWMESIBRERA
B MY FREREN  REZRPIES
PR R BRI E MG IRTS - A REE RN
% ARETRERENERESFANES
M5 E RS -

WAEHBREARERE RENE - KERE

management services and production of advertisements, net of HE Rt RERRB - UREBESRENK

commission and rebate.
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4. Other revenue and other net loss 4, HMWAREMEEEEHE

(a) Other revenue (a) EMWA
2016 2015
$'000 $'000
Fr Fr
Interest income from listed available-for-sale KA EHAEHEEKEEN
debt securities (Note) MEWA (KB 5E) — 218
Other interest income E AR S U A 4,918 4,780
Interest income from financial assets not at REWIEEBERIZALEE
fair value through profit or loss FIBRAY & R E E R F B U A 4,918 4,998
Sales of merchandise P mmiHE 12,117 18,643
Sundry revenue HAih U A 90 152
17,125 23,793
Note:  The listed available-for-sale debt securities matured in WaiF: LEHAHEEEBESFER-_ZE—AF
September 2015. JLAEIER -
(b) Other net loss (b) EfEE T
2016 2015
$'000 $'000
F Fr
Exchange loss FE 5 &5 1R (9,508) (9,818)
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, plant and HEME - BE MK
equipment (E518) ke (432) 4,000
(9,940) (5,818)
5. Loss before taxation 5. BRELAIE B
Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging: B ATEIE D R
2016 2015
$'000 $’000
Fr Fr
Auditor’s remuneration ZE AN & 2,948 2,900
Contributions to defined contribution retirement ERBHFRIRETEIR
schemes HR 1,701 1,993
Depreciation and amortisation Pre Ky 15,241 16,014
Operating lease charges e
—land and buildings — T REF 4,671 5,963
— audio and visual equipment — wERE — 256
Provision for onerous contracts EEA KBS 14,455 —
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(BRSBETN  GRBETE)

6. Income tax in the consolidated statement of profit

or loss

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss

(b)

6. SIRNGEBEERNAEH

(a) IIRGREBHEROBIESR

represents:
2016 2015
$'000 $'000
Fr Fr
Current tax AT E
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the REEBBFISH
current year Bt 5,097 4,842
Over-provision in respect of prior years BEFEREEE (22) (41)
5,075 4,801
Provision for PRC income tax R B TS R s 621 406
Under-provision in respect of prior years BAEFEEETR 26 57
5,722 5,264
Deferred tax EERE
Reversal and origination of temporary R = E Ay EE o) R FERR
differences (see note 22(b)) (ZHaE22()) (5,697) (372)
Income tax expense FriSfisz i 25 4,892

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year
is calculated at 16.5% (2015: 16.5%) of the estimated
assessable profits for the year. Taxation for subsidiaries

in the PRC is charged at the appropriate current rates of

taxation ruling in the PRC.

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting

loss at applicable tax rates:

AEENBENGHBEDRRAFE
Bt ERT AN 165%(ZF—0F :
16.5% )5 & o R BIRKIE 2 Rl M R IAR
FRAPBIRITHERRKRE -

(b) RERBRFENHAMAXEESHERN

Ea)

2016 2015

$'000 $'000

Fr Fr

Loss before taxation BREE R E1E (42,099) (41,137)

Notional tax on loss before taxation, calculated Bt Al 518 IR Z B B AR

at the rates applicable to losses in the relevant B AR E AR RTER

tax jurisdictions BEIE (6,735) (6,645)

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR R S I FR TE R & 1,695 1,653

Tax effect of non-taxable revenue BERBUAMNTR B & (436) (455)

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERFH IS EENR BT & 5,460 8,043

Reversal of deferred tax assets recognised B OB ERIELERIEEE — 1,719

Under-provision in prior years BAFERETRE 4 16

Others Hth 37 561

Actual tax expense ERBIER 25 4,892
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Directors’ emoluments

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1)

of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the

EEME

B4R & BCR BE G )5 383(1) 16k (A A (8
BEENSEERRIDE 2HNRE - EEM

Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of SWEMT
Directors) Regulation are as follows:
2016
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors'  and benefits  Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
F4 2R
EE-tika BNEA B RAGHEIMR @t
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T Fr
Non-Executive Directors FHITES

Dr John CHAN Cho Chak BiEERL 154 - - — 154
Ms Winnie NG hEEZ L 231 — - — 231
Mr YUNG Wing Chung BkBEE 275 — — — 275
Mr MAK Chun Keung BRI E 110 — — — 110
Mr John Anthony MILLER HEREA 132 — — — 132
Mr Allen FUNG Yuk Lun BEBEE 132 — — — 132
Mr LEE Luen Fai TEBERE 110 - - — 110

Independent Non-Executive Directors BV HTES
Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI BRREREL 284 — - — 284
Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung FRERL 279 - - — 279
Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan Leung  3R1= R #13% 315 - - - 315
Dr John YEUNG Hin Chung BEREL 110 — — — 110
2,132 — — — 2,132
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(BRSBETN  GRBETE)

7. Directors’ emoluments [confinued) 7. EEME(E)
2015
Salaries,
allowances
and benefits Retirement
Directors’ inkind  Discretionary scheme
fees (Note 3) bonuses  contributions Total
e 2R
EWEF
EEHe (Fi#t3) WA RINETEM @zt
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T Tr T
Executive Director HTES
Mr Alex MO Tik Sang (Note 1) ERmESE N 75 1,981 — 18 2,074
Non-Executive Directors FHTES
Dr John CHAN Cho Chak FRAEE T 154 — — — 154
Ms Winnie NG hEfELZt 231 _ _ _ 231
Mr YUNG Wing Chung DokBEAE 264 — — = 264
Mr MAK Chun Keung BIRAEE 110 = = = 110
Mr John Anthony MILLER HEBEE 132 — — — 132
Mr Allen FUNG Yuk Lun BEBTE 132 — — — 132
Mr LEE Luen Fai (Note 2) TRELE(NF2) 59 — — — 59

Independent Non-Executive Directors By EHTES

Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI RRBEL 268 — — — 268
Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung FRERT 279 — — — 279
Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan Leung  RICRHIR 304 — — — 304
Dr John YEUNG Hin Chung BETEL 110 — — — 110
2,118 1,981 — 18 4117
Notes: Hist -
1. Mr Alex MO Tik Sang resigned as a Director with effect from 7 1. ERARER-_ZE-—AFNALHEERHTES -
September 2015.
2. Mr LEE Luen Fai was appointed as a Director with effect from 18 2. FEBEAA-_T-RAFNATN\AREZEA
June 2015. BE-
3. The benefits in kind are medical and personal accident insurance 3. BYENERASENTESZANBEREAER
entitled by the Executive Director of the Group. SMRBE -
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8. Individuals with highest emoluments 8. meMEAL

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, one was a REBEE-_ZT—HF+-_A=+—HLFE &
Director whose emoluments are disclosed in note 7 for the year ZaRaMEATHBEE—RES  ZEEHE
ended 31 December 2015. The aggregate of the emoluments in ERWEF7H#E - AR(ZE—HF : HA)&
respect of the five (2015: four) individuals are as follows: SHMe A TS EEETmT
2016 2015
$’000 $’000
Fr Fr
Salaries, allowances and other benefits e EEREMEF 7,587 6,297
Retirement scheme contributions RRET IR 90 72
7,677 6,369
The emoluments of the five (2015: four) individuals with the AL E—HE OB )55 EATH
highest emoluments are within the following bands: B oiTnT -
Number of individuals
N
2016 2015
$1,000,001 - $1,500,000 1,000,001 7t — 1,500,000 7T 2 1
$1,500,001 - $2,000,000 1,500,001 7t — 2,000,000 7T 3 3
5 4
9. Dividends 9. RE
(a) Dividend payable to equity shareholders of the (a) *EERFEARATRRARE :
Company attributable to the year:
2016 2015
$’000 $’000
Fr Fr
Final dividend proposed after the end of BRI E BREEZE D KA R
the reporting period of nil cent A% B FRZ
per share (2015: nil cent per share) —E—RF : FRIW) — =
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(BRSBETN  GRBETE)

9. Dividends (continued)

(b) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
Company attributable to the previous year, approved
and paid during the year:

9. RE (&)

(b) ERFARERKBNLE-—FERSER
ARRKE :

2016 2015
$’000 $'000
Fr Fr
Final dividend in respect of the previous financial = R4 R#EE M IR F—BF B
year, approved and paid during the year, of nil FERAKSERZA
cent per share (2015: 3.85 cents per share) (ZZ—A%F : F%3.851L) — 38,399
Special dividend in respect of the previous BEREARE RIKER E—
financial year, approved and paid during the M EERRIRE
year, of nil cent per share (2015: 4.10 cents per BREW(=ZZE—HEF :
share) Fhz4.101L) — 40,892
— 79,291
10. Loss per share 10. BREE

(a) Basic loss per share
The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the loss
attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the Company
of $45,260,000 (2015: $47,913,000) and the weighted
average of 997,365,332 ordinary shares (2015: 997,365,332
ordinary shares) in issue during the year.

(b) Diluted loss per share

There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares outstanding
during the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.
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(a) BREXEE
BRERNEBEBEDIREBEFARRF L BER
P BR FE 1f 5 $845,260,0000( = F — |
£ :47,913,00070 ) R B ET LB N
T 19 #997,365332 (=T — L F ¢
997,365,332 IR L i@mA% ) FT & ©

(b) EREBEEE
REE_ZE—R"ER-_ZT—HF+=A
ST+ -RLEFETEABEEEYENE
BITERRK -



11. Property, plant and equipment 11. 9% - RERZE

Audio
and visual Hardware Furniture Leasehold
equipment  and software and fixtures  improvements Billboards Total
FERE BRREM GRREE HENERE EER @5t
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
i r Fr i i i
Cost: BA
At 1 January 2015 RZE-h%—A—H 137,407 10,958 3401 4918 4,962 161,646
Exchange adjustments 0 5 = (17) (33) = = (50)
Additions NE 3,342 4,051 55 125 538 8,111
Disposal HE = = = = (4962) (4962)
At 31 December 2015 R-ZE—hF
+=ZA=1—H 140,749 14,992 3423 5,043 538 164,745
Accumulated depreciation: RitiE
At 1 January 2015 RZZ-H%-A—H 109,412 5,362 1,861 2,564 3,192 122,391
Exchange adjustments 0 5 % = (15) (33) = = (48)
Charge for the year FAME 8,615 2,143 321 2,043 2,117 15,239
Written back on disposal R = = = = (4,962) (4,962)
At 31 December 2015 R-ZE—h%E
+=ZA=1+-A 118,027 7,490 2,149 4,607 347 132,620
Net book value: BREFE
At 31 December 2015 R-_ZT—h%E
+=A=1+-AH 22,722 7,502 1,274 436 191 32,125
Audio
and visual Hardware Furniture Leasehold
equipment  and software and fixtures  improvements Billboards Total
YERE BEROH GRREE HEWEERE BER @5
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
i i i Tr Tr r
Cost: BA
At 1 January 2016 RZZ—R"¥-HA—H 140,749 14,992 3,423 5,043 538 164,745
Exchange adjustments et — (17) (34) — — (51)
Additions NE 10,576 257 167 9,038 - 20,038
Disposal HE (1,643) (1,843) (1,399) (4,642) (458) (9,985)
At 31 December 2016 RZB—RE
+=A=+-H 149,682 13,389 2,157 9,439 80 174,747
Accumulated depreciation and 2 ERAE
impairment losses: &
At 1 January 2016 RZE—7~"5—A—H 118,027 7,490 2,149 4,607 347 132,620
Exchange adjustments & 5 - (15) (33) — — (48)
Charge for the year FRHE 10,392 2,423 319 1,887 158 15,179
Written back on disposal HERED (1,614) (1,808) (1,021) (4,642) (458) (9,543)
Impairment loss HESSE 22,877 — — — 33 22,910
At 31 December 2016 RZB—RF
+-R=1—H 149,682 8,090 1414 1,852 80 161,118
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 December 2016 RZB—RE
+=A=1+-A - 5,299 743 7,587 — 13,629
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11. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Audio and visual equipment is used in the BUS-TV business.
Against the background that the Group has decided not to submit
a tender for a new licence relating to the BUS-TV business which
will succeed the current licence when it expires on 30 June 2017
(see note 21), management assessed that the carrying amount
of the audio and visual equipment may not be recoverable
through future cash flows to be generated from operations
or from their disposal upon expiry of the related licences.
Therefore, an impairment provision of $22,877,000 (2015: $Nil) is
recognised to reduce the carrying amount of the audio and visual
equipment to its estimated recoverable amount for the year

11.M¥ - - BERREE)

TESHBANELIEREL - ERALEER
ETERRECTEREREEOTFIED
EENAEBER _Z—+tFEA=Z+TAREHDH
BABHERNTE2)  BEEBIGFSR
BHNEEEEELIEBNCEEENERRK
Remne M ERNTERRRERLEFP K
B o Bt - BRI B & 22,877,000 L (=
T—AF:Tn) UBFSRENREER
EEERBE-_ZT—AF+_A=1+—HLHF
EEER I EE ¢

ended 31 December 2016.
12. Intangible assets 12. B EE
Website and
mobile apps
FEDEY S
FERERN
$'000
Frx
Cost: BN
At 1 January 2015 W—ZE—hF—HA—H 2,930
Additions NE 1,418
At 31 December 2015 RZZE—RAF+=A=+—H 4,348
At 1 January 2016 RZE—R"F—A—H 4,348
Additions NE 90
Disposal & (1,200)
At 31 December 2016 N-E—R"F+-_A=+—H 3,238
Accumulated amortisation and impairment losses: Rt B RRERE :
At 1 January 2015 R-—ZE—RF—HA—H 489
Charge for the year FREH 775
Impairment loss DERIEN 58] 2,895
At 31 December 2015 R-Z—AF+-A=+—~ 4,159
At 1 January 2016 RZZE—R"F—H—H 4,159
Charge for the year FNEH 62
Written back on disposal & E (1,200)
Impairment loss BEEE 217
At 31 December 2016 RZZE—R"FF+ZA=+—H 3,238
Net book value FRENEE
At 31 December 2016 RZE—R"F+-A=1+—H —
At 31 December 2015 R-E—RAF+_-_A=+—H 189
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12.

13.

Intangible assets (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2015, an impairment loss of
$2,895,000 was recognised. The main factor contributing to the
impairment was the decrease in revenue of the Group’s Digital
and Mobile Business. The Group assessed that the recoverable
amounts of the development costs of related website and
mobile apps are not significant and as a result a full provision of
impairment loss has been made on such intangible assets.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, an impairment loss
of $217,000 was recognised. The main factor contributing to the
impairment was the expiry of a licence agreement on the sale of
merchandises. The Group assessed that the recoverable amounts
of the development costs of the website and mobile apps which
are used in the sale of merchandises are not significant and as a
result a full provision of impairment loss has been made on such
intangible assets.

Non-current prepayments and deposits

Non-current prepayments and deposits comprise prepayments
and deposits for purchase of property, plant and equipment,
security for the due payment of licence fees and office rental.
The amounts are neither past due nor impaired.

12.

13.

BILEE(E)

REBEE-ZT—RF+-A=+T—HLEFE B
ﬁ&a@ﬁz@&siaz%z,895,000x o HERENE
ZRZAAEEHB LR T A E£BWAR
Lo AEBEFEEEEE R FHERREAME
AR EIZBETA - AERZEELE

Er AR EEEEE -
REBEE_Z—RE+_A=+—RHILEE B2

M EREA217,000T - HBEHENTE
AEAHEBMOSTHRER - AEBFG
HERMAOBL R FHEREXMEREANHT
WEEETK  AHERZESEFEEDERE
RBEFBERE -

F(ARBESRERRSE

ERBENRBERESBEBENE BER
REARBEISTMNETERNEREES
MBNFERERS - ZSHEY BB TR
A e
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14. Investments in subsidiaries 14. MBARRE
The following list contains the particulars of subsidiaries. The TREFIMBRARMER - KRB ERBEIN - AT
class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated. FROERNY AT AR -
All of these are controlled subsidiaries as defined under note FTE M B A R R M 1(d) FTE & 8 X 12
1(d) and have been consolidated into the Group’s financial WEBAR  EEEEHARNEETBRRAL
statements. BEtHE o
Attributable equity
Place of Particulars of issued interest (%)
incorporation/ and paid up capital EtREEDL)
Name of company operation ERITREHR direct indirect Principal activity
ARER SRR EE Y BRAGEE B A TEEH
AdSociety Advertising Agency Hong Kong 2 shares — 100 Investment holding
Limited BE 28kt REER
SEEHEEBR A
Bus Focus Limited The British Virgin US$100 — 60 Provision of media sales
Islands/ Hong Kong 100%7T service for advertising on
RBRIES/ Bk transit vehicle shelters
REXEEHEEZFEEH
KRS E R
Bus Power Limited Hong Kong 1share — 100 Provision of media sales
BE 15 service for advertising on transit
vehicle exteriors and interiors
REEFEEHISNBRATDES
HER SRS
Cyberstop Limited The British Virgin Us$1 — 100 Holder of the registered
Islands/ Hong Kong 1% design and patent in
RBREIES /% relation to cyber bus stops
HEEBYBE LN
& E KA
KM-Vision Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares — 100 Dormant
BE 10,000 B 17 gmex
Leader Force Limited Hong Kong 1 share — 100 Provision of media sales
B 1R service for advertising
on billboards
REEERESNEEHEERY
LW-Vision Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares — 100 Dormant
30 10,000 B 17 s
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14. Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

14 MBARKRE(E)

Attributable equity
Place of Particulars of issued interest (%)
incorporation/ and paid up capital EEREEDLL)
Name of company operation ERITREHR direct indirect Principal activity
AR S EE BRAGFE =83 it TEER
MB-Vision Limited Hong Kong 2 shares — 100 Dormant
BB 2f&Bk TmEE
Road Publications Limited Hong Kong 2 shares — 100 Trading of bus souvenirs
BE 2fxiztn BEBTEomEEER
RoadShow Advertising (Beijing) The PRC US$500,000 — 100 Provision of media advertising
Company Limited (limited liability 500,000 7T agency service and design and
company) production of advertisements
BABES(LR)BRAA REEEEERIERSE R
(BRARRR) SRR
RoadShow Creations Limited Hong Kong 2 shares — 100 Trading of bus souvenirs
BE 2fxiztn REBTROmEEER
RoadShow Media Holdings Limited ~ The British Virgin us$1 — 100 Investment holding
Islands/ Hong Kong 17T REER
HERENEE/BE
RoadShow Media Limited Hong Kong 2 shares — 100 Provision of media sales &
BE 2[R management services
for BUS-TV business
RUCLEREBNERHEEN
ERRE
RoadShow Productions The British Virgin Us$1 — 100 Investment holding
Holdings Limited Islands/ Hong Kong 1%n REER
HRENEE/BE
RoadShow Productions Limited Hong Kong 2 shares — 100 Events production and production of
BE 2 tn content for BUS-TV systems
HERERREELERZGHE
RoadShow Resources Limited The British Virgin Us$1 100 — Investment holding
Islands/ Hong Kong e BAER
KERIEE/BH
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14. Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

14. B ARBRE (&)

Attributable equity
Place of Particulars of issued interest (%)
incorporation/ and paid up capital (R DLL)
Name of company operation ERITREHR direct indirect Principal activity
AR S EE S BRAGFE =83 B TEER
RoadVision Holdings (China) Limited ~ The British Virgin us$1 — 100 Investment holding
Islands/ Hong Kong 17T REER
HERTEE/BE
RoadVision Holdings Limited The British Virgin Us$2 — 100 Investment holding
Islands/ Hong Kong 2ETL BAER
KERLES/EE
RoadVision (Beijing) Limited The British Virgin Us$1 — 100 Investment holding
Islands/ Hong Kong (= REER
HRENEE/BE
RoadVision (Shanghai) Limited The British Virgin Us$1 — 100 Investment holding
Islands/ Hong Kong 1ZET BAER
HERNES/BE
RSG Resources Limited Hong Kong 2 shares — 100 Provision of employment
E 2R agency services
TRHBEDN RS
SB-Vision Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares — 95 Dormant
Bk 10,000 A {7 UEEX
Silver Sea Limited Hong Kong 1 share — 100 Provision of media sales service
BE 1ikB for online advertising
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14. Investments in subsidiaries (continued) 14 MBARKRE(E)

The following table lists out the information relating to Bus Focus TREINBERNEE M —FEBEEARERER
Limited, the only subsidiary of the Group which has material ([ 3E#E Bz ) A9 B B 2 B Bus Focus Limited
non-controlling interest (“NCI”). The summarised financial MER - L2 EERBEAAGIMEY
information presented below represents the amounts before any HATH & -

inter-company elimination.

2016 2015
$'000 $'000
Fr Fr
NCI percentage SRR A DL 40% 40%
Current assets MENEE 29,604 28,266
Current liabilities mEBE 6,553 9,055
Net assets BEFE 23,051 19,211
Carrying amount of NCI FEPERR R SR AR E (E 9,220 7,684
Revenue WA 61,469 56,199
Profit for the year IREE BT 7,840 4,711
Total comprehensive income 2H =LA 7,840 A7
Profit allocated to NCI DI E IR R B E A 3,136 1,884
Dividend paid to NCI B FIEE Rk 2 AR B 1,600 4,800
Cash flows from operating activities RELEEHHNRERE 9,257 4314
Cash flows from financing activities REMBEDHRESRE (4,000) (12,000)
15. Inventories 15. 78
All of the inventories are finished goods of merchandise. FEGEY AR REMKM °
The amount of inventories recognised as an expense is as follows: BRAIENTFESENT
2016 2015
$'000 $'000
Fr Fr
Carrying amount of inventories sold EHEFEREAE 9,844 11,996
Write-down of inventories FEMUR 4,101 296
13,945 12,292
Due to the expiry of the licence agreement on the sale of BN EER TR EFEnNEHE2 2
certain merchandises during the year ended 31 December 2016, —RNFE+T_A=+—BILHER®R FE&
inventories of $4,101,000 (2015: $296,000) were written down to 4,101,000 C(=Z—FF : 296,00070) ER =
its net realisable value at 31 December 2016. E-XE+-_A=+t—HMERZETERZF
B
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16. Amounts due from/(to) group companies

(@

The amount due from/(to) ultimate holding company
is unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed terms of
repayment. The amount due from ultimate holding company
is neither past due nor impaired.

The amounts due from/(to) fellow subsidiaries are
unsecured, interest-free, repayable on demand and
represent normal trade receivables and payables. The
amounts due from fellow subsidiaries are neither past due
nor impaired.

17. Accounts receivable

(a)

(b)

Ageing analysis

Details of the ageing analysis of accounts receivable that
are neither individually nor collectively considered to be
impaired at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

16. B () EE D B HKE

(a) U (ER) BB AR B REIR
o 2R NEETEERY o ZEWEERE
PR B FRIAN B A B sk 3R RE o

(b) FEU/(FEAT) B 2B /8 A ) 3ROR /8 S 3K
o8 ARBREEE RIE—K
PR EMNIRR - %5 RARR M8
DRI IR EE H Sk R RE -

17. EWER X
(a) BRER DT
RRE IR - I IR A R S R E Y
R ERR ST BOT ¢

2016 2015

$’000 $’000

Fr Frx

Neither past due nor impaired 7 38 HA sl B 52,161 78,258

Within one month past due BELOR—E A 21,662 24,918

Over one month but within two months past due 1 #7238 — & 18 2 R R E A 6,616 12,860
Over two months but within three months BEERBEMRE A

past due BALR=EA 3,449 8,726
Over three months but within one year i BA A A = {E A

past due BLR—F 14,697 20,746

Over one year past due BHEARA—F 2,569 3,135

101,154 148,643

According to the Group’s credit policy, credit period granted
to customers is generally within 90 days. Therefore, all the
balances which are not past due as disclosed above are
within three months from the invoice date.

All of the accounts receivable are expected to be recovered
within one year.

Impairment of accounts receivable

Impairment losses in respect of accounts receivable are
recorded using an allowance account unless the Group is
satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in which
case the impairment loss is written off against accounts
receivable directly.
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17. Accounts receivable (continued)

(b) Impairment of accounts receivable (continued)
The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during
the year is as follows:

17. EEI‘I& E'E'TA\//\

(b) EWERFRE(E)
FRRERENESOT -

2016 2015

$'000 $'000

Fx Fr

At 1 January n—HA—H 13,501 364
Impairment loss recognised BRI EEIE 2,422 13,137
Uncollectible amounts written off EMEE AR AT Uk Bl & 58 (9,589) —
6,334 13,501

At 31 December 2016, the Group’s accounts receivable of
$6,334,000 was individually determined to be impaired
(2015: $13,501,000). The individually impaired receivables
related to customers with long overdue balances and
management assessed that the receivables are not expected
to be recovered. Consequently, an impairment loss is
provided for. The Group does not hold any collateral over
such balances.

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a wide range of customers for whom there was no recent
history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are
still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances.

18. Pledged bank deposits

Pursuant to certain licence agreements between subsidiaries of
the Company and fellow subsidiaries and between subsidiaries
of the Company and independent third parties, bank guarantees
have been provided to the fellow subsidiaries and the third
parties in respect of the subsidiaries’ due performance and
payment under the respective licence agreements. The Company
has pledged bank deposits of $78,343,000 (2015: $79,691,000) to
banks for the bank guarantees issued.

%:%—ﬁ¢+—ﬂ:+—a'$%
B & U BR 706,334,000 T( =T — R F:
13,501,000 7T) E fl%J?zm%/J’Eﬂfﬁ
18 1) 3% 18 49 FE W 3R T8 T B2 4 A o e ) 460 P
BHNEFAR  BEEEEMGEKZE
fRAE R REE AW D - BT 1 H R (B B 18 B
o NEBEYW R F AR A KR

0
on °

I 8 H SR E Y R IIR Y B % A &l
W EIERCENEFER

BB HEARIRE M R UGRIR T A T EAR
SERARIFELENBLIEFPER -
REBEER EEEREARZTER

MEEERIAERERNRE  BREFHE
SRINEE BRI 2HKRE - RBASZEFLH
BRIELRERE - ARBEAUBERZSHER
RAEAEA R

18. CHEMARITER

REARRNB AR ER RN B AR RAQH
MBAREBIE =T UNE THTHE
ZEMBRARCHEZERITRINEREB
BB THETRIE  FHUZERER
MBARKRE=AAZHZANBITER AR
AIEBATE E A IRITERABITEBRITER
78,343,000 L(=ZZF— R4 : 79,691,000 7C) °
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19. Bank deposits and cash 19.  RTERERE
2016 2015
$'000 $'000
Fr Fr
Cash at bank and in hand RITRFHEES 105,558 126,740
Bank deposits with original maturities within three FEE|HB A=A R
months RITIF K 99,063 11,831
Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the HRIUEEIBERERME M
consolidated cash flow statement Be kIREEEY 204,621 138,571
Bank deposits with original maturities over three [REHA B iR =18 A eV iR T 3K
months 193,333 231,184
397,954 369,755
20. Accounts payable 20. FE{SER X

Details of the ageing analysis of accounts payable at the end of
the reporting period are as follows:

RBEHR - BARROKROMFEOT

2016 2015

$'000 $'000

T FT

Due within one month —1& B R EIE8 1,977 5,071

Credit period granted to the Group by suppliers is generally within
90 days. Above balances are all within three months from the
invoice date.

All of the accounts payable are expected to be settled within one
year.

HER - RRTAEENEEHR0A - £
BERINBEZAHR=EARDBIE -

R A R — FREAT -

21. Provision for onerous contracts 21. BlESHRE

Given the increasingly keen price and market competition in
the media advertising sector and having considered the terms
included in the tender invitation issued by The Kowloon Motor
Bus Company (1933) Limited (“KMB”") for a new licence relating
to the BUS-TV business, the Group has decided not to submit a
tender for this new licence which will succeed the current licence
when it expires on 30 June 2017. The Group assessed that the
unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under related
licences and other contracts, which are all non-cancellable, may
exceed the economic benefits expected to be received therefrom
and, therefore, considered that these licences and other
contracts were onerous contracts. Consequently, a provision for
onerous contracts of $14,455,000 was recognised for the year
ended 31 December 2016.
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AENBREREK  AREERETEER
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22. Income tax in the consolidated statement of 22. 5RGEEMBERAKRNAABHR
financial position

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of (a) FIRGEMBERRERANSTPHRES :

financial position represents:

2016 2015
$'000 $'000
T Fr
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year ~ ZREEEB M SH & 5,097 4,842
Provisional Profits Tax paid BT AAISHL (4,878) (4,813)
219 29
PRC income tax payable FER R B TS 441 355
660 384
Reconciliation to consolidated statement of financial B A B A L F T EE
position:
2016 2015
$’000 $’000
Fr Fr
Current tax recoverable recognised in the RERE B IR R FER Y
consolidated statement of financial position FEUY AN HAFR TE (400) (3,458)
Current tax payable recognised in the RERE BB R TR
consolidated statement of financial position FERZANHAFR B 1,060 3,842
660 384
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22. Income tax in the consolidated statement of 22, REGEEHBRRROFER(E)
financial position (continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised: (b) EERANEEHBELEE (EE) :
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) REEAVBRRRERNECERBEEE,/
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial (BE)MARBHERNFRANERNT -

position and the movements during the year are as follows:

Depreciation

allowances
in excess of
related
accelerated Onerous
depreciation Tax losses contracts Total
8 48RS
IERTEN
TEKE HEEE BEeY Wz
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
F Fr Fr Fr
At 1 January 2015 R-_ZF—HF—A—H (4,706) 8,892 — 4,186
Credited/(charged) to profitor #E18zEREt A
loss (F%) 1,288 (916) = 372
At 31 December 2015 R_ZT—RE+_F8
== (3,418) 7,976 — 4,558
At 1 January 2016 R-ZZE—RF¥—H—AH (3,418) 7,976 — 4,558
Credited/(charged) to profit EIBFERNFAS
or loss (H)7) 4,137 (825) 2,385 5,697
At 31 December 2016 RZZTE—XRFE+A
=+—H 719 7,151 2,385 10,255
Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of RNIEEM IR RIERAN S5
financial position:
2016 2015
$'000 $'000
T T
Net deferred tax assets FEEHBEEESFE 10,393 4,775
Net deferred tax liabilities EERIE B EFE (138) (217)
10,255 4,558
(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised: (c) RERWELZHIFEE ©
In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note BEMFTIMAENETEHE AR
1(m), the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets of EEBREr R RERIATRER
$25,194,000 (2015: $19,734,000) in respect of cumulative AANKEEENRRERRAT - &
tax losses of $152,692,000 (2015: $119,602,000), where it NEE W& F 152,692,000 (=ZF —
is not probable that future taxable profits against which the F 119,602,000 70 ) K BB 75 B B HE R
losses can be utilised will be available in the relevant tax 25,194,000 (= & — B 4 : 19,734,000
jurisdictions and entities. At 31 December 2016 and 2015, TLIMBELEHIEEE - R — R NF K=
the tax losses do not expire under the current tax legislation. Z—hF+_-_A=+—8 BERITHHG

EP - MSEETERRA
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22.Income tax in the consolidated statement of
financial position (continued)

(d) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised:

At 31 December 2016, temporary differences relating to the
undistributed profits of a subsidiary amounted to $8,991,000
(2015: $7,693,000). Deferred tax liabilities of $899,000 (2015:
$769,000) have not been recognised in respect of the tax
that would be payable on the distribution of these retained
profits as the Company controls the dividend policy of this
subsidiary and it has been determined that it is probable that
profits will not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

23. Capital and reserves

(a) Movements in components of equity
The reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated
equity is set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity. Details of the changes in the Company’s individual
components of equity between the beginning and the end
of the year are set out below:

22. JIREREMBRRROFAEH (&)

(d) RERWEEHBEE !
R—ZE—XRNE+-_A=+—H B#@
—ARNBRARARD RBFMOEG HEER
#8,991,0007C0(= T — A 4 : 7,693,000
TL) c HRARAEHZIB AR
B - BRABZMBRARER LBEREK
At k&F - Bt - WHEMDIKZ
ZRE B R FE ST #)F 18 7 32.899,000
TT(ZZF— A4 : 769,000 7T ) K IE FE & 1A
BfE-

3. BRARRFEE

(a) MEEAABHHLH
AR A BN ARG PR
BOHBRRGAERSDE - ARFS
1B 35 4R P B 19 RO 1 H 0 R B R P
SHHERIINT

The Company KATF
Share  Contributed Accumulated
capital surplus losses Total
&N BHER ey F= BE
$'000 $’'000 $’000 $’000
Fr Fr Fr Fr
Balance at 1 January 2015 R=-B—HEF
— B —HW#&R 99,737 594,404 (295,366) 398,775
Changes in equity for 2015: “E-AFNEREE
Profit and total comprehensive R4 ZF & 2 E W E
income for the year Rk — — 33,941 33,941
Dividend approved inrespect AR _EFE D HEHR
of the previous year f% 8. — — (79,291) (79,291)
Balance at 31 December 2015 R=-ZT—HF
and 1 January 2016 +=A=+—HRK
—ZE—X"¥—A—H
K 4L &R 99,737 594,404 (340,716) 353,425
Changes in equity for 2016: —E-RENEZEE
Profit and total comprehensive  ZN4F & 2 1) & 2 W 25
income for the year k) — — 1,114 1,114
Balance at 31 December 2016 RA=T—%F
+=—BA=1+—HBK#&& 99,737 594,404 (339,602) 354,539
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23. Capital and reserves (continued)

3. RARRFEE(E)

(b) Share capital (b) BA
2016 2015
Number of Number of
shares shares
RHEE RHEE
'000 $'000 '000 $'000
TR Fr FR T
Authorised: ETE
Ordinary shares of $0.1 each BAREE 0.17THY
TR 10,000,000 1,000,000 10,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTREHR :
At 31 December Rt+—_A=+—8H 997,365 99,737 997,365 99,737

(9]

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive

dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to

one vote per share at general meetings of the Company. All

ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s

residual assets.

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i) Share premium

(i)

The application of the share premium account is
governed by the Company’s Bye-laws and the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981.

General reserve

General reserve is provided by each of the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries at 10% of their net profit after tax, based
on the relevant subsidiary’s PRC statutory financial
statements.

The general reserve can be used to set off any
accumulated losses or converted into paid-up capital of
the relevant subsidiary.

(iii) Contributed surplus

Pursuant to a group reorganisation in 2001, the
Company became the holding company of the Group.
The excess of the consolidated net assets represented
by the shares acquired over the nominal value of the
shares issued by the Company in exchange under the
reorganisation in 2001 was transferred to contributed
surplus. Under the Bermuda Companies Act 1981,
contributed surplus is available for distribution to
shareholders.
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23. Capital and reserves (continued)

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)
(iv) Other reserve

In 2007, the Group entered into an agreement with a
fellow subsidiary to acquire the remaining 8% equity
interests in a subsidiary, KM-Vision Limited at a
consideration of $1,211,000, resulting in a premium of
$605,000. The additional investment was accounted
for as an equity transaction and the premium was
recognised directly in shareholders’ equity.

(v) Fairvalve reserve
The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net
change in the fair value of available-for-sale debt
securities held at the end of the reporting period.

(vi) Exchange reserve
The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of operations outside Hong Kong. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policy set out in note 1(r).

(vii) Distributability of reserves
At 31 December 2016, the aggregate amount of
reserves available for distribution to shareholders of
the Company was $254,802,000 (2015: $253,688,000).
After the end of the reporting period, the Directors
did not propose a final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2016 (2015: $Nil) (note 9(a)).

(d) Capital management
The Group's primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

3. BARFEHEE(E)

(c) RESHWHEERAR(E)
(iv) Rt @

Kﬁl%:;?%tiﬁﬁi—ﬁ%ifiﬁ%
NAEIFEE —E W 0 PA1,211,000 T

BB IR E 7 BT /8 2 R KM-Vision

Limited % 5 £ 8% &Y A% 1 - B 25 4 )%

{E 5 605,0007T ° LLEEIME E TH LA #E

mRXHIE  REEERBREERSR

TR o

(v) AREEGEE
DR EAEREE aﬁﬁéiﬁiﬁﬁiﬁ—iﬁﬁﬁﬁ
EHEEBEF AN BENRGE
BT o

(vi) SMNE
SMNE R BIEHRER BN EBI B
BRELEWAAEENZHE - ZERHE
RIRPRE 1(r) PREL A SRt IR R I -

(vii) 1 & B9 T 7 R 14
RZE—-—R"F+ZA=+—8"
T’“i}f&%ﬁ/‘ﬁ%%ﬁﬂ%%A
48 %8 /5 254,802,0000( = F — R F -
Elw&wOn) <ﬁ%ﬂﬁa§'%$
TEEREBEE_Z—R"F+_A=1—
BEFERERPRE(ZSE—AF :
Z70) (7 9()) °

(d) EXEE
AEEEBEANBERRREAEH
BEAEERBRENRN B RERE

K FRHENEMRRBEE  ARE
BEBENANRE  EERRRIEHDR
Ko H AR &R -
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23. Capital and reserves (continued)

(d) Capital management (continued)

At 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group did not have any

3. BARFEHEE(E)
M)ﬁ$MEhJ

RIBE—RERE—RHF+_A=+—
H- $E@I Tﬂ—JfETﬂﬁf o AEER

bank borrowings. The Group had bank deposits and cash
balance as at 31 December 2016 amounting to $397,954,000
(2015: $369,755,000).

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a
sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

24. Financial risk management and fair values of
financial instruments

The Group is exposed to credit, liquidity, interest rate and
currency risks arising from the normal course of its business.
These risks are limited by the Group’s financial management
policies and practices described below.

(a) Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to accounts
receivable and other receivables and listed debt securities.
Management has a credit policy in place and the exposures
to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

Investments made are normally only in liquid securities
quoted on a recognised stock exchange, except where
entered into for long term strategic purposes. Given the high
credit standing of the counterparties, management does
not expect any investment counterparty to fail to meet its
obligations, except for those on which impairment losses
have been made.

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. Customers of media
sales business are generally granted credit terms of 90 days
while customers of merchandising business either pay on
delivery or are generally granted credit terms of 30 to 90
days. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from
customers.
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24. Financial risk management and fair values of
financial instruments (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (continued)

Bank deposits and cash at bank are normally placed with
licensed banks that have credit ratings equal to or better
than the Group. Given their high credit ratings, management
does not expect any licensed bank to fail to meet its
obligations.

The Group has not provided any guarantee which would
expose the Group or the Company to credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from accounts receivable are
setoutinnote 17.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands, subject
to approval by the Company'’s Board of Directors when the
borrowings exceed certain predetermined levels of authority.
The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash and adequate committed lines of funding from major
financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and longer term.

The Company also monitors closely the cash flows of its
subsidiaries. Generally, the Company’s subsidiaries are
required to obtain the Company’s approval for activities
such as investment of surplus cash, raising of loans and
settlement of suppliers’ invoices beyond certain limits.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s non-derivative
financial liabilities which are required to be repaid within
one year or on demand amounted to $52,005,000 (2015:
$59,468,000).

Interest rate risk

It is the Group's policy to monitor market conditions closely
and devise suitable strategies against interest rate risk. The
Group regularly reviews its strategy on interest rate risk
management in the light of the prevailing market condition.

4. B EREERERIANAIAERE

43
(&)

(a)

(b)

(c)

FERR(E)

ROIFRERITRAE —REFHRNEER
BEEREBRAK B ERT - HER
HEETNARR  EREWNEBEMRE
BIRTTEEEEITEER -

AEBYERHEMAESAEERER

) H R = 8RR A ER o

AEBEREEREEFNEERRNARE
FHRABRE 17 1 — P EE -

RBESER
AREETERKEERATEEINR

REE

TEE  ERESEFARERENES
FR-MEEREBEERNE TEE
K- RIABERARREZTSNHE - K
SENBRATHERERPESTE
NEREESEHNEsRELREXIES
MEBREEANAGESRE  REH
REHNRHESRE -

ARBNEBENERENBLARANRE R
B —RME  ARBIMMNEQRZARLNA
ReBMERE  SKREXNEHBBE
TERNERHERFZEAHNEAQAM
/o
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24. Financial risk management and fair values of 24, BBAREERSHIANQIAERE
financial instruments (continued) (&)
(c) Interest rate risk (continued) (c) RIREM(E)
(i) Interest rate profile (i) FIZEEX

The following table details the interest rate profile of the
Group's interest bearing assets and liabilities at the end
of the reporting period.

TRANARERBER RN EE
ENAERNFIREER -

2016 2015
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate p.a. rate p.a.
BERFERIE BREFE
% $'000 % $'000
Bkt T Btk FT
Fixed rate assets: BElEFIEEE :
Bank deposits (including RITER(BIEER
pledged deposits) RER) 1.5 370,739 1.4 322,706
Variable rate assets: FEFFEEE -
Cash at bank RITRE 0.1 47,852 0.1 78,045
(ii) Sensitivity analysis (i) BUBETH

At 31 December 2016, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, would have
decreased/increased the Group’s loss after tax and
accumulated losses by approximately $459,000 (2015:
$760,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s loss after tax (and
accumulated losses) that would arise assuming that the
change in interest rates had occurred at the end of the
reporting period and had been applied to re-measure
those financial instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk at the
end of the reporting period. In respect of the exposure
to cash flow interest rate risk arising from floating rate
non-derivative instruments held by the Group at the end
of the reporting period, the impact on the Group’s loss
after tax (and accumulated losses) is estimated as an
annualised impact on interest income of such a change
in interest rates. The analysis is performed on the same
basis as for 2015.
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24. Financial risk management and fair values of 24, BBAREERSHIANQIAERE

financial instruments (continued) (&)
(d) Currency risk (d) E¥ &b
The following table details the Group's exposure at the end of TRFIAE ERA AR E A
the reporting period to currency risk arising from recognised INEBRBEMIIBENEERABBEMNRE
assets or liabilities denominated in a currency other than the HARFTEARENE R R R
functional currency of the entity to which they relate.
Exposure to foreign currencies S B
(expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (B E)
2016 2015
usb RMB usb RMB
ES AR EJ AR
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr Fr Fr Fr
Pledged bank deposits EHEIPRITIFR 68,343 — 67,991 —
Bank deposits and cash ROTER KRB S 57,165 22,292 55,629 22,867
125,508 22,292 123,620 22,867
In addition, the Group is exposed to currency risk arising AN - AREFEmE AAREGEER K
from inter-company receivables and payables denominated BRI E )5 BE R A 7 EUWER
in Renminbi which is not the functional currency of either the ZNEMNERFEANERRER - D=
lender or the borrower. The net inter-company receivables T—ARFE+ZA=+—H Q2FHEEKR
amounted to RMB122,454,000 as at 31 December 2016 HFEAARE 122,454,000 (ZF—F
(2015: RMB122,454,000). F: AR®122,454,0007T) ©
The following table indicates how a change in Renminbi TRBERMNBEARARE N BEBLEE
against Hong Kong dollar at the end of the reporting period NEBRARFEEE M E AR
would have affected the Group's results for the year and B Z o
other components of equity.
2016 2015
Decrease/ Decrease/
Increase/  (increase) in Increase/  (increase) in
(decrease) loss for Effect on (decrease) loss for Effect on
inforeign  the yearand other in foreign  the yearand other
exchange  accumulated  components exchange  accumulated  components
rate losses of equity rate losses of equity
KEEFER HEMER AEEFER HEMER
EEm/ ZitEE AR5 Exzim,/ Z5tEE AR5
(f)  ED/(Em) o7 (H2)  HD/(8m) i
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T Tr Fr Fr
Renminbi ARK 3% 4,760 — 3% 5,027 —
(3)% (4,760) — (3)% (5,027) —
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24. Financial risk management and fair values of
financial instruments (continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

(e)

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign
exchange rate had been applied to re-measure those
financial instruments held by the Group which expose the
Group to currency risk at the end of the reporting period,
including inter-company payables and receivables within
the Group which are denominated in a currency other than
the functional currencies of the lender or the borrower, and
that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain
constant. In this respect, it is assumed that the linked
rate between the Hong Kong dollar and the United States
dollar would be materially unaffected by any changes in
movement in value of the United States dollar against other
currencies. Results of the analysis as presented in the above
table represent an aggregation of the effects on each of the
Group entities’ results after tax and equity measured in their
respective functional currencies, translated into Hong Kong
dollar at the exchange rate ruling at the end of the reporting
period for presentation purposes. The analysis has been
performed on the same basis as for 2015.

Renminbi is not a fully convertible currency. All foreign
exchange transactions involving Renminbi must take
place either through the People’s Bank of China or other
institutions authorised to buy and sell foreign currencies.

Fair value measurement

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried at other
than fair value

All financial instruments carried at cost or amortised cost
are carried at amounts not materially different from their
fair values as at 31 December 2016 and 2015 except that
amounts due from/to ultimate holding company and fellow
subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed
repayment terms. Given these terms it is not meaningful to
disclose their fair values.
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25. Commitments

(a)

(b)

Capital commitments

At 31 December 2016, the Group had the following capital
commitments in relation to the purchase of property, plant
and equipment not provided for in the financial statements:

25. FRIE
w)ﬁ$ﬁF

R-ZFB-—R"E+-A=+t—0 AKEL
ﬁiﬁéﬂﬁi%iﬁ%E?FHj%éﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%@ﬁ%za%@%%'
B R AR ) B AR T

2016 2015

$'000 $'000

T FT

Contracted for BRI A& — 5,723

Operating lease commitments
At 31 December 2016, the Group’s total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases in

(b) BEHERE

RIZZE-—RFTZA=1+—H ZXEER
BEBDELRRENITAZHLEHER

respect of property and equipment are payable as follows: MHRRFEBESBEHOT
2016 2015
$'000 $'000
Fr T
Within 1 year —FR 3,350 4,629
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERFR 2,970 6,211
6,320 10,840

The Group leases property and equipment under operating
leases. The leases run for an initial period of 1 to 5 years,
with an option to renew the leases when all terms are
renegotiated. The leases do not include any contingent
rentals.

AEBREBEEEHERRYERRE - &
ENHSRE—E2RF  YARBEHERSE
HMERRED - HETEREMNIAHE
% o
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25. Commitments (continued)

(c) Other commitments

25. ARIE(1E)

Under certain exclusive licences to (i) conduct media
sales management services for BUS-TV business on buses
operated by KMB and Long Win Bus Company Limited
(“Long Win"), (ii) conduct media sales agency and
management business on selected bus shelters, (iii) solicit
advertising business in respect of the interior and exterior
panels of buses operated by KMB and Long Win, (iv) solicit
advertising business on billboards and other advertising
spaces owned by independent third parties, the Group
has committed to pay licence fees or royalty fees at a
pre-determined percentage of the net advertising rental
received, subject to a guaranteed minimum amount. Such
licences will expire in periods ranging from 2017 to 2020. The
future minimum guaranteed licence fees and royalty fees

are payable as follows:

(c) HAtrRiE
BEAEEERET()RNEREED
TERAR([BEEMMEEELT EHNEL
EREBRHEBEEEERS - () A
RO TREZREFEBHERERE
BER  (RNABREEMEEE TN
BRABREGINBESMETESED
RV BYE = BRENESREEM
BEEMETESEL  AEEEAERRA
BERSHSFENBLETE D LAN
BHELIFNE  HEAZIREREBLEAHN
R ZEBFEM I -_T—LtEFE_F
“TEHEER o BNRRFERBRFT
EREFNBNOT

2016 2015

$’'000 $'000

T Fr

Within 1 year —FR 173,024 191,856
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERAFR 365,279 113,503
538,303 305,359

The above licences typically run for an initial period of 24 to

72 months, and certain of the licences contain an
renew the licence when all terms are renegotiated.

26. Employee retirement benefits

option to

AR FE-ROIGERIR24ET72
A - mETHFERSEEXGTEN
BERE ERBETAENET

26. EERIKEF

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the

“MPF Scheme"”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident

Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the

jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance.

The MPF

Scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan administered

by independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the

employer

and its employees are each required to make contributions to the

plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap

of monthly relevant income of $30,000. Contributions to the MPF

Scheme vest immediately.
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26. BERKER (E)
REBFEDER  AEE2ERMREARANE
RAENM TSRO EERKREE - A%
B BIFIEMT

26. Employee retirement benefits (continued)

As stipulated by the regulations of Mainland China, the Group
participated in employee pension schemes organised by the
local governments under which the Company’s subsidiaries are
governed. Details of the schemes of the Group are as follows:

Contribution rate (Note)

Administrator Beneficiary IRE (W)
BEEA ZHEA 2016 2015
Beijing Social Security Fund Management Centre Employees 19%-20% 20%
ERTHERBRESEER L (==

Note: Mt -

Under the scheme, the Group and its employees were each required to BiEZtE AEFEHEEESREAMAZERES

MNIBEETEZRE19%
K 8% Hy R

make a contribution to the scheme at 19% (20% before 1 May 2016) and —E-XRFERA—BRIA20%)

8%, respectively, of a pre-determined amount.

AEERBE-T—A"F+_A=1+—HILHF
EYBBATERBEMET -

The Group did not employ any staff in Mainland China during the
year ended 31 December 2016.

BEREATHNERRS

BRAMBHRREMBNARENR S MEH
CAEBREREUATEREALNRS ¢

27. Material related party transactions 27.

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere

=

in these financial statements, the Group has the following related 4
party transactions during the year:

2016 2015
Note $'000 $'000
G 7 5
Licence fee and service fees for conducting ELEREBETFER
BUS-TV business RS & (i) 20,897 19,338
Licence and royalty fees paid for the right to MHEETIRE=EEM
sell advertising space on bus shelters TER ST S B R A B (i) 19,727 18,121
Licence fee for the right to solicit advertising RETBEREAFESA
business at advertising space on bus interiors HEITESEEBHEFN
e (iii) 22,250 18,700
Licence fee for the right to solicit advertising RE LB HINPEERL
business at advertising space on bus exteriors EITESEBHERN
BT & (iv) 103,504 94,222
Rental expenses HEEA (v) 715 3,061
Management fee and sales rebate BIEE L EEO (vi) 23,675 22,340
Service fee paid for logistic function HEDRGEZTREE (vii) 490 490
Mobile data subscription fees MBBERFE (viii) 1,499 1,279
Key management personnel remuneration FEEBEAEHS (ix) 9,809 10,486

2016 F 3R
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27. EBEALTHNEARR S (B)

27. Material related party transactions (continued)

Notes: Mt -

(i) Licence fee and service fees were paid to subsidiaries of Transport () FHFEBEARKERENNEMEENE LT ENE
International Holdings Limited (“TIH"), the ultimate holding TEREERAENTEIERESER N TA
company of the Companu, for conducting BUS-TV advertising RAIGKRERAR S BEABRZERAER 2 AH
business on buses operated by KMB and fitted with the BUS-TV BOEMBLARINER RBEHR AEEE
broadcasting system. The amount payable by the Group at the end #9718 A 706,000 70( — F — 1 4F : 10,653,000
of the reporting period amounted to $706,000 (2015: $10,653,000). JT) e

(i) Licence and royalty fees were paid for selling advertising spaces (i) FHLENEZEREEHBMNBARMEESN
on certain bus shelters owned by a subsidiary of TIH. The amount ETEItRETEREUINNER - RBEH
receivable by the Group at the end of the reporting period amounted K RNEEEWKIEA600,000 T (ZF—RF
to $600,000 (2015: amount payable of $352,000). JEFRIE 352,000 7T) ©

(iii) Licence fee was paid to a subsidiary of TIH for soliciting advertising (i) FEITERERNNEMEENE THWERANBE
business in respect of the interior panels and other interior spaces S REMERASNEETESEERI N TEH
inside the compartments of buses operated by KMB. The amount BRNBATINER - RBREHR - REBEEKRK
receivable by the Group at the end of the reporting period amounted T8 423,000 0( ZF—FF :23,000L) °
to $23,000 (2015: $23,000).

(iv) Licence fee was paid to a subsidiary of TIH for marketing, displaying (iv) BT BRERMGEN BERREREERIE
and maintaining advertisements at the exterior panels of the bodies FeEEnBETMEFIINTESMNAT N FEHBMH
of buses operated by KMB. The amount receivable by the Group at BARIMER -RBSHR  AEEEKRIES
the end of the reporting period amounted to $167,000 (2015: amount 167,000 70( —ZF—AHF : B 5XTE 1,958,000 L) °
payable of $1,958,000).

(v) Rental expenses were paid to a subsidiary of TIH for leasing of (v) AEBAREMESLFE715000 (T —AHF :
properties amounted to $715,000 (2015: $2,805,000) and for leasing 2,805,000 ) R EF ERBEEST L(ZE—H
of audio and visual equipment amounted to $Nil (2015: $256,000). F 256,000 ) AHBINBEARSNHEEZR -
The amount payable by the Group at the end of the reporting period RREHRR  AEEENREATL(ZT—F
amounted to $Nil (2015: $Nil). FFg) e

(vi) Management fee amounting to $22,354,000 (2015: $22,094,000) i) ZEEMREBEBELTRE=ZEERRERE

=

(vii

and sales rebate amounting to $1,322,000 (2015: $246,000) were
paid to JCDecaux Cityscape Limited (“JCDecaux Cityscape”), a
fellow subsidiary of a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary
of the Company, for the provision of management and agency
services in relation to bus shelters. The amount payable to JCDecaux
Cityscape at the end of the reporting period amounted to $212,000
(2015: $2,012,000).

The Group paid a service fee to JCDecaux Cityscape for the logistic
function provided to the Group in relation to the bus shelters under
the media sales business. The amount due to JCDecaux Cityscape at
the end of the reporting period amounted to $41,000 (2015: $41,000).

(viii) Mobile data subscription fees were paid to a subsidiary of a

(ix)

substantial shareholder of the ultimate holding company of the
Group for mobile data transmission services. The amount payable by
the Group at the end of the reporting period amounted to $125,000
(2015: $167,000).

Remuneration for key management personnel, including amounts
paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed in note 7 and certain of
the highest paid employees as disclosed in note 8, is as follows:

mEaREARAR(IEZEaRE NINTERR
22,354,000 7L( = Z — F 4 : 22,094,000 7T ) K 3
& B 0 € 501,322,00070( = F — FF : 246,000
TL)  ZARRARARMBARFERBRNE R
MEBAR - RBREMR BN TESRIGNKE
£212,000 (= —AF ¢ 2,012,0007T) °

(vii) REBpESREAAERREAEHELGES

HEHEEFETHNRYRBAESEE MR
BE -RREHER EFTEREEARES
41,000 T(ZZ— A4 : 41,0007T) °

(i) B HER P EERERADBRBEEGRBE N T

(ix)

AEEBNGREBRARTERENHBARNE
e REREBKR - AEBEENFKEA1250007T
(ZZF—F% :167,0007C) °

IZEBEAENME (BRME7TAREXNTA
NABEENFEARMNISHREXNTET RS
FREEMNFRMNT

2016 2015

$'000 $’000

Fr F

Short-term employee benefits RHEERF 9,719 10,396
Post-employment benefits BERR SRR 90 90
9,809 10,486
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27. Material related party transactions (continued)

Notes (continued):

(x) Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to connected transactions

The related party transactions in respect of licence fees and audio
and visual equipment rental expenses payable to subsidiaries of
TIH and management fee payable to JCDecaux Cityscape above
constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
disclosures required by Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules are provided
on pages 19 to 23 of the annual report.

The related party transactions in respect of service fee paid for
logistic function payable to JCDecaux Cityscape, rental expense for
leasing of properties payable to a subsidiary of TIH and the mobile
data subscription fees payable to a subsidiary of a substantial
shareholder of the ultimate holding company constitute continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. However, they are exempt from the disclosure requirements
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

28. Immediate and ultimate controlling parties

29.

At 31 December 2016, the Directors consider the immediate
parent and ultimate controlling party of the Group to be KMB
Resources Limited and TIH respectively. KMB Resources
Limited is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands while TIH is
incorporated in Bermuda and listed in Hong Kong. TIH produces
financial statements available for public use.

Accounting estimates and judgements

The key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(a) Impairment of property, plant and equipment and

intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are
assessed at the end of each reporting period to identify
indications that they may be impaired. Such indications
include physical damage of a property, plant and equipment
and a decrease in the revenue derived from an intangible
asset or property, plant and equipment. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the intangible
asset or property, plant and equipment is estimated. The
recoverable amount of an intangible asset or property, plant
and equipment is based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations use cash flow projections based on reasonable
assumptions that represent management’s best estimate
of the range of economic benefits from the asset over its
remaining useful life.

27

28.

29.

BBEEAINEARRS (B)

BIEE(4E) -

(x) BEERZM EHRAERE

EHRENTHEMBERAAMNFHELE EREHE
EER URENTESRENEEENARE
AR GBEREEZFHHERERS (EER L
MRAUFETTAE) - EHRMETHARZREN

WEHNTREIOEEFE23E »

EHERRZHRBEN TRSREANKREE - #HE
ENERNTHBENBARNEEER  URE
NPREZERAFATIERROMED RN R
BERPENBMEALRIBRBERERS(E
ERETHRAETIAE) - Al - ZEXHHEH
RETETRUFETHAZNEERE o

EERRRERAT
R-_E-RFE+A=1— E %%%ﬁ
AEENEESRRRRRERAR DA

KMB Resources Limited & & i ° KMB Resources
Limited R & B Z B S5 M - & @AIR
BREFMKIEREE LT - SBHEEYE
BEABEARATHE -

SatfhE R A B
TR HETE S HEZRIR -

(a) %  BMERZRBRELEERE

AEENBEREHRTEDE  BFE R
REBENEBELEERGRETR - ZAFIR
&%%% BELERENEERERET
ﬁ??%% TR 5 K% 2 4k P E HE O U 2R
Do AFAEEMALFERETR @ AEEK
BBV EEIME - BFERREH K
EI25E - BMUEERWE V%& R
A EBEEEREENE ZFAER
RERBHZEENKBEMNRIEL KEMR
SRS S IR RE - WIRER T AL A F HA
ETHREeREEA -
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29. Accounting estimates and judgements (continued)

(b) Provision for onerous contracts

The Group has entered into a number of licences and other
contracts related to its media advertising business. Where
the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under
these licences and other contracts exceed the expected
economic benefits, a provision for onerous contracts is
recognised. The calculation of the provision will involve
the use of estimates. The provision for onerous contracts
is calculated by taking into account the unavoidable costs
that will be incurred under the related licences and other
contracts and deducting any expected economic benefits
to be derived from these licences or other contracts. The
expected economic benefits are estimated based on the
revenue expected to be generated from advertisement
placements committed by customers while unavoidable
costs are estimated based on the signed non-cancellable
contracts with suppliers that the Group is obliged to honour,
which is the lower of the net costs of fulfilling the contracts
and the cost of terminating it.
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29. Accounting estimates and judgements (continued)

()

(d)

Impairment of accounts receivable and other
receivables

The Group maintains impairment losses for bad and doubtful
debts for estimated losses resulting from the inability of
the debtors to make the required payments. The Group
bases the estimates of future cash flows on the ageing
of the accounts receivable balance and debtors’ credit-
worthiness. A considerable level of judgement is exercised by
management when assessing the credit-worthiness of each
individual customer and the collectability of each accounts
receivable balance. Any increase or decrease in impairment
losses for bad and doubtful debts would affect the Group’s
results in future years.

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives. The Company
reviews annually the useful life of an asset. The depreciation
expense for future periods is adjusted if there are significant
changes from previous estimates.

B33 R B ()

(C) EWEEFA&E@E'&EE /EME

AEBBEBAE N EERT A KIEAM
SIBA Rt B RE R RBRAVMERSE -
AR BRI e W AR SRS R 0 BR i B TS A
MEEENREFARRSRE - EEE
REFEER F P HEER D K& RUIRR
AR AU RS TR (R AR B IR A AT o
%tmﬁﬁﬁi@@ﬁaﬁ’ﬂﬂ—ﬁAWJT@%% N
SERKFENEE

i
W BERREDRBRGH TGRS
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30. A E B AR R ER

30. Company-level Statement of Financial Position

2016 2015
Note $'000 $000
Mot F Fx
Non-current assets FREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries IJEENGIE g = 62,835 62,835
Amounts due from subsidiaries NI 94,753 86,513
157,588 149,348
Current assets RENEE
Amount due from ultimate holding company FEMI AR AR A R 3038 — 5,004
Amounts due from subsidiaries NGRS 371,880 371,755
Other receivables and deposits Hib R Rz e 735 1,420
Pledged bank deposits BRI TIF K 78,343 79,691
Bank deposits and cash RITERKEIES 149,600 116,150
600,558 574,020
Current liabilities REBEE
Amount due to ultimate holding company FERTER AR AR A R 3038 3 =
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTB B A Rl FIE 262,077 194,104
Other payables and accruals HibERERR R IETER 5,707 6,596
267,787 200,700
Net current assets REBEERE 332,771 373,320
Total assets less current liabilities BEEAERABERE 490,359 522,668
Non-current liabilities EREBEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries ENHBARRIEA 135,820 169,243
NET ASSETS EEFE 354,539 353,425
CAPITAL AND RESERVES RERFES 23(a)
Share capital [N 99,737 99,737
Reserves Bk 254,802 253,688
TOTAL EQUITY FERAEE 354,539 353,425
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on KEEep S —+tF=-A+tH-HIETRE
17 March 2017. B o
Dr John CHAN Cho Chak LOH Chan Stephen
FREZEE L EIR
Chairman Managing Director
Ey EFarE
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31.

32.

Non-adjusting events after the reporting period

After the end of the reporting period, the Directors did not
propose a final dividend. Further details are disclosed in note
9(a).

Possible impact of amendments, new standards and
interpretations issued but not yet effective for the
year ended 31 December 2016

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued a number of amendments and new standards which
are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2016 and
which have not been adopted in these financial statements.
These include the following which may be relevant to the Group.

31.

32.

FRABRBEHRER

EENWMEMRRTEZRRERBME - #E—
FHBRMIEI () KE -

EEGERBE-_Z-AF+=A
E+—HLEFEERERNER » HE
ARZRETRERNTE

BEAPBHRRTNERY  BESHOLEE
BHEZERBE_T—R"F+_A=1+—HL
FERARERNERT LA MARBHRE
WERBZFET LR BRATHEHR
AEERBOERT RFER -

Effective for
accounting periods

beginning on

or after

RT 5 HES

ZEBRMN

SETHBEEM

Amendments to HKAS 7, Statement of cash flows: Disclosure initiative 1 January 2017
CERGEANE7RMNER] - [HenEx - KELE ] —T—+tF—HA—H
Amendments of HKAS 12, Income taxes: Recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealised losses 1 January 2017
CERBGEREANSE 125501EET - [A7EH - AR E R BT EEE] —T—+tF—A—H
HKFRS 9, Financial instruments 1 January 2018
(EEUBRELERDEIR  [2HTA) —T-N\F—HA—H
HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers 1 January 2018
(CEBMIBRELRDE 155, - [EFHEAMA ] —T—-N\F—A—H
HKFRS 16, Leases 1 January 2019
(CEEUBREERDE 165 - [HE] —T-NF—A—H
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32. Possible impact of amendments, new standards and
interpretations issued but not yet effective for the
year ended 31 December 2016 (continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments and new standards is expected
to be in the period of initial application. So far the Group has
identified some aspects of the new standards which may have
a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.
Further details of the expected impacts are discussed below.
As the Group has not completed its assessment, further
impacts may be identified in due course and will be taken into
consideration when determining whether to adopt any of
these new requirements before their effective date and which
transitional approach to take, where there are alternative
approaches allowed under the new standards.

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

The new impairment model in HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred
loss” model in HKAS 39 with an “expected credit loss” model.
Under the expected credit loss model, it will no longer be
necessary for a loss event to occur before an impairment loss
is recognised. Instead, an entity is required to recognise and
measure expected credit losses as either 12-month expected
credit losses or lifetime expected credit losses, depending on
the asset and the facts and circumstances. This new impairment
model may result in an earlier recognition of credit losses on the
Group’s accounts receivable and other financial assets. However,
a more detailed analysis is required to determine the extent of
the impact.

HKFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The application of HKFRS 15 may result in the identification of
separate performance obligations which could affect the timing
of the recognition of revenue. In this connection, certain costs
incurred in fulfilling a contract which are currently expensed
may also need to be recognised as an asset under HKFRS 15. At
this stage, the Group is in the process of assessing the impact of
HKFRS 15 on the Group's consolidated financial statements.
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32. Possible impact of amendments, new standards and

interpretations issued but not yet effective for the
year ended 31 December 2016 (continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases

HKFRS 16 will affect primarily the accounting for the Group’s
operating leases. Under the new standard, an asset (the right
to use the leased item) and a financial liability to pay rentals
are recognised in the statements of financial position. After
initial recognition of this asset and liability, interest expense
will be accrued on the outstanding balance of the lease liability
and depreciation of the asset will be incurred. This is different
to the current policy of recognising rental expenses incurred
under operating leases on a systematic basis over the lease
term. The Group is in the process of assessing to what extent the
commitments as disclosed in note 25 will result in the recognition
of an asset and a liability for future payments and how this will
affect the Group's financial statements.
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

hFEMBEHME
For the years ended 31 December
HE+-ZBA=1t—HLEE
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT IT BT T BT T BT T BEET T
RESULTS ES
Revenue WA 407,511 411,946 459,462 462,002 421,154
Other revenue and other net  H{th I A R E U5
income bex:] 7,185 17,975 15,756 26,212 22,019
Total revenue LONt 414,696 429,921 475,218 488,214 443,173
(Loss)/profit from operations &4 (518 ), & F| (4,734) (41,137) 48,087 98,882 96,490
Gain on disposal of other HEHEMSREE
financial assets Wzs — — 36,603 — —
Reversal of impairment loss HEemEERE
on other financial assets E518 % O] — — — 25,611 —
Impairment loss on property, %1% - BRE &%
plant and equipment RIEEE (22,910) = — — —
Provision for onerous BEAL
contracts B (14,455) — — — —
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRBiAEI (&) B F (42,099) (41,137) 84,690 124,493 96,490
Income tax FriSHt (25) (4,892) (8,008) (15,871) (16,991)
(Loss)/profit for the year REE(FE) BF (42,124) (46,029) 76,682 108,622 79,499
Attributable to: FEMREAT -
Equity shareholders of the RAF]
Company &R (45,260) (47,913) 70,587 104,853 74,817
Non-controlling interests AR AE 3,136 1,884 6,095 3,769 4,682
(Loss)/profit for the year REE(EE) BF (42,124) (46,029) 76,682 108,622 79,499
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At 31 December

R+=A=+-8
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T BT T BET T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Property, plant and M -~ BE &
equipment B3 13,629 32,125 39,255 48,938 49,122
Intangible assets ERAE — 189 2,441 — —
Non-current prepayments IERBTENFIA K
and deposits e 1,523 14,502 7,444 12,484 3,741
Other non-current financial HihIERE & @t
assets BE — — — 8,124 81,296
Deferred tax assets FEERIAE EE 10,393 4,775 4,311 3,770 2,618
Net current assets MEEEFE 475,427 494,199 623,316 611,265 519,494
Total assets less current BEAER
liabilities RENR R 500,972 545,790 676,767 684,581 656,271
Deferred tax liabilities RERIERE (138) (217) (125) (129) (157)
Net Assets EEFHE 500,834 545,573 676,642 684,452 656,114
Capital and reserves RAEREES
Share capital R& AR 99,737 99,737 99,737 99,737 99,737
Reserves e 391,877 438,152 566,305 575,010 546,441
Total equity attributable to ViN/NC |8
equity shareholders of the JE(E RS
Company 4REE 491,614 537,889 666,042 674,747 646,178
Non-controlling interests SRR 2 9,220 7,684 10,600 9,705 9,936
Total Equity FETBE 500,834 545,573 676,642 684,452 656,114
wieEH  wamapwsraz 167
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CORPORATE DIRECTORY
RAEHR

Board of Directors EE &

Dr John CHAN Cho Chak” — Chairman
BRIEB AT - &

GBS, JP, DBA (Hon), DSocSc (Hon), BA, DipMS, CCMI, FCILT, FHKloD

Ms Winnie NG* — Deputy Chairman
hEertt -5 E

BA, MBA (Chicago), MPA (Harvard), FCIM, CMILT, MHKIoD

Mr YUNG Wing Chung® - Deputy Chairman
BokBERE -FIFF

Mr LOH Chan Stephen’ — Managing Director
BRSH - EFLALHE

BSocSc, EMBA

Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI*
RFERE LR T

BBS, MBE, JP, DProf, BA(Econ), FHKIoD, FHKMA, FBCS, CITP, FHKIE,
HonFACE, PDipCD

Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung*
FREB LT~

GBS, OBE, JP, LLD, DSocSc, HonDSocSc (EdUHK), BA, FCPA (Practising),

Hon HKAT, FCA, FCPA (Aust.), FCIS, FHKloD

Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan Leung*
RICRBIEA Pt~

BBS, JP, FHKIoD

Dr John YEUNG Hin Chung*
mETELATHL

SBS, OBE, JP, FHKIoD

Mr MAK Chun Keung®
BB A"

Mr John Anthony MILLER?
HEgEE"
SBS, OBE, MPA (Harvard), BA (London), FHKIoD

Mr Allen FUNG Yuk Lun®
BEBTE"

BA, Ph.D.

Mr LEE Luen Fai®
AT

BA

+ Executive Director A1TEF
# Non-Executive Director FEHTTEF
* Independent Non-Executive Director 7817 E#177# F

Company Secretary X AW &
Ms Christine MAK Lai Hung

BRI L+
ACS, ACIS
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Registrars IR R &E it i2

Hong Kong & /&

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712 - 1716, 17/F, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong

BREPREBHELEBR AR
BB EREANER183 %
EFAFL17##1712-1716 F

Bermuda B &

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
The Belvedere Building, 69 Pitts Bay Road
Pembroke HM08

Bermuda

Annual General Meeting RRBF K&

Date & Time : 16 May 2017 at 11:30 a.m.

Venue : Novotel Century Hong Kong, Plaza 4
Lower Lobby, 238 Jaffe Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong

FMRBE ST tEHA+AA
EFT—HB=15

HoEh CRBEFHEB2BREAHRE R LEE
AREBREIRESE

Closure of Register of Members
EEnERNBFELTFE

For the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement to
attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting:
11 May 2017 to 16 May 2017 (both dates inclusive)

REETRFEHERTREFTFASURE LREAER
T E—+FHEAtT—HE_Z—tFRHAT+B(BHE
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Registered Office & B &

Clarendon House, 2 Church Street
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda

Principal Office & & &

Flat D, 2/F, HK Spinners Industrial Building, Phase 5
760-762 Cheung Sha Wan Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Telephone : (852) 2746 5200

Facsimile . (852) 27447854
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Bk :(852) 2746 5200

BE :(852) 2744 7854
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Auditors %% E{ &l

KPMG
8/F, Prince’s Building, 10 Chater Road, Central, Hong Kong

ES5R SRR EAT
FRPIREITEIORATRESE



ROADSHOW HOLDINGS LIMITED Flat D, 2/F, HK Spinners Industrial Building,

PUEEN = Phase 5, 760-762 Cheung Sha Wan Road,
%EHEE&EBE/A ﬂ Kowloon, Hong Kong
BERBNERDEET60-7625
BERYBRIEANESH2DE

This Annual Report is also available on our website:

MIX RERINAFEAR R 2RI TH -

Paper from

responsible sources

Ewﬁcg FSC™ C007234 www.roadshow.com.hk

Typesetting and printing : Elegance Finance Printing Services Limited

Design : theGraphis



	封面

	目錄
	主席報告
	業務回顧
	財務摘要
	財務回顧
	董事及高級管理人員簡介
	環境、社會及管治報告
	企業管治報告
	董事會報告
	致路訊通控股有限公司股東的獨立核數師報告
	綜合損益表
	綜合損益及其他全面收益表
	綜合財務狀況表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	財務報表附註
	五年財務概要
	公司資料
	封底



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Warning
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness false
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages false
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 120
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages false
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 120
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages false
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 700
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug true
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /BleedOffset [
        0
        0
        0
        0
      ]
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName (U.S. Web Coated \(SWOP\) v2)
      /DestinationProfileSelector /UseName
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MarksOffset 0
      /MarksWeight 0.283460
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PageMarksFile /JapaneseWithCircle
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
    <<
      /AllowImageBreaks true
      /AllowTableBreaks true
      /ExpandPage false
      /HonorBaseURL true
      /HonorRolloverEffect false
      /IgnoreHTMLPageBreaks false
      /IncludeHeaderFooter false
      /MarginOffset [
        0
        0
        0
        0
      ]
      /MetadataAuthor ()
      /MetadataKeywords ()
      /MetadataSubject ()
      /MetadataTitle ()
      /MetricPageSize [
        0
        0
      ]
      /MetricUnit /inch
      /MobileCompatible 0
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (GoLive)
        (8.0)
      ]
      /OpenZoomToHTMLFontSize false
      /PageOrientation /Portrait
      /RemoveBackground false
      /ShrinkContent true
      /TreatColorsAs /MainMonitorColors
      /UseEmbeddedProfiles false
      /UseHTMLTitleAsMetadata true
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [595.276 841.890]
>> setpagedevice




